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20 years of Timeless
Achievements
TIME is passage of moments and events that occur in succession, from past to
present and into the future. Each second is viewed, felt and heard before it drifts
away, never to return back.
This transient nature of Time makes it too precious to be wasted. Measuring time
becomes vital, with tools evolving in every epoch, each one a little more accurate
than the preceding one, to ensure that not one second of Time’s transient presence
is lost.
These flowing moments of Time make up a lifetime. Besides numbers, the emotions
felt and memories made while consciously experiencing these passing instances
transcend beyond time, making the life lived a timeless experience.
At Central Depository Company (CDC), the clock has been ticking for twenty
years. Years filled with successive timely efforts to transform country’s
Capital Market. In these two decades, we saw our full share of challenges,
and yet survived the test of Time, achieving the impossible all along. We
made the most of all the right moments to develop an efficient and safe
investment process, ensuring not one opportunity of growth was lost.
CDC’s existence has not only been about achieving professional excellence,
but also about building strong bonds with industry stakeholders. Through
diversification of services, systematic risk management and exceptional
investor protection measures, we left lasting imprints on the dynamics of
Pakistan Capital Market in the past two decades. CDC’s accomplishments
can perhaps be counted in numbers, but the impact made on the economy
of the country can only be perceived through the increasingly conscious
experience of investing in the Capital Market.

Investor
Protection
With Candle Clocks, an everyday, household item –candle–
was put to a more productive use. Besides just being a source
of light, through this resourceful technique, candles of equal
height and thickness were calibrated and then burned to
indicate passage of time. With its illuminating nature, Candle
Clock provided an effective way to tell time even at night, or
on a cloudy day. This inventive light helped mankind tap in
opportunities for centuries, being used well up till twentieth
century to measure time in the dark, dim surroundings of
coal mining.
To make household savings active and more beneficial,
CDC marked ways for spreading awareness about investor
protection measures in Pakistan Capital Market. CDC
plays a vital role in guiding investors to invest safely. This
light of investor protection continues to spread all across
the country, providing understanding about not just the
rewards of Capital Market investment, but also the cloud
of associated risks and the flame of protective measures in
place to do away with the obscurity.

Inducing
Reliability
On account of its accuracy and reliability, the pendulum
clock served as the standard timekeeper for more than two
centuries. Its main timekeeping element – the pendulum –
uses harmonic motion to constantly swing back and forth
in a definite time interval. Pendulums require immense
mechanical stability to function precisely; a tiny change in
the length of the rod causes significant timing errors.
On the basis of our work integrity and skill competence,
CDC has been proudly serving as an infrastructure
backbone of Pakistan Capital Market for over two decades.
Through our leading-edge IT expertise we automated
market mechanisms, adding greater precision, accuracy,
coherence and reliability to market processes. By
harmonizing our efforts simultaneously with the needs
of regulator, investors and businesses, the Company also
made Capital Market more organized and integrated, all the
way winning trust and loyalty of the stakeholders.

Creating
Convenience
Hourglass or Sandglass was an efficient and cost-effective
device which could be used over and over again. Made up
of two glass bulbs, the Hourglass was filled with fine sand
that trickled down a regulated neck connecting the bulbs.
The sand was then leveled against the readings marked on
the glass to indicate time. This effortless migration of sand
symbolized the journey of present, from the past into the
future. The granules at the neck stood as a reminder of the
potential each passing moment holds in the cycle of life.
To realize maximum potential of Capital Market investment
cycle, CDC, in its twenty year long journey offered excellent
customer facilitation. We harnessed the potential to
innovate, all the way creating new benchmarks of customer
convenience and service efficiency. One of the hallmarks of
our superior client service is providing real-time access to
account information through multiple channels. Taking our
customer focused approach forward, CDC will continue to
explore every possibility to provide modern, cost-effective
and quality service to Pakistan Capital Market.

Securing
Assets
Acknowledging the reality of darkness which exists alongside
light, ancient civilizations invented Sundials which measured
time by using the shadow cast by the sun. The shadow
casting triangular blade called Gnomon - meaning ‘one
that knows or examines’ – when illuminated by sunlight
casted shadow on different sections of the dial based on the
changing position of the sun all through the day till sunset.
Realizing the existence of risks that accompany modern,
technologically driven electronic systems, CDC at first
acquired and then continued to upgrade its international
standards of Business Continuity and Information Security
to ensure investor asset protection. Through stringent risk
management measures, work processes and practices are
examined all-round the year to foreshadow and mitigate
risks that arise with changing business dynamics to ensure
paramount safety of clients’ assets.

Pioneering
Ideas
Water Clocks were one of the first time measuring
instruments developed by mankind. Greeks called it the
Clepsydra –Water Thief– referring to the slow, stealthy
movement of water in or out a vessel through a graduated
hole. Since Water was easily and promptly available, this
device was used for diverse purposes ranging from timing
speeches to monitoring fair distribution of irrigation water.
Two decades back, CDC pioneered the development of an
electronic Central Depository System (CDS) for Pakistan
Capital Market. This groundbreaking move completely
transformed the market dynamics, making operations
more transparent and efficient. With the passage of time,
the Company also envisioned diversified solutions to
steadily fill in for other market needs, changing radically
the day to day business practices. Through our state-ofthe-art IT infrastructure, apt and prompt mechanisms were
developed to automate processes adding strength and
security to Capital Market systems.
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Mission
Provide secure, reliable and innovative solutions
that systematically reduce risk, enable
transparency and bring efficiencies to Capital &
Financial markets.
To be the centre of excellence by continuously
employing state of the art technology and best
talent in the country while maintaining good
corporate governance.
Ensure to provide employees with an
environment of professional & personal growth
and; to society, we firmly believe in giving back
to the community.

Vision
To be a world-class institution providing innovative
and reliable services primarily to the capital and
financial markets, stimulating business growth and
maximizing benefits for all stakeholders.

Core Values
Our corporate values represent the core priorities in the
organization’s culture. Adherence to these values makes
it possible for us to continue on the road to sustainable
development.
Dispensing with our corporate responsibility, we are able to
honour our commitments to clients, partners & shareholders
and; to our most valuable resource, our employees.

RELIABILITY
•
•

Reliable & trustworthy for all our stakeholders.
Ensure integrity and security of information.

Integrity
•
•
•

Fair & honest in all our dealings.
Take responsibility for our actions.
Strive to perform to the best of our abilities.

TRANSPARENCY
•
•
•

Policies & procedures are clearly defined, well communicated and applied
equally to all.
Make adequate disclosure of company information.
Strong adherences to the best practices of Corporate Governance.

Teamwork
•
•
•

Build strong relationships within and across functions.
Share ideas / best practices and value diversity.
Communicate candidly and on an ongoing basis within team.
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Directors’ Profiles

Husain Lawai

Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Husain Lawai is a seasoned banker with vast experience in the
banking and financial services industry of this region. His significant
career has seen him serve, most recently, as the President and Chief
Executive Officer of Summit Bank, a position he retired from in
February 2016, and as the President and CEO of MCB Bank and Atlas
Bank, respectively.

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan joined CDC in 1999 and is currently serving
as the Chief Executive Officer. He has previously served as the Chief
Operating Officer from 2004 to 2017 and Head of Operations from
1999 to 2004.

Currently, Mr. Lawai is Chief Executive of the Institute of Bankers
Pakistan. He also serves as the Vice Chairman of Summit Bank, while
also serving on the Boards of Directors of GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan,
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited, Wyeth
Pakistan Limited and The Searle Company Limited. Apart from this,
he is a member of the Board of Governors of Karachi Grammar
School and Virtual University of Pakistan.
Mr. Lawai is credited with being a key enabler of the local Islamic
banking system through the formation of Faysal Islamic Bank, the
first Islamic Sharia Compliant Bank of Pakistan.
In terms of international work experiences, he has notably served
as the Director of Security Investment and Finance Limited – United
Kingdom, and was General Manager, Emirates NBD Bank for
Pakistan and Far East. He has also served on the Board of Directors
of PIA and State Life Corporation of Pakistan.
He holds a Masters Degree in Business Administration from Institute
of Business Administration, Karachi.
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Mr. Diwan is a seasoned professional in the field of Custodial
Services. He started his career with Citibank in 1981. During his long
tenure with the bank, Mr. Diwan had varied exposure in different
operational and business areas, which also included offshore
assignments. He served Citibank Romania as Securities Business
Manager looking after both business and operational activities and
Citibank United Kingdom as part of the project team for Securities
related Cash Exception Project.
He has represented CDC and the Pakistan Capital Market on
various international forums including the Association of National
Numbering Agencies (ANNA) and International Securities Services
Association (ISSA). Furthermore, he is a member of the Executive
Committee of Asia-Pacific Central Securities Depositories Group
(ACG) and also represents the Asia-Pacific Region on the Executive
Board of World Forum of CSDs (WFC), the global body of five regional
Securities Depositories associations.
Mr. Diwan also spearheaded the creation, design and implementation
of various projects to support Capital Market of Pakistan including
the National Clearing and Settlement Services project. He is also
serving as a Director on the Board of Institute of Financial Markets of
Pakistan (formerly Institute of Capital Markets), and ITMinds Limited
(a wholly owned subsidiary of CDC).
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Aamir Matin

Abid Ali Habib

Director

Director

Dr. Aamir Matin has over 35 years of work experience in the IT
industry both in Pakistan as well as abroad. He is currently the Head
of Technology for HBL, prior to which he was the Country Manager
for Cisco Systems Inc. in Pakistan for a number of years. Dr Matin
has also worked at senior levels with the Government serving as
the MD of the Pakistan Software Export Board as well as Advisor
on IT to the Federal Minister for IT and Telecommunications, Govt
of Pakistan during 2002-2006. His early career was with the United
Nations Development Program, working with countries in the Asia
Pacific region on the use of Information Technology to enhance
productivity in their public sectors.

Mr. Abid Ali Habib is the Chairman and Chief Executive of Abid Ali
Habib Securities (Private) Limited and the Director of Aba Ali Habib
Securities (Private) Limited.

Dr. Matin has a BS in Electronic Engineering, an MS in Computer
Engineering, and a PhD in Information Technology. He has taught
graduate level courses at some of the leading universities of the
country.

He played the central role in conceptualization, planning and
design of internet-based order routing system and also supervised,
implemented and tested Karachi Automated Trading System. As
member of Demutualization Committee of KSE during the years
2005, 2006 and 2010, Mr. Habib was the key figure in preparation of
Preliminary Report on proposed demutualization of KSE, identifying
various issues and recommendations thereon, in line with existing
models and international practices.

Mr. Habib has been nominated on CDC’s Board by the PSX’s Board of
Directors. At CDC, he also serves as Deputy President of Disciplinary
Tribunal and is a member of the Audit Committee. In the past, he
has been elected as Director of the Exchange (now PSX) for various
terms between the years 1995 and 2011. During these years, he
has served on various Committees constituted by the Board, as
Chairman or member.

Mr. Habib held in past the position of Chairman, Companies Affairs/
Corporate Governance Committee of KSE for the years 2010 and
2011. Some of the major achievements of this term included (i)
various amendments in Listing Regulations; (ii) amendments in the
Regulations related to price discovery; (iii) transparency in bidding
process for offer of securities by developing an In – House Software;
(iv) implementation of regulations in order to promote listing of
Privately Placed Debt Securities to QIB’s on Over – the – Counter
Market; (v) development of regulations for the promotion of listing
of securities; (vi) major amendments in the Criteria for Selection of
Top Companies were implemented; (vii) action against Delinquent
/ non – performing companies in violation of listing regulations
was incorporated; (viii) revision of listing fee; (ix) implementation of
regulations for verification of rumor mongering; and (x) amendments
in the Regulations pertaining to disclosure of information.
Presently, Mr. Habib is Chairman of Trading and Commercial
Affairs Committee and acting as a member of Human Resources &
Remuneration Committee, Investment Committee and Voluntary
Delisting Committee of PSX Board besides being an active member
of Divestment Committee.
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Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Farid Malik

Director

Director

Mr. Ahsan M. Saleem is Group Chief Executive of Crescent Steel
and Allied Products Limited and has over 33 years of extensive
industry experience. He is a leader in managing multiple, large
business operations in various sectors including Sugar, Textiles and
Engineering. He also serves on several professional Boards as a nonexecutive director.

Mr. Farid Malik has over two decades of diversified experience of
working on a number of infrastructure development, project finance,
corporate finance, capital markets regulatory, administrative and
operational assignments both in Pakistan and abroad.

Mr. Saleem is a fellow of the Institute of Directors, U.K, a member
of CEO’s organization, World Presidents Organization and 1001- a
nature trust.
Mr. Saleem is a strong supporter of education and is actively
involved in key leadership roles in local, regional and international
developmental organizations. He is one of the five founders of The
Citizens Foundation (TCF) and currently serves on its Board. He has
previously served as Chairman of the Board of TCF, for two terms.
He also serves as Trustee of COMMECS Education Trust, a notfor-profit trust formed by Old Students of Government College of
Commerce and Economics, providing tertiary level education in
Karachi. Mr. Saleem is a founding member and serves on the Board
of Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy.

Mr. Malik has worked with organizations including ABN AMRO Bank,
Tomen Power (Singapore) Pte. Limited, Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, Pakistan Electric Power Company Private
Limited and the Lahore Stock Exchange. During his various
assignments, he has had extensive exposure of green-field project
based equity investments, limited recourse debt financing facilities,
cross border project financing facilities including export credit
agencies and multilateral lending agencies financing facilities, risk
allocation & management techniques including hedging through
derivative instruments, due diligence methodologies, portfolio
management, equity and fixed income valuations, financial analysis,
asset securitization and capital market operations and regulations.
Currently, he is the Chief Executive Officer of LSE Financial Services
Limited (formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited). He also serves
on the Boards of National Bank of Pakistan Limited and National
Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited.
Mr. Malik has previously served on the Boards of the Privatization
Commission, the Gujranwala Electric Power Company Limited and
the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited. He has also attended
a large number of international and local management courses,
seminars and workshops conducted by world renowned providers.
He is a CFA charter-holder and a graduate of the London School of
Economics.
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Moin M. Fudda

Muhammad Tariq Rafi

Director

Director

Mr. Moin M. Fudda has over 40 years of unique blend of professional experience
which encompasses working for the corporate sector and performing diplomatic
duties. He has worked for American Internationals Group (AIG) in its head office
and as an Adjunct Assistant Professor at The College of Insurance in New York.
He has been the Executive Director - Reinsurance, Pakistan Insurance Corporation;
Country Chief of New Zealand Insurance and Commercial Union (now AVIVA) and
founder Managing Director of Commercial Union Life (now Jubilee Life Insurance).

Mr. Tariq Rafi is the Chairman of Siddiqsons Group
and is a recipient of the coveted Civil Award Sitarae-Imtiaz. He was awarded the prestigious Best
Businessman award for the year 1999 and best
Export Trophies between years 1980 to 2005. He
has recently been awarded the Privilege Card by the
Prime Minister of Islamic Republic of Pakistan for
being one of the top tax payers.

Mr. Fudda was nominee Director of Management Association of Pakistan (MAP)
on the Board of the then KSE in 1999-2000 and thereafter as its Managing Director
from 2002 to 2005. During the same period, on behalf of KSE, he was nominated
and elected as the Chairman of the Board of National Clearing Company of
Pakistan Limited and a founding Managing Director of the National Commodity
Exchange (now Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited). From September 2005 till
January 2016, he remained Country Director of Center for International Private
Enterprise (CIPE), an affiliate of US Chamber of Commerce. During 2015, SECP
nominated him on the Board of Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited where he was
elected as its Chairman and helped in integration of the three Stock Exchanges. He
is also a Director on the Board of Pak Suzuki Motor Co. Limited and an Independent
Director on the Board of Al-Meezan Investment Management Limited.

He is also the Honorary Consul General of Republic
of Serbia. He also serves on the Board of Directors
at MCB Bank Limited, Siddiqsons Limited, Siddiqsons
Tin Plate Limited, and Triple Tree (Pvt.) Limited (Ocean
Tower).

Earlier, Mr. Fudda held other prominent positions such as President of the Overseas
Investors Chamber of Commerce & Industry (OICCI), Management Association of
Pakistan (MAP), and the Karachi Boat Club. He has also been a Founding Director of
National Center for Disputes Resolution (NCDR formerly KCDR), a Board Member
of Privatization Commission and Board of Investment (Government of Pakistan),
Pakistan Institute of Management (PIM) and Federation of Pakistan Chamber of
Commerce & Industry (FPCCI). He helped in formation of Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance (PICG) where he is a Certified Corporate Governance Trainer
by International Finance Corporation (IFC) since 2010 and is a Member of Faculty.
Since 1990, he has been serving as the Honorary Consul General of New Zealand
for Pakistan. He is a Country Representative for SCOR – A Global Tier-1 Reinsurer.
He is a Member of Board of Directors of Karachi Council on Foreign Relations and a
Member, Executive Committee of English Speaking Union of Pakistan.
In 2006, Mr. Fudda was awarded Sitara-e-Imtiaz by the President of Pakistan. In
2002, he was recognized as the Honorary Officer of the New Zealand Order of Merit
(ONZM) and in 1990, NZ Commemoration Medal was conferred by the Queen of
New Zealand.
He holds an MBA (Insurance & Risk Management) from St. Jones University, New
York, and a B.S. (Insurance & Economics) from R.C.D. College of Insurance, Tehran.
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Muhammad Yasin Lakhani

Shahid Ghaffar

Director

Director

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani is the Chief Executive of Lakhani
Securities (Private) Limited. His previous experience includes the
position of President/Chairman of Karachi Stock Exchange (now
Pakistan Stock Exchange) during the years 1994, 1998-99, 2001 and
2005. In addition to above, he has been elected as director of KSE
several times during the years 1969-2012. He has also served as
Chairman of a number of committees of the Exchange for various
terms.
Mr. Lakhani was a member of Pakistan’s delegation in the Investment
Conferences held in Seoul, Hong Kong, Singapore and London. He also
represented Pakistan at the Asia Pacific Forum on Securities Market
Regulations & Supervision, General Assembly of the Euro Asia Stock
Markets and Capital Market Forum of Islamic Countries. Moreover, he
was a member of the Committee on Code of Corporate Governance
formed by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
Mr. Lakhani has played an instrumental role in helping set up the
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC), where he
served as Chairman as well as a member of its Board. He is credited
for introducing Investor Account Services in CDC in 1999. He has been
a founder member of National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
(NCCPL) as well. He is also the Chairman of Investment Committee and
a member of Taxation Committee, Voluntary De-listing Committee
and Divestment Committee of the Exchange. Currently, he serves as a
Director on the boards of CDC and NCCPL. He is also the President of
KSE Stockbrokers’ Association.
He holds the degrees of B.A. (Hons.) and Masters in International
Relations, both in 1st position and securing Gold medal in Masters.
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Mr. Shahid Ghaffar is the Managing Director of National Investment
Trust Limited (NITL). Prior to joining NIT, he was working as
Head of Investor Relations and Corporate Representation as
well as member of Management Forum at Habib Bank Limited
(HBL). He has also served as Chief Executive Officer of HBL Asset
Management Limited for over six years.
Mr. Ghaffar has held key positions in the areas of asset
management, capital market regulation and governance. At
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), he
served as Executive Director/Commissioner from 2000 to 2005
and played a vital role towards implementation of wide ranging
reforms in the Capital Market and capacity building of Securities
Market Division. While working as Managing Director/CEO Karachi
Stock Exchange during his two years’ tenure (1998-2000) he
introduced effective risk management measures and was also
instrumental in the automation of trading and enhancing capacity
building of the Exchange.
During the period 1977-1998, Mr. Ghaffar served NITL in different
capacities in the Asset Management Division and at various stages;
he was responsible for managing equity market portfolio, debt/
fixed income portfolio and the trading desk. In 1996, Mr. Ghaffar
was entrusted with the responsibility of Asset Management
Division. He actively participated in the reconstruction of NIT
during the crisis period i.e. 1996-1998.
Mr. Ghaffar holds a Masters Degree in Business Administration
from Gomal University – K.P.K, Pakistan. He has attended
several courses on Securities Regulations and Securities Markets
Development and Portfolio Management including the prestigious
course conducted by Securities and Exchange Commission, in
Washington, D.C. (USA)
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Shahnawaz Mahmood

Syed Majid Ali

Director

Director

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood is the Deputy Managing Director of the
Pak China Investment Company Limited. As an executive director, he
is involved in devising the strategic direction for company’s business
objectives as well as organizational management. He has been
instrumental in developing new initiatives such as advisory, private
equity and infrastructure financing. He has also played a vital role
in attracting Chinese investments in initiatives such as acquisition of
Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Syed Majid Ali, a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan, is serving as Chief Financial Officer at Faysal
Bank Limited. He has over 27 years of diversified experience of
progressively increasing responsibility in the accounts and finance
disciplines of banking, with exposure in Strategy, IT and HR activities.
He has been associated as a CFO with Emirates Bank International
and Saudi Pak Commercial Bank, as well as with KPMG as Partner.

Mr. Mahmood has previously been a part of the Public Private
Partnership (PPP) initiative for infrastructure development by
the Government of Pakistan. In his role as the Head of Projects at
the Infrastructure Project Development Facility (IPDF), Ministry of
Finance, he had been responsible for developing and facilitating
national PPP policy, sectoral initiatives and project portfolio for
private sector investment. He has done extensive research work
on corporate governance in Pakistan and has played an important
role in implementing United Nations Development Program (UNDP)
project on corporate governance with the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP). He is also the recipient of CIDA’s
President Award of Excellence awarded by the Canadian government
in recognition of his work on debt swap.

He is a member of the Income Tax Bar Association, Karachi, Accounting
and Taxation Committee of Pakistan Banking Association, Taxation
Committee of Pakistan Business Council and Taxation Committee of
the Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce and Industry (OICCI).

Mr. Mahmood is a Chartered Banker from Chartered Banker
Institute, UK and holds MBA (Executive) and MSc Finance and
Economics degrees from UK. He has also attended investment and
risk management training courses at Harvard Business School and
INSEAD.
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Management

Abdul Samad

Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Officer

Badiuddin Akbar
Chief Compliance & Risk Officer
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Head of Trustee & Custodial Services
Unit-II & Share Registrar Services

Syed Asif Shah
Chief Information Officer

Atiqur Rehman
Head of Trustee & Custodial Services
Unit-I

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited | Annual Report 2017

Junaid Shekha

20
years

Shariq Jafrani

CEO - ITMinds Limited

CFO & Company Secretary

Shariq Naseem

M. Anwar Gopalani

Head of Product Development & Marketing

Chief Human Resource Officer

Farooq Hussain

Hammad Ali Faisal

Head of Administration

Chief Internal Auditor
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CDC Timeline

1993
Experts from PriceWaterhouseCoopers conducted a study to
develop a conceptual framework for the depository. The United
States Agency for International Development (USAID) sponsors
the study and the report lays the foundation for depository
design.

1994
The Board of Directors at CDC award a turnkey contract to an IBM
consortium for the implementation of the depository system in
Pakistan. The IBM consortium proposes a comprehensive Master
Implementation Plan to the CDC Board after a detailed analysis of
National requirements, Company & Banking laws, Regulations &
Procedures and Financial Organizational aspects of the project.

1995
Master Implementation Plan approved.

1997
• Promulgation of Central Depositories Ordinance & Central
Depositories Act.
• Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations
developed and approved by the Corporate Law Authority
(Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan).
• September 3 –Central Depository System launched.

1999
• Launches Investor Account Services for individual and
corporate investors enabling them to directly open and
maintain accounts with CDC in Central Depository System
for electronic settlement of securities.
• Induction of Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) into CDS.

2000
• Development of CDC Contingency Site.
• Introduction of Electronic Merger of Securities Facility in CDS.

2002
• Launches Trustee & Custodial Services for Mutual Funds,
initially with two open-ended mutual funds with net
assets value of Rs. 500 million.
• Introduction of Consolidation / Sub-division of Securities.
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2008
• Launches Share Registrar Services for issuers and their shareholders.
• Introduces Fund Management System.
• CDC conducts Customer Satisfaction & Brand Awareness Survey through Gallop.
According to survey results, CDC is rated Pakistan’s most recognized and prominent
financial brand.

2007
• Completed a decade of CDS operations.
• Holds ‘Capital Market Days’ in London and New York.
• Introduces Secure ID Token for further security of CDS
Terminals.
• Development of UIN (Universal Identification Number) for
Corporate.

2006
• Hosts 10th Annual General Meeting of Asia-Pacific Central
Securities Depositories Group (ACG) in Karachi.
• Holds ‘Investment Road Shows’ in Dubai and Abu Dhabi.
• An independent brand-recall survey published in ‘Money’
magazine rates CDC as one of the top four brands in the country’s
Investment Sector.
• Launches CDC access IVR and Web.
• Inauguration of Lahore Office.

2005
• Series of Investment Road Shows in major cities of Pakistan.
• Deployment of Re-engineered Central Depository System.
• Inducts Open-end Mutual Funds in CDS.

2004
Implementation of National Clearing & Settlement
System (NCSS).

2003
• Introduction of Element Training Program for
CDS users.
• Inducts WAPDA bonds into CDS.
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CDC Timeline

2009
• Becomes ISO/IEC 27001:2005 certified for overall depository
operations including functional, technical and legal aspects.
• Implements Induction of Unpaid Rights in Central Depository
System.
• CDC’s Trustee & Custodial Services (T&C) acquires 100 funds.

2010
• Exponentially reduces Services Tariff.
• Inducts National Savings Bonds in CDS.
• Holds 3rd Pakistan Day Conference in New York.
• Becomes ACCA Approved Employer.
• ITMinds Limited becomes Microsoft Gold Certified Partner and IBM
Premier Business Partner.
• Elected as Executive Committee Member of Asia Pacific
Depositories Group.
• Introduces new Automated Mechanism of Securities Transfer in
CDS.

2011
• Integration of Standard Chartered (Pakistan) Bank’s
Straight 2 Bank with CDC’s Fund Management System.
• Government of Punjab appoints CDC as trustee for
Punjab Pension Fund.
• Co-hosts First Pakistan IPO Summit with LSE.
• ITMinds becomes a subsidiary of CDC [IT Consultancy &
Implementation Services].
• Introduces Free of Cost eStatement and eAlert facilities
for CDS Account Holders.
• Receives CPD Approved Employer status from ACCA
Pakistan.

2012
• Becomes Custodian of over One Hundred Billion Securities worth over 21
billion dollars.
• Becomes First Company in Pakistan to get BS 25999 certification – the
British Standard for Business Continuity Management.
• Completes 15 years of successful operations.
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2017
• Launches CDC Access Mobile App.
• Launches Centralized eIPO System (CES).
• Acquires ISO 22301 certification for Business Continuity
Management Program.

2016
• Acquires International Standards for Assurance Engagement
(ISAE) Certification.
• Launches of Urdu Website.
• Organizes Pakistan Investor Days in Dubai.
• Organizes Investor Awareness Seminar at Abbottabad Expo.
• Discretionary / Non-Discretionary Portfolios under custody hit
the 100 mark.

2015
• Launches Online Transactions service through Web.
• CDC becomes Trustee of Dolmen City REIT.
• CDC Trusteeship exceeds Rs. 500 Billion.
• Launches Abbottabad Sarmayakari Markaz.
• Acquires ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Certification.
• Introduces Direct Settlement Services.

2014
• Initiates settlement services for Government Securities traded on
PSX.
• Conducts Investor Road Shows in 6 major cities of Punjab.
• CDC Employees conduct Disaster Relief activities for Thar Drought
affectees.

2013
• Celebrates 15 years of successful operations through a series of events.
• Teams up with CFA Institute for Employee Development.
• Extends scope of ISO 27001 Certification.
• Signs MoU with Life Insurance companies for Centralized Information Sharing Solution.
• CDC becomes Secretariat of Asia-Pacific Central Securities Depositories Group (ACG) for 2014-16.
• Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura, CEO-CDC elected as the Executive Committee Chairman of ACG.
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Company Information
CFO & Company Secretary
Shariq Jafrani

Registered Office
CDC House
99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S.,
Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi-74400

Legal Advisors
M/s. Orr, Dignam & Co.
Advocates

M/s. A.K. Brohi & Co.
Legal Consultants & Advocates

M/s. Bawaney & Partners
Advocates & Investment & Corporate Advisers

Auditors
Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

M/s. Mohsin Tayebaly & Co.
Corporate Legal Consultant / Barristers
& Advocate High Courts & Supreme Court
M/s. Ijaz Ahmed & Associates

Bankers
Bank Alfalah Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited

Advocates & Legal Consultants

M/s. Mandviwala & Zafar
Advocates

Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

M/s. Hassan Kaunain Nafees

MCB Bank Limited

Legal Practitioners & Advisors

National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
United Bank Limited

M/s. Shah & Michael Law Firm
Advocate

M/s. Ahmed & Qazi
Advocates & Legal Consultants
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Shareholding
S.no

Shareholders

Total No. of
Shares Held

% of
Shareholding

1.

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited *

39,807,999

39.81

2.

Habib Bank Limited *

11,346,001

11.35

3.

MCB Bank Limited *

10,000,000

10.00

4.

LSE Financial Services Limited *

9,999,999

10.00

5.

National Investment Trust Limited

6,346,000

6.35

6.

Industrial Development Bank Limited

5,000,000

5.00

7.

NIB Bank Limited

5,000,000

5.00

8.

Pak China Investment Company Limited*

5,000,000

5.00

9.

Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited *

2,749,999

2.75

10.

ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited

2,500,000

2.50

11.

Allied Bank Limited

1,000,000

1.00

12.

IGI Insurance Limited

649,998

0.65

13.

Innovative Investment Bank Limited

500,000

0.50

14.

Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Limited

100,000

0.10

15.

Others **

4

-

Total

100,000,000

100%

*The figures include number of shares allotted in the names of nominee directors representing their institutions.
** Independent Directors

Audit Committee
S.no

Name

Designation

1.

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Chairman

2.

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Member

3.

Mr. Farid Malik

Member

4.

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

Member

5.

Syed Majid Ali

Member

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
S.no

Name

Designation

1.

Mr. Husain Lawai

Chairman

2.

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

3.

Dr. Aamir Matin*

Member

4.

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

Member

*Appointed subsequent to the year end.
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Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
S.no

Name

Designation

1.

Mr. Husain Lawai

Chairman

2.

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

3.

Mr. Farid Malik

Member

4.

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Member

5.

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

Member

6.

Syed Majid Ali

Member

Disciplinary Panel/Tribunal
[Formed under the CDC Regulations for the purpose of conducting Disciplinary Proceedings]

S.no
1.

Name

Designation

Mr. Farid Malik*

President

2.

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Deputy President

3.

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Member

4.

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

Member

5.

Syed Majid Ali

Member

*Appointed subsequent to the year end.

Nomination and Compensation Committee for the Board
S.no
1.

Name

Designation

Mr. Husain Lawai

Chairman

2.

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

3.

Dr. Aamir Matin*

Member

4.

Syed Majid Ali

Member

*Appointed subsequent to the year end.

Investment Committee
S.no

Name

Designation

1.

Mr. Husain Lawai

Chairman

2.

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

3.

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Member

4.

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Member

5.

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani

Member
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Regulatory Affairs Committee
S.no

Name

Designation

1.

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Chairman

2.

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

3.

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

Member

4.

Syed Majid Ali

Member

Management Committee
S.no

Name

Designation

1.

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Chairman

2.

Mr. Abdul Samad

Member

3.

Mr. Atiqur Rehman

Member

4.

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Member

5.

Mr. Farooq Hussain

Member

6.

Mr. Hammad Ali Faisal

Member

7.

Mr. Junaid Shekha

Member

8.

Mr. M. Anwar Gopalani

Member

9.

Mr. Shariq Jafrani

Member

10.

Mr. Shariq Naseem

Member

11.

Syed Asif Shah

Member

Executive Steering Committee
S.no

Name

Designation

1.

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Chairman

2.

Mr. Atiqur Rehman

Member

3.

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Member

4.

Mr. Shariq Jafrani

Member

5.

Mr. Shariq Naseem

Member

6.

Syed Asif Shah

Member
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Operational Highlights

Key Figures As of June 30, 2017

134

5,993

In Billion

Rs. In Billion

* excluding GoP holding

Total Number of Shares in CDS

Total Market Capitalization
of Shares in CDS

128

86

In Million

Percentage of Shares in
CDS with reference to
Share Capital*

Units of Open-End
Funds in CDS

84

282,651

In Million

Number of Sub-Accounts

Units of TFCs, Sukuks
& Bonds in CDS

51,022
Number of Investor Accounts

40
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79

3,305

Total Number
of Securities in IAS

Total Market Capitalization
of Securities in IAS

144

173

Number of Securities
in Share Registrar Services

Number of Funds under
Trusteeship

In Billion

Rs. In Billion

775

130

Rs. In Billion

Number of Discretionary
Portfolio Clients under
Trusteeship

Net Assets of Funds /
Discretionary Portfolio Clients
Under Custody

41

Central
Depository
System
(CDS)
As of June 30, 2017

CDS Elements
Securities (Issuer)

845

Participants/Account Holders

643

Eligible Pledgees

94

Breakup of Securities in CDS

42

Ordinary Shares

698

Sukuk & Term Finance Certificates

93

Open End Mutual Funds

35

Preference Shares

18

Bonds

1

20
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Transactions handled through CDS

During the Year 2016 - 17

843,278

No. of Transaction
Volume in Billion

542,782

60,147
4.10
Deposit

52.28
FD InterParticipant

74,666
6.66
FD IntraAccount

29.22

0.13

Pledge

1,061

Withdrawal

Investor
Account
Services
(IAS)
as on June 30, 2017
No. of Accounts
No. of Securities (in Billion)
Market Capitalization of Securities
(Rs. in Billion)

49,487
2,232.61

1,535

16.78
Individual

1,072.55

62.69
Corporate

43

As of June 30, 2017

Activations

Facts & Figures for IAS Clients
No. of IAS A/C

51,022

Activation of IVR /Web

29,147

Activation of SMS

41,122

Facts & Figures for Sub Account Holders

44

No. of Sub Accounts

282,651

Activation of IVR /Web

76,820

Activation of SMS

215,754
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Six
Years
Operational
Data
As of June 30, 2017
Six Years Operational Data

Jun 17

Jun 16

Jun 15

Jun 14

Jun 13

Jun 12

Participants/Account Holders

643

657

651

575

690

656

Eligible Pledgees

94

94

95

97

97

100

CDS Live Securities

845

822

819

811

801

777

133.94

128.68

117.73

110.35

107.12

99.17

5,992.68

4,938.23

4,649.56

3,852.07

2,706.37

1,847.20

Units of TFCs, Sukuks, Bonds & Open-End Funds in CDS
(in Million)

211.63

238.98

268.92

368.98

272.48

263.98

Investor Accounts (individual and corporate)

51,022

50,144

51,262

50,681

48,848

47,943

Number of Securities in IAS (in Billion)

79.47

74.15

50.02

43.93

41.31

38.23

Market Capitalization of Securities in IAS (Rs. in Billion)

3,305

2,681

2,234

1,776

1,223

862

Number of Sub Accounts (Individual & Corporate)

282,651

267,906

260,792

240,441

242,019

227,616

Number of Funds / DP Clients under Trusteeship

303

254

224

180

148

143

Number of Securities in Share Registrar Services

144

126

109

102

82

50

Number of Shares in CDS (in Billion)
Market Capitalization of Shares in CDS (Rs. in Billion)

45

Human
Resources
As of June 30, 2017

Number of Employees
Location-wise Distribution
Karachi

377

Lahore

15

Islamabad

7

Abbotabad

3

500
400

358
306

300

380
342

346

327

381

400

402

341 336

283
239
211

200

170
116

100
0

46

56

135

165

186

62

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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Financial Highlights
FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED ON JUNE 30
2017

2016

BALANCE SHEET
Shareholders Equity

2015

2014

2013

2012

Rupees in Million
2,951.98

2,367.96

2,131.32

1,872.55

1,740.77

1,697.62

719.54

465.86

475.08

483.99

492.57

502.91

1,321.74

988.01

970.98

970.47

975.43

992.10

153.71

149.03

117.67

662.67

86.42

140.73

2,982.73

2,307.26

2,096.13

1,180.37

1,573.19

1,454.42

Non-Current Liabilities

228.58

182.94

197.69

183.26

186.86

196.63

Current Liabilities

558.08

427.54

380.70

273.71

214.83

190.09

Surplus on Revaluation of Property & Equipments
Fixed Assets
Other Non-Current Assets
Current Assets

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Rupees in Million

Total Income

1,987.62

1,658.95

1,534.06

1,232.84

1,059.22

975.75

Total Expenses

1,069.43

953.49

868.72

755.80

691.87

633.50

Profit Before Taxation

918.19

705.46

665.34

477.04

367.35

342.25

Profit After Taxation

608.71

459.46

431.74

329.03

244.11

224.18

DIVIDEND
Cash
Bonus
Payout Ratio (%age of profit after tax)

Rupees in Million
183.00

20.00

211.25

195.00

195.00

195.00

60.90

350.00

-

-

-

-

30

4

49

59

80

87

INFORMATION PER ORDINARY SHARE

Rupees

Earnings (pre tax)

9.18

7.05

6.65

4.77

3.67

3.42

Earnings (post tax)

6.09

4.59

4.32

3.29

2.44

2.24

29.52

23.68

21.31

18.73

17.41

16.98

Break-up Value

48
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Shareholders Equity

Assets

Years ended 30 June

3000

years

Years ended 30 June
3000

Rupees in Million

Rupees in Million

2500

2500

2000

2000

1500

1500

1000

1000

500

500

0

0
2017
2,951.98

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2,367.96

2,131.32

1,872.55

1,740.77

1,697.62

Liabilities

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Fixed Assets

1,321.74

988.01

970.98

970.47

975.43

992.10

Other Non-Current Assets

153.71
2,982.73

149.03
2,307.26

117.67
2,096.13

662.67
1,180.37

86.42
1,573.19

140.73
1,454.42

Current Assets

Total Income-Total Expenses

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

Rupees in Million

2000
600

Rupees in Million

1500

500
400

1000

300

500

200
100

0

0
2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Non-Current Liabilities

228.58

182.94

197.69

183.26

186.86

196.63

Current Liabilities

558.08

427.54

380.70

273.71

214.83

190.09

Earning per Share (EPS)

Total Income
Total Expenses

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

1,987.62
1,069.43

1,658.95
953.49

1,534.06
868.72

1,232.84
755.80

1,059.22
691.87

975.75
633.50

Net Profit Margin

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

10

Rupees

35%

Percentages

30%

8

25%

6

20%

4

15%

2

10%
5%

0
2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Earnings (pre tax)

9.18

7.05

6.65

4.77

3.67

Earnings (post tax)

6.09

4.59

4.32

3.29

2.44

0%

0%

3.42

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2.24

30.63%

27.70%

28.14%

26.69%

23.05%

22.98%
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Break-up Value

Profits

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

30

Rupees

1000

Rupees in Million

800

25
20

600

15

400

10

200

5

0

0
2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Proﬁt before taxation

29.52

23.68

21.31

18.73

17.41

16.98

Proﬁt after taxation

Short Term Solvency Ratio

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

705.46
459.46

665.34
431.74

477.04
329.03

367.35
244.11

342.25
224.18

Return on Equity

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

In Times

8

2017
918.19
608.71

7

Percentages

25%
20%

6
5

15%

4

10%

3
2

5%

1
0

0%

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Current Ratio

5.34

5.40

5.51

4.31

7.32

7.65

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Quick Ratio

5.31

5.34

5.43

4.23

7.22

7.53

22.81%

21.01%

22.08%

18.21%

14.20%

13.54%

Debt to Equity Ratio

Return on Assets

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June
In Times

0.12

20%
Percentages

0.10
15%

0.08
0.06

10%

0.04
5%

0.02
0%

0.00

50

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

0.08

0.08

0.09

0.10

0.11

0.12

15.41%

13.86%

14.40%

12.08%

9.35%

10.01%
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Sources of Revenue Earned

Years ended 30 June

Rupees in Million
1,096.47

CDS Operations
Trustee & Custodial Services

580.75

Other Income

145.11

Investor Account Services

100.32

Share Registrar fee

64.99

Application of Revenue earned

Years ended 30 June

Rupees in Million
1,987.62

Revenue

% Change in Income Since 2012

Years ended 30 June

Expenses other than
Depreciation & Amortization

934.92

Net Profit

608.71

Tax Expense

309.48

Depreciation & Amortisation

134.51

% Change in expense Since 2012

Years ended 30 June

120%
80%

100%

60%

80%
60%

40%

40%

20%

20%

0%

0%
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

5.88%

14.94%

33.78%

66.47%

80.02%

103.70%

-20%

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

(3.29%)

5.62%

15.38%

32.62%

45.56%

68.81%
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Six Years Financial Summary
2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Profit Before Tax as a % of Revenue

46.20%

42.52%

43.37%

38.69%

34.68%

35.08%

Net Profit to Sales %

30.63%

27.70%

28.14%

26.69%

23.05%

22.98%

EBITDA Margin to Sales

57.13%

55.49%

56.37%

54.10%

53.48%

54.84%

Debtors Turnover Ratio (times per year)

7.93

8.23

9.29

8.47

9.33

10.98

Operating Leverage Ratio

1.28

0.65

1.54

1.52

0.65

4.76

Return on Equity

22.81%

21.01%

22.08%

18.21%

14.20%

13.56%

Return on Capital Employed

18.16%

15.79%

16.16%

13.27%

10.13%

10.85%

46.04

44.36

39.31

43.09

39.13

33.23

53.80%

57.48%

55.74%

60.52%

64.61%

64.16%

Current Ratio

5.34

5.40

5.51

4.31

7.32

7.65

Quick/Acid Test Ratio

5.31

5.34

5.43

4.23

7.22

7.53

Cash to Current Liabilities

4.63

4.64

4.87

3.48

4.24

4.33

Cash Flow from Operation to Sales

0.40

0.34

0.41

0.39

0.35

0.39

15.41%

13.86%

14.40%

12.08%

9.35%

10.01%

Earning per Share (before tax)

9.18

7.05

6.65

4.77

3.67

3.42

Earning per Share (after tax)

6.09

4.59

4.32

3.29

2.44

2.24

30

4

49

59

80

87

Cash Dividend per Share

1.83

0.20

2.11

1.95

1.95

1.95

Stock Dividend per Share

0.61

3.50

-

-

-

-

Dividend Cover Ratio

3.33

22.94

2.04

1.69

1.25

1.15

29.52

23.68

21.31

18.73

17.41

16.98

Net Assets per Share

36.72

28.34

26.06

23.57

22.33

22.01

Debt to Equity Ratio

0.08

0.08

0.09

0.10

0.11

0.12

Profitability Ratios

Debtors Collection Period (Days)
Expense as a % of Revenue Expense Including
Depreciation & Excluding Tax & WWF

Liquidity Ratios

Return on Assets

Investment / Market Ratios

Dividend Payout Ratio

Breakup Value per Share without Surplus
on Revaluation of Fixed Assets

Capital Structure Ratios
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Directors’ Report
The Directors of Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited are pleased to present the Company’s
Annual Report and Annual Audited Unconsolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2017.
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ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
Economy of Pakistan has continued the growth momentum
with most of the macroeconomic indicators improving or
remaining stable. GDP growth reached to 5.28 percent in
FY 2017 which is the highest in last 10 years, on the back
of rebound growth in agriculture sector which registered a
growth of 3.46 percent against the growth of 0.27 percent last
year. Industrial sector witnessed the growth of 5.02 percent
against 5.80 percent last year, large scale manufacturing
posted growth of 5.06 percent against 4.60 percent last year,
while Services sector surpassed its target and recorded 5.98
percent growth as compared to 5.55 percent last year. The
target GDP growth is set at 6 percent for FY 2018.
Keeping in view the macroeconomic stability and inflation
rate expected to remain within the target range of 4.25
percent - 4.5 percent, the monetary policy commission kept
the policy rate at 5.75 percent. The fiscal deficit which had
been reduced to 4.6 percent of GDP in FY2016 from 8.1
percent in FY2013 is under pressure on the back of rising
international oil prices and reduced remittances from nonresident Pakistanis. However, the target set for FY2018 is
4.1 percent which indicates government commitment to
introduce measures for further fiscal consolidation.

with the reclassification to MSCI Emerging Markets Index. The
gradual implementation of CPEC projects is also expected
to boost GDP growth and rejuvenate investor interest in all
sectors of the economy, in particular those related to energy
and construction.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
We are pleased to announce that CDC had another successful
year of operations where CDC continued to achieve all time
high revenue and profits. The company’s revenue for the
year 2016-17 is Rs. 1,988 million against Rs. 1,659 million of
previous year showing a growth of 20%. The profit before
and after tax is Rs. 918 million and Rs. 609 million respectively
showing the growth of 30% and 33% respectively compared
to the previous year’s results.

Year

In the equity market, Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX)
performance had been exceptional in the previous year.
Ever highest PSX Index was recorded at 52,689 points. In the
start of the current fiscal year due to political uncertainty,
the benchmark index experienced significant correction,
declining from 50,000 points to 43,000 points.
The size of Mutual Fund Industry has continued to grow with
an impressive growth of 37% and reached to PKR 723 billion
on June 30, 2017 from PKR 527 billion last year.
Future encouraging indicators for the capital market include
expected inflows from foreign investments in connection

2016

2015

Rupees in million
Revenue

1,988

1,659

1,534

Expenses

1,070

953

868

918

706

665

PBT

CAPITAL MARKET OVERVIEW
Continuing on from the previous year, SECP undertook
major reforms in the legal framework governing various
institutions in the capital market, mostly focusing on refining
rules and regulations to meet the challenges of the modern
capital market environment. The most prominent initiative
was the promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017 which
introduced sweeping changes to bring the companies in line
with global best practices. Other major reforms included the
Limited Liability Partnership Act, Public Offering Regulations,
Share Registrars and Balloters Regulations and regulatory
framework for forward looking projects such as Collateral
Management Companies, eVoting and Centralized Consumer
Protection Compensation Fund among others.

2017

2000

1600

1200

800

400

0

2017

2016

2015
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Financial Highlights
June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

Rupees in ‘000’
Operating income

1,842,514

1,492,076

1,365,339

Less: Operating and administrative expenses

1,045,745

935,253

837,590

Operating profit

796,769

556,823

527,749

Other income

145,110

166,868

168,721

Less: Other expenses

23,685

18,234

31,130

Profit before income tax

918,194

705,457

665,340

Less: Income tax expense

309,480

246,000

233,600

Profit for the year

608,714

459,457

431,740

6.09

4.59

4.32

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (in Rs.)

A tabular presentation reflecting revenue growth of its main segments over the years is as follows:
Revenue sources

CAGR

Depository Services

20.19

1,204

996

934

738

577

Trustee & Custodial Services

16.91

581

462

403

326

311

Share Registrar Services

34.27

65

40

34

27
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Growth in Central Depository System
CDC has changed the face of the Capital Market in the country
with Central Depository System brought unprecedented
efficiency and transparency to the market processes. With
advancements and new products, it is continuing to improve
investors’ faith in the market processes and ushering the
capital Market into a new phase of development. The number
of shares in CDS is at the highest level in CDC’s history as
depicted in the below graph.
Shares in CDS (Billion)
2017

134

2016

129

2015

118

2014

110

2013

107

2012

99

2013

2012

150
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MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS

2017

First ISO 22301 certiﬁed Company
Number one RTA Service provider
Submission of Free Float data
through CDS

Urdu translation of CDC
Regulations

Element Training Program 2016

Online Right Subscription
Extension of Non-life Insurance
Companies in CISSII

Trustee and Custodial services’
Net Assets reached to
Rs. 775 billion

Sub-account opening facility
through banks

Launch of Centralized eIPO System

Launch of CDC Urdu Website
Promotion of CDC Access Mobile App
Introduction of eVoting facility
ICAP Approved Employer

2016
Technological Advancements
CDC becomes Pakistan’s first ISO22301 certified
company
CDC has become Pakistan’s first organization to be certified
with the ISO22301 international standard for its Business
Continuity Management program. This certification has
been awarded by SGS Pakistan and accredited by the United
Kingdom Accreditation Service after series of comprehensive
audits. It is important to highlight that in 2012 CDC was also
the only organization in Pakistan to obtain BS 25999. This
accreditation is a global endorsement of CDC’s readiness to
handle a variety of natural and man-made disaster situations
in a well-structured manner.

CDC Access Mobile Application
CDC launched MAccess, a mobile application for its CDC
Access web portal, to offer greater convenience to Capital
Market investors. CDC account holders can now manage their
CDC account via their mobile phones. The mobile application
has been developed on both Android and IoS platforms and
can be used by both IAS and Sub Account Holders.

Online Rights Subscription for Investor Account
As part of an initiative to automate all existing manual
processes, CDC offered the facility of Online Rights
Subscription Request through CDC Web Access portal
to its IAS account holders. Investor Account holders can
now directly place and manage their Subscription and
Cancellation Requests online till last day of payment defined
for the security.
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IT Infrastructure Upgrade
The technology infrastructure at CDC serves as the backbone
for its entire business services. In order to provide highly
reliable and secure services to its diversified clientele,
CDC continuously upgrade and enhance its technology
infrastructure using best in class products and services.
This technology refresh includes enterprise storage, access
management, firewalls & intrusion prevention systems,
Network & Security Operation Center, Android & iOS mobile
apps, multi-browser support for CDC Access, content &
workflow management, STP with partner organizations,
database platform migration, etc.

Investor / Client Facilitation
CDC facilitating Sub-Account Opening Facility
through Banks
To increase Capital Market outreach and convenience for
retail investors, CDC initiated the drive to pursue banks to
offer Sub Account Opening facility through their branches. As
a result, CDC signed a Depository Participant agreement with
United Bank Limited (UBL) through which UBL customers can
open accounts with CDC and conduct transactions through
designated UBL branches. Moreover, this service allows
UBL branches to provide custodial services to its customers,
fulfilling their needs regarding safe custody of securities.
Summit Bank, BankIslami Pakistan and Bank Al-Habib also
initiated similar facilities for their customers.

Element Training Program 2016
CDC has always strived to enhance the understanding of
our valued clients regarding the rules, regulations and
procedures governing the operations of CDC. In 2016, CDC
conducted its flagship Element Training Program for CDS
Elements (Participants, Issuers and Pledgees) in Karachi,
Lahore and Islamabad.

Urdu Translation of CDC Regulations
CDC Regulations were translated into native language i.e.
Urdu which are now available for general public on our
website.

Launch of CDC Urdu Website
CDC developed and launched an Urdu version of its corporate
website in September 2016. This will cater to a vast portion
of the country’s investor base and will serve to make CDC’s
website more accessible and user-friendly.

Investor Awareness and Cultivation
Investor Education
As an infrastructure institution of Pakistan’s Capital Market,
spreading awareness about the financial market operations
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and available investment avenues is one of the core
commitments of CDC. This year the Company conducted
awareness sessions for general public in various cities across
Pakistan including Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad, Gujranwala,
Gujrat, Sargodha, Peshawar, and Rawalpindi. Separate
awareness sessions were also organized for various
academic and professional bodies.
CDC also regularly organizes financial literacy workshops
in Karachi and Lahore. This year a workshop about ‘RIBAFree Investment’ was initiated in collaboration with NBFI &
Modaraba Association of Pakistan. The other two workshops
that CDC conducts regularly are ‘Money Matters’ and
‘Orientation of Mutual Funds’ in collaboration with MUFAP.

Capital Market Expos
To help broaden investor base of the Pakistan Capital
Market, CDC organized three large scale Capital Market
Expos in the cities of Faisalabad, Sialkot and Peshawar in
collaboration with the respective Chambers of Commerce
and Industry, bringing together several key Capital Market
representatives on board to share their insights and
thoughts about investment avenues and opportunities
available in the financial market. Awareness Seminar along
with grand exhibition area was organized at all three events
for the session participants. Several leading capital market
entities participated in the exhibition including stock brokers
and Asset Management Companies, along with Pakistan
Stock Exchange and Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.

Investor Awareness Campaign through Print Media
CDC conducted multiple campaigns for Investor Education
and Awareness through print media advertisements in
Pakistan’s leading newspapers (both Urdu and English) in
collaboration with SECP informing current and potential
investors about their rights, risks and responsibilities.

Business Innovation / Process
Improvements
Centralized eIPO System (CES)
To make investing in Capital Market easier and convenient,
CDC developed a Centralized eIPO System (CES). Through
CES, applications for subscription of shares offered to
general public can be made electronically and payments
can be made by Internet, Mobile banking, ATMs etc. of CES
partner banks, avoiding the hassle of physical submission of
IPO application and visiting the bank. Through CES, CDC aims
to help increase the outreach of IPOs, promote the culture
of keeping securities in book-entry form and make the IPO
process more user-friendly and efficient.
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Free Float

Share Registrar Services

CDC launched the functionality of Free Float in 2017
to facilitate the Capital Market. It is now a mandatory
requirement of Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) that every
listed company shall submit to PSX the break-up of FreeFloat shares on a quarterly basis through Central Depository
System.

After taking a slow start the Share Registrar Services has
started gaining momentum and now cater to 144 securities,
including various highly capitalized companies, making it the
number one R/TA service provider in the market.
160
140

Other Businesses

120
100

Trustee and Custodial Services
Net Assets under Custody reach at PKR 775 billion as on
June 30, 2017
Assets under CDC Trusteeship have increased by 37%
(including Punjab Pension Fund Trust) from PKR 546 billion in
FY15-16 to PKR 746 billion in FY16-17 with total funds under
trusteeship reaching 173 marking 97% of market share.
Trusteeship / custodial fee provides visible support to the
overall revenues of the company as its contribution is 29% in
current year’s revenue of Rs. 1,988 Million.
Whereas on the front of Custodian clients, number of
discretionary portfolio (DP) clients are increasing day by
day wherein CDC have already captured large market share
as our clientele have reached to 130 in FY16-17 from 87
last year. Similarly Assets under custody of Discretionary
clients have reached to PKR. 29 billion from PKR. 19 billion
of previous year.
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E-voting for shareholders
CDC has introduced an online application through which
shareholders can participate virtually in AGM / EOGM of any
listed company and can vote online for any resolution.

Centralized Information Sharing Solution for
Insurance Industry (CISSII)
350

Extension for Non-Life Insurance Companies
After successful launch of CISSII software for Life Insurance
companies in 2014, a new register was added in CISSII titled
“Group Health Insurance Claims Experience Register” to
make Non-Life Insurance companies part of the system. The
information sharing in this register is aimed at facilitating the
pricing and underwriting functions of non-life insurers while
reducing the risks.

300
250
200
150
100

ITMinds Limited

50
0

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Total number of funds and DP clients
2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

303

254

224

180

148

143

2012

ITMinds has shown significant improvement since last year,
which is indicated by the fact that at the end of the financial
year 2015-16, ITMinds had 10 funds with the fund size of
Rs. 20 billion, which has reached to 12 funds with Rs. 30
billion as at June 30, 2017. After the successful induction
of all the funds of Atlas Asset Management Company last
year, ITMinds Limited has made a break through this year
as well and started providing back office services to Alfalah
GHP Investment Management Limited. ITMinds has recently
diversified its portfolio to provide accounting function for the
retirement benefit schemes being managed by organizations
for their employees. Pitching this service line will lead to
diversification of ITMinds portfolio from Asset Management
industry to other sectors of the service industry and will
increase its brand image.
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Risk Management
CDC fully recognizes the importance of an effective risk
management function and has employed various levels of
security mechanisms to protect its information assets and
technology infrastructure from potential risks and hazards.
Regular guidelines are issued encompassing risk policies,
risk management methodologies and tools for increasing
employee awareness.
CDC maintained its strong emphasis on internal controls
and third party verifications. Besides continuous IT Audits by
the Internal Audit team, CDC successfully conducted Annual
Review, penetration testing and source code reviews by
external Auditors / Consultants.
CDC is the first SRO in capital Market who has adopted
ISAE 3402 and developed the comprehensive Enterprise
Risk Registers which will assist in re-characterization of
risk sensitivity, applied controls and its mitigation. We are
now in the process of obtaining certification by external
auditor in this regard. During the year we closely reviewed
and monitored the risk of various business activities mainly
focusing on operational, legal and reputational risk.
In order to further protect the Company from any monetary
loss, CDC has also obtained risk insurance policy covering
computer crimes, professional indemnity and employee
infidelity from reputed insurance company.

Regulatory Reform
CDC regularly revamps its Regulations to keep them in
line with the needs and requirements of the changing
business environment. We have also proposed number of
amendments in CD Act and are in liaison with the SECP on the
proposed changes to expand the horizon of the Depository
business.

corporate sector along with audit firms. This way the students
would have a wide exposure and required expertise while
entering any corporate sector once they have completed
their training period and qualification.
CDC ensured resiliency for its critical operations by internal
rotation of staff and assignment of cross functional projects
and arranged local/international trainings to its various staff
to maintain its leadership position.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENTS
We are profoundly focused on the empowerment of our
customers, their success and enrichment of their lives as well
as of the entire community in a broader sense. We consider
the community and society as our creditors, to whom we
have to pay back in lieu of the resources they have loaned
to us.
Bearing the above, our endeavors are fully aligned. CDC
contributes 2.5% of profit before tax to support philanthropic
activities. We support a broad range of initiatives in the area
of health, education, and environment protection as we
believe they provide the fundamental building blocks for the
development of society.

The Right to Learn
CDC sponsored the construction of a school in collaboration
with The Citizens Foundation (TCF) in Tapo Azeem Shah,
Mirpur Khas, Sindh, targeting an underprivileged area. The
construction has been completed and the school is now
functional with 234 students. CDC is also contributing for
the school’s yearly operational cost. Our aim is to make
significant infrastructural investment and arrange for
qualified teachers.

Investor Protection

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CDC has always given paramount importance to safety
and security of client’s assets. In this regard, it carries out
various inspections of Participants which includes on-site
and off-site inspections. As per Joint Inspection Regulation
2015, CDC is entrusted with the leading role of inspection.
CDC also performs periodic activities to ensure investor
protection which include Circularization of Account Balance
Statement to all Sub Account Holders, active surveillance and
monitoring activities.

The Board and management of the Company are committed
to good corporate governance and complying with the best
practices.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
CDC has become a approved employer for Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan i.e. Training Organization
Outside Practice (TOop)- ICAP’s newly launched program to
facilitate students by giving them a choice to get exposure of
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Pursuant to and in compliance with clause (xvi) of the Code
of Corporate Governance, the Directors are pleased to report
that:
a.

The financial statements present fairly its state of affairs,
the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in
equity.

b.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been
maintained.

c.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently
applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
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d.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
financial statements and any departure therefrom has
been adequately disclosed.

e.

The system of internal control is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and monitored. The
Audit Committee comprises of five members and all the
members of the Audit Committee are non-executive directors.

f.

The directors are well aware of their duties and responsibilities as outlined by corporate laws.

g.

There is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

h.

There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance.

i.

The Pattern of Shareholding is given on Page 158.

j.

The key operating and financial data of the past six years
are given on Page 45 & 48.

k.

Note 33 of Financial Statements on staff retirement benefits provide information on the value of gratuity fund
and were recorded as liability.

l.

Note 26.4 and 33 of Financial Statements provide information regarding the value of investment of provident
fund and gratuity fund.
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Board of Directors
CDC’s board comprises of a mixture of individuals
representing shareholding institutions as well as independent
directors. Precisely, the Board comprises of seven individuals
representing shareholding institutions, four independent
directors and the Chief Executive Officer by virtue of position
as per statute. All the Directors of the Company meet the
eligibility criteria laid down under the Companies Ordinance,
1984, the Code of Corporate Governance and the Fit & Proper
Criteria incorporated in the Licensing Regulations.
The tenure of office of a director is three years. Upon
expiry of which, elections are held to appoint a new Board
in accordance with the statute. Directors representing
respective shareholding institutions have no direct interest
in the Company’s business.
The Board of Directors remained actively involved during
the year in performing its duties and functions as specified
under the Code of Corporate Governance. CDC has availed
the services of Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
(PICG) for the evaluation of the Board’s own performance
and contribution towards effectiveness.
The Board’s composition and attendance status is mentioned
as under:

Board Meetings

Changes in the Board
During the year under review, Mr. Husain Lawai, Mr. Ahsan
Muhammad Saleem, Mr. Shahid Ghaffar and Syed Majid Ali
resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company and
were subsequently appointed as independent Directors
in accordance with the requirements of the Central
Depositories (Licensing & Operations) Regulations, 2016
(“Licensing Regulations”).
Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer subsequent to the sad demise of Mr. Muhammad
Hanif Jakhura.
In addition, Mr. Muhammad Aslam and Mr. Naveed Amin
resigned from the Board and the casual vacancies were
filled by appointment of Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood and
Mr. Farid Malik respectively. The Board places on record
its appreciation for the valuable contribution made by the
outgoing Directors.

Board & Committee Meetings

Mr. Husain Lawai

9/10

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

4/4

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

10/10

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

7/10

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

9/10

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

10/10

Mr. Naveed Amin

10/10

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

4/4

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Rafi

4/10

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani

10/10

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

9/10

Syed Majid Ali

8/10

Late Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

6/6

Mr. Muhammad Aslam

5/5

Mr. Farid Malik

0/0

Note: Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who
could not attend some of the meetings.

During the year under review, ten meetings of the Board of
Directors, six meetings and a special session of the Human
Resource & Remuneration Committee and six meetings of
the Audit Committee were held.
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Audit Committee

Code of Conduct

The Audit Committee of the Board continued to perform its
duties and responsibilities effectively as per its approved
terms of reference. The Committee’s composition and
attendance status is mentioned as under:

As per the Corporate Governance guidelines and in
compliance with Licensing Regulations, the Company
has prepared a Code of Conduct and communicated
it throughout the Company along with placing it on the
Company’s website.

Audit Committee

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

6/6

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

4/5

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

4/5

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

5/6

Mr. Naveed Amin

4/4

Syed Majid Ali

5/5

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

1/1

Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee
The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee reviews
the human resource architecture of the Company and
ensures that the human resource strategy is aligned to the
overall corporate strategy. The Committee’s composition
and attendance status is mentioned as under:
Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee Meetings
Mr. Husain Lawai

6/6

Late Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

1/1

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

2/5

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

4/4

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani

4/4

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

6/6

Syed Majid Ali

6/6

Mr. Naveed Amin

2/2

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

2/2

Directors Training
The directors of the Company have either completed formal
directors training program or meet the criteria of exemption
under clause (xi) of the Code except two Directors for which
training will be scheduled accordingly.

Pattern of Shareholding
The Pattern of shareholding and categories of shareholders
of the Company as at June 30, 2017 is given on page 158.

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND OVERALL
CORPORATE STRATEGY
Management has the objective to transform the culture
of the Company into highly customer-driven, empowered
and cross-functional in order to maximize the return for
stakeholders. Management has the belief that Quality may
not be achieved without implementation of Key Performance
Indicators (KPI’s) in all the critical, contemporary areas of
performance. CDC’s management continued its strategy to
ensure sustainability of its operations by providing safe and
secure services and at the same time contributing to capital
market development. Further, through diversification it
has also ensured that its financial results are not affected
by capital market volatility. The results, financial and nonfinancial, are the reflection of achievement of management’s
objective which are strategically placed to increase the wealth
of stakeholders. The said results are properly evaluated
against the respective strategic objectives to confirm the
achievement. There is no material change in Company’s
objective and strategies from the previous year.

Capital Structure and Liquidity
Management
The Company’s strategy is to maintain a strong capital
base which is built on reserves so as to maintain investors’,
creditors’ and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. This has resulted in Company’s
ability to operate in an efficient manner to enable it to
provide healthy returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders.
During the year an amount of Rs. 734 million was generated
from operating activities of the Company. At the year end,
the Company had a liquid fund position comprising of cash/
bank balances and short term investments amounting to
Rs. 2,585 million after investments in capital projects and
dividend payments.
To ensure sufficient availability of funds at all times whilst
generating optimum returns through placement of surplus
liquidity in various available investment avenues, the
Company has developed and implemented a formal cash
flow monitoring mechanism whereby cash inflows and
outflows are projected and monitored on regular basis.
The Company is now subjected to comply with financial
resource requirements as envisaged in the Central
Depositories (Licensing & Operations) Regulations after its
promulgation in February 2016.
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Materiality Approach
The management has adopted a materiality approach which
is based on a combination of stakeholder engagement, understanding of environmental limits and strategic alignment. It
has made the process, assumptions and evidence the base
for identifying material issues for more transparent, credible
and amenable disclosures to have more transparency on
risk and opportunities.

Key Source of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
approved accounting standards requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, income and expenses as defined in note 2 of
Financial Statements.

Appropriations
The Directors in their meeting held on August 25, 2017 have
proposed bonus shares @ 6.09% i.e. 6.09 million shares
(2016: @ 53.846% i.e. 35 million shares) and cash dividend of
Rs. 1.83 per share (2016: Re. 0.3077 per share) of Rs. 10 each
i.e. 18.3% of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended June
30, 2017.
The unconsolidated financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2017 do not include the effect of these
appropriations which will be accounted for in the period in
which it is approved by shareholders.

Financial Highlights
Key operating and financial data of previous years has been
summarized and is given on page numbers 45 & 48.

Contribution to National Exchequer and
Economy
An amount of PKR 308 Million (2016: PKR 246 Million) was
contributed during the year in respect of Income tax. As a
responsible citizen of our country your Company contributed
15.49% (2016: 14.83%) of total revenue back to the Economy.

For and on behalf of the Board
-sd-
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Statement as to the Value of Investment
of Provident Fund
The value of the investment of the provident fund is PKR 46
Million.

Subsequent Events
No material changes or commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company have occurred between the end of
the financial year of the company and the date of this report.

Internal Audit
The Internal Audit function is effectively operating within the
framework set out in the Code of Corporate Governance and
the charter defined by the Audit Committee of the Board.
The Board relies on the inputs and recommendations of
the Internal Audit function through its Audit Committee on
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls in the
organization and takes appropriate measures.

External Auditors
The present auditors of the company M/s. Grant Thornton
Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, audited the
financial statements of the Company and have issued
unqualified report to the members. The auditors will retire
at the conclusion of Annual General Meeting. Being ligible
they have offered themselves for re-appointment. The
Board have recommended the appointment of M/s. Grant
Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants as auditor
for the ensuing year, as suggested by the Audit Committee,
subject to approval by members in the 25th Annual General
Meeting.

Acknowledgments
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and dedication of every employee of the Company. The
Board also appreciates and acknowledges the valuable
assistance, guidance and cooperation of all stakeholders,
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For and on behalf of the Board
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Director

Chief Executive Officer

Karachi, dated: Friday, August 25, 2017

Karachi, dated: Friday, August 25, 2017
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Innovation, diversification and Risk Management

A journey of timeless achievements
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Time is a brisk wind, for each hour it brings something new... but who can understand and measure
its sharp breath, its mystery and its design? ~Paracelsus
Mankind realized the importance of Time ages ago and had gone to great lengths to reach an immaculate mechanism of
Time keeping. In the early years, celestial objects were observed to keep track of the Time. Later on, great innovators used
their own imaginations to create, with the limited technology they had available, more reliable and accurate instruments
such as the Candle clock and The Hourglass. It took centuries of innovations and breakthroughs for humans to introduce
Time keeping on atomic oscillations we see today.
The significance of Time in the universe is extraordinary. Everything follows a cycle, a course of evolution. It starts when
an ordinary farmer plants a seed, waters it, nurtures it and one day sees it culminate into a sturdy tree. The hard work,
persistence and commitment of the farmer is bestowed with years of shade and fruit.

Time is like the wind, it lifts the light and leaves the heavy. ~Doménico Cieri Estrada
Evolution with Time is of utmost importance. It takes years of sophistication, hard work and persistence for a small
community to be transformed into a civilization. Similarly, it takes years to build an organization, equipping it with
state of the art technology and expert human resource to assure its survival and growth during the ongoing waves
of Time; such is the strong infrastructure of The Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited.
The Stepping Stone was laid down in 1997, to transform the landscape of Pakistan Capital Market into an efficient
structure that provides convenience to the seasoned, and cherishment to the novice investor. As the sole Depository
of the country, our twenty year journey was full of challenges but with ethical conduct, constant innovation and
agile human resource, CDC always provided safest for its clients.
Today, after two decades of successful servicing, CDC has become the embodiment of timeless trust and convenience
for all its stakeholders specially; investors, and an example for its international counterparts.

Pioneering Ideas
The history of time keeping started with looking at celestial objects, but humans realized that it’s time to introduce
a better and more reliable system. The earliest of those instruments were the Water Clocks, made by stone vessels
that dripped water from the sides. These water clocks were a groundbreaking invention, which changed how
humanity perceived time.
Before CDC’s inception, the Capital Market of Pakistan was facing tremendous challenges due to an obsolete
ecosystem. Physical share certificates were traded which created problems such as forgery of signatures, theft of
paper certificate, lost during delivery etc. The transfer of the securities was troublesome and laborious, which created
bottlenecks on every stage of the process. Due to such bottlenecks, the system could not cope up with massive
volumes of trade and hindered the market from timely settlements of the securities. Just like the introduction of
Water Clocks, Central Depository Company introduced a solution, a mechanism that would revolutionize every
aspect of the stock market.
CDC introduced the Central Depository System, a system equipped with state of the art technology, provided a
digital platform for all stock related transactions. The transactions became safe, reliable and convenient, thus
enabling a transformation of how stocks changed hands in the market. Today, the stock market is capable of
settling huge volumes without any delays, which could not have been achieved with manual processing. Altering
the obsolete mechanism into a transparent structure was essential to regain investor confidence and enthusing the
masses to participate in the Capital Market of Pakistan.
To further incorporate globally recognized practices with regards to Capital Market Structure, CDC also introduced
National Clearing and Settlement System (NCSS) in 2004. It created a hassle free process of clearing securities from
all three stock exchanges of Pakistan under one roof. This revolutionized the market with a new line of efficiency
and security. In 2005, NCSS system was handed over to an independent management.
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Spreading Awareness
Candle Clock was one of the very first instruments that taught humanity to keep track of time. But before it becomes
functional to fulfill its purpose; it first goes through a process of hardening that requires human care. The molding
needs a sturdy foundation, it needs to be protected from draughts; only then an ordinary piece of wax becomes a
glorious source of illumination.
In similar fashion, the Central Depository Company goes to great lengths to educate the people of Pakistan. The
main objectives are to keep the investors updated regarding how to make their assets more secure, and to increase
the participation of the masses in the Capital Market. The Central Depository Company arranges Investor Awareness
Seminars, which are targeted towards Sub-Account and IAS account holders. The core objective of CDC through
these programs is to provide comprehensive and adequate knowledge about Central Depository System, Account
Maintenance, Transaction Execution Model and Value Added Services that help in managing and maintaining CDS
accounts effectively. So far, seminars have been organized in all major cities including Karachi, Hyderabad, Lahore,
Islamabad, Rawalpindi, Multan, Faisalabad, Gujranwala, Mirpur – Azad Kashmir and Abbottabad.
CDC also conducts its investor awareness seminars; in collaboration with top business schools of Pakistan. The
main objective of conducting these sessions is to plant the seeds of curiosity and leadership in the future leaders
for bringing their skills and innovative ideas to the Capital Market. They are presented about the structure of the
Capital Market of Pakistan and the significance of CDC’s role in the spectrum. They are also encouraged to be a part
of this industry in the future.
CDC has also arranged Capital Market Expos throughout Pakistan, where the top mutual funds and stock brokers
collaborate with Central Depository Company (CDC), Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) and Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for an event which educates the public regarding different Capital Market Investment
avenues. This session promotes participation from the public to raise their queries and misconceptions regarding
the industry. The whole experience also provides the Capital Market Players valuable insight on the needs and
wants of seasoned and potential investors.
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Inducing Reliability
For more than two centuries of civilization, the pendulum clock was known as the standard of time keeping.
The design, made from Galileo’s theory of Gravity, was known to be the most reliable clock in the world. The
mechanical structure was in perfect sync, keeping the pendulum moving for years.
Similar to the uniqueness of the pendulum clock, CDC ensures reliability for its clients and partners by creating
a diversified business portfolio. CDC’s business policies have enabled it to expand into new markets to provide
multiple solutions to customers under one roof. The main objective of having a diverse portfolio ensures
distribution of risks among variety of services and extensive risk management. Much like the pendulum clock,
combination of great design and sturdy structure has made the Central Depository Company, one of the most
established institutions of Pakistan. After implementing the CDS, CDC introduced Investor Account Services
(IAS). The service catered to the investors that not only wanted full control of their securities, but wanted them
to be with a secure and dependable Custodian.
In 2002, CDC launched Trustee and Custodial Services (T&C). Presently, our T&C services have more than 96%
Market Share of Mutual Fund Industry. CDC’s enhanced Fund Management System (FMS) provides an electronic
channel of Straight through Processing (STP) for settlement of transactions. This system aligns trustee units,
AMCs and Banks, enhancing the efficiency and speed of settlements. CDC is also the trustee of Pakistan’s
first ever rental Real Estate Investment Trusts (REIT) scheme, revolutionizing the landscape of the real estate
market of the country.
Creating convenience for the investors has been CDC’s mission from the start. In line with this, CDC launched its
Share Registrar Services in 2008. The service covers the whole process, maintenance, registration, verification
of shares and direct customer dealing, on behalf of the issuing companies. There are 143 companies in CDC’s
current portfolio, which include large and established organizations from every industry, which have entrusted
CDC. CDC’s efforts are not only limited to the Capital Market, but for the whole economy. In line with this
endeavor, CDC launched Centralized Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII). The product
was targeted to reduce the associated risk of fraud and ensuring high levels of transparency and precision in
the industry. Presently, all the leading life and health insurance provider companies of Pakistan are part of
CISSII.
Diversification has played a very important part in CDC’s success, ITMinds Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of CDC, caters to a clientele of Mutual Funds, providing Back Office Accounting Services (BOAS). The BOAS
services include Investment Settlement, Unit Management, and NAV calculations, Financial Reporting, IT
Management and Business Continuity Planning.
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Securing Assets
Time is the biggest asset, it was realized that every minute of the day is important and should be secured. The
Sundials were one of the most accurate and meticulous time keeping instruments. They showed time, with respect
to hours and minutes.
CDC understands the value of your assets, and has taken steps to ensure their safety and security. As we move
forward; adding customers, diversifying portfolio and introducing conveniences, we keep updating our Risk
Management policies to manage any discrepancies and countering risk mitigations for our clients. We have a fully
functional Enterprise Security Unit since 2001, which conducts test to check the effectiveness of our cyber security
and ensures our systems are error free.
The assets of our clients are of utmost importance, therefore we take strict measures for their its safety. To
achieve the highest level of security, an internationally approved Information Security Management Systems (ISMS)
environment has been adapted by the company, for which CDC was awarded ISO/IEC: 27001:2013 by SGS Pakistan.
Our role in the Capital Market is essential, suspension of our business activities would lead to disruption in the
Capital Market. We hold responsibility to all our stakeholders, including the Government, our clients and the general
public for protection of sensitive information.
To ensure that we are able to perform our critical functions, even in disasters, we have taken necessary measures
to plan ahead. CDC is one of the few organizations in Pakistan to have implemented a Business Continuity Plan
(BCP) recognized by ISO. The organization now holds ISO22301 international standard for its Business Continuity
Management program. This certification has been awarded by SGS Pakistan and accredited by the United Kingdom
Accreditation Service after series of comprehensive audits. It is important to highlight that in 2012 CDC was also the
first and till date only organization in Pakistan to obtain BS 25999.
This ensures that we are the only organization in Pakistan that can resume its vital functions from an alternate
location within two hours in case of disaster. CDC conducts BCP drills to ensure that our staff is trained to carry out
their respective roles and duty under such circumstances.
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Creating Convenience
Hourglass or Sandglass was invented in the third century. The design of the hourglass was to let the sand flow from
one container to another, which took exactly an hour to complete. The most unique feature of this instrument was,
that for the first time people had convenience to carry time with them.
The mission of CDC was not only to transform the capital market into a safe structure, but also making the day to
day transactions of investors easy and convenient. Throughout the years CDC has embraced new technology, to
create effective services that provide novel solutions to the investors.
CDC launched its CDC Access to provide customers with real time updates regarding their Investor Accounts and
Sub-Accounts. The CDC access portfolio comprises of 5 services (Web, IVR, SMS, eAlert and eStatement).
CDC also launched its Online Transaction Service, providing Investor Account Holders to make Portfolio Transfers
without the hassle of paperwork and manual effort, through 24/7 CDC access online Web Portal.
CDC also launched a web based service called the Direct Settlement Service (DSS). This service provides investors
to trade and maintain custody of their portfolio with their IAS Account. The service also enables investors to settle
securities as well as cash transaction through their IAS accounts.
For the ease of investors, CDC has also launched eDividend facility in its Share Registrar Services to facilitate the
shareholders that eliminates the process of printing and dispatch of actual dividend warrant. The facility lets the
shareholders credit dividend amounts electronically into their bank accounts with ease.
CDC has also introduced Centralized eIPO System (CES) under the guidance of the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). eIPO is an efficient, easy and hassle-free mechanism
that lets investors apply for the subscription of shares of companies, offered to general public.

Never forget that what becomes Timeless was once truly new. – Nicolos Ghesquiere
It is truly a marvel how everything in the universe is contained in a specific moment in time. Every passing second
moves forward, aging everything that was present in the prior. Seldom things convert aging into maturing;
embracing the passage of time.
For an organization to become Timeless, remaining relevant in the face of changing times, it needs to adapt.
The Central Depository Company of Pakistan provides solutions and convenience to its clients using the latest
technology and innovations, ensuring CDC’s footprint on Pakistan Capital Market remains eternal and its trust
becomes Timeless.
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Tribute to

Late Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
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We live and grow in time. We dream and achieve in

pilotage flew CDC from a local organization into a member

time. We strive and rejoice in time. Time is all we

of the international CSD community; resulting in a wider,

have, but in limited supply. True success, therefore,
lies in making the most of this endowment.

accurate knowledge base for more effective collaborative
endeavors. The significant contributions he made as a part
of the Central Securities Depository community, earned him

Muhammad Hanif Jakhura was the embodiment of how one

the honor of becoming the Chairman of the Asia Pacific CSD

man’s leadership and vision can act as a catalyst in bringing

Group (ACG), and CDC as the ACG Secretariat. Under his

forth a revolution. The stepping stone was two decades ago

capable command, ACG was recognized globally as the true

when he laid the foundation of CDC. He did not just create

voice of the Asian Depositories in the World. This exceptional

an organization, but created an ecosystem that transformed

performance earned Muhammad Hanif Jakhura to be re-

the landscape of the Pakistan Capital Market.

elected as the Chairman of the ACG for the term 2017-2019.

Muhammad

Hanif

Jakhura

completed

his

Chartered

Accountancy Education in 1991, after which he briefly worked
for other institutions. But as they say, true calling is aimed

at the genius qualities already set within each person; at
the age of 31, Muhammad Hanif Jakhura became one of the
founding members of Pakistan’s only securities depository.
The “Employee no: 1” inscribed on his card stands as proof,
even today, that Mr. Jakhura played a significant role in the
growth of this Company, taking it to new heights until his last
breath.
In 2002, Muhammad Hanif Jakhura was elected as the
Chief Executive Officer. Driven by his passion, there was
no obstacle that could stop the company from achieving

He was a true pioneer for the Pakistan Capital Market.
Not only did he diversify the existing business of CDC
by introducing Trustee & Custodial Services, Registrar &
Transfer Agent services and ITMinds Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of CDC) providing Back Office Accounting
Solutions (BOAS) to companies, but also made efforts to
broaden the investor base in Pakistan. His tenure sparkled
with investor cultivation activities ranging from Investor
Awareness Seminars throughout the country to arranging
Capital Market Expos. He was also appointed as the head
of a committee (formed by SECP) with the mandate to help
establish Capital Market Hubs in second tier cities of Pakistan.
The first Capital Market Hub was successfully established at
the end of 2017 to cherish potential investors.

monumental success. He evolved an idea into a market

On 9 January, 2017; Muhammad Hanif Jakhura passed away

shaping infrastructure institution of Pakistan.

suddenly while performing Umrah. He closed his eyes and

His hardwork at CDC was recognized by international
platforms, evolving the company into a world class depository.

left the world in the holiest of sanctuaries; a befitting end to
a triumphant and fulfilled life.

His years in CDC were filled with challenges and difficulties,

“We ourselves believe that what we are doing is just

but his perseverance kept the team motivated; and achieving

a drop in the ocean, but the ocean would be less

milestones one after another. It was something about his
presence that made everyone around him believe in him, his

because of that missing drop.”– Mother Teresa

towering personality, unshakeable character, noble qualities

His pivotal role in the foundations of CDC and Pakistan

and his enviable traits provided a sense of compassion. It

Capital Market can never be replaced. Today the Central

was his demeanor that motivated hundreds of people to

Depository Company of Pakistan Limited stands tall; with a

stand behind him in making his vision a reality.

human resource of 400 people, moving as a team, following

“The key is not to prioritize what’s on your schedule
but to schedule your priorities” – Stephen R. Covey

his shining example and taking the company forward every
day to create the future that he had foreseen, even in his
absence, he will always remain a guiding force for CDC.

Muhammad Hanif Jakhura’s 15 year tenure as the Chief
Executive Officer was full of notable accomplishments. His
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Notice of 25th Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
will be held on Thursday, September 28, 2017 at 4:30 p.m. at its registered office situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’,
S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1.

To receive and adopt the annual audited standalone and consolidated Accounts of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2017, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon and Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance.

2.

To consider and declare cash dividend of Rs. 1.83 per share of Rs. 10 each i.e. 18.3% and bonus shares @ 6.09% to the
shareholders as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2017.

3.

To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2018 and fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board,

-sdShariq Jafrani

CFO & Company Secretary

Karachi, dated: Thursday, September 07, 2017

Notes:
1.

A Corporation or any other company registered under the Companies Act 2017/ Companies Ordinance, 1984, where such
Corporation or such other Company, is a member of the Company may, by resolution of its directors, authorise any of
its officials or any other person to act as its authorized representative at the proposed general meeting of the Company,
and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of such Corporation or such other
Company if he was an individual shareholder of the Company.

2.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend and vote
instead of him / her.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly authorised
in writing or if such appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of its Attorney.

4.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the
form.

5.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

6.

The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting if requested.

7.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a
notarially certified copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than forty eight hours before the time of above general meeting of the Company.

8.

Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their address.

Book Closure:
The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed on September 27, 2017 and September 28, 2017. Transfer
received in order at the Registered Office of the Company located at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-eFaisal, Karachi-74400 before the said date shall be treated in time, subject to Article 26 of Company’s Articles of Association,
for any corporate entitlements approved by the members.
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Statement of Compliance with Best
Practices of Code of Corporate
Governance
for the year ended June 30, 2017

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (“CCG”) as contained in the Listing
Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby
a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited (“the Company”), although not being a listed company, has voluntarily adopted the best practices of
Corporate Governance, however, with the promulgation of Central Depositories (Licensing & Operations) Regulations, 2016,
the Company is required to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance for listed companies.
The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:
1.

The Company encourages representation of independent and non-executive directors on its Board of Directors. At
present, the Board consists of twelve (12) directors, comprising of four (4) independent directors, seven (7) non-executive
directors representing institutional shareholders and the Chief Executive Officer by virtue of position as per statute. The
independent directors meets the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1.(b) of the CCG.

2.

The directors have voluntarily confirmed that none of them is serving as director on more than seven listed companies,
including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

3.

All the resident directors of the Company have declared that they are registered taxpayers and that none of them has
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a Development Financial Institution, a Non Banking Financial
Institution or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4.

Casual vacancies occurred in the Board during the year were filled up by the directors in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

5.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate
it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6.

The Board has developed a vision and a mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or
amended has been maintained except for specific approval of materiality. A mechanism is in place for annual evaluation
of the Board’s own performance.

7.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and the Board has taken decisions on material transactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief Executive Officer
and fees paid to non-executive directors for attending the Board meetings.

8.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board
for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with
agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before each meeting. The minutes of the meetings were
appropriately recorded and circulated.

9.

The directors have been provided with copies of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and the Code
of Corporate Governance and they are well conversant with their duties and responsibilities. The Company is committed
to arrange orientation course and training programs for its directors to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities.
The directors of the Company have either completed formal directors training program or meet the criteria of exemption
under clause (xi) of the Code except two Directors for which training will be scheduled accordingly.
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10. The terms of appointment including remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), Company Secretary and Chief
Internal Auditor were approved by the Board.
11. The directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully describes
significant matters required to be disclosed.
12. The CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements of the Company before approval by the Board.
13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than holding qualification
shares of the Company.
14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.
15. The Board has formed Board Audit Committee (“BAC”), comprising of two independent and four non-executive directors
and the Chairman of BAC is a non-executive director.
16. The meetings of the BAC were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and annual financial results of
the Company and as required by the Code. The Terms of Reference of the BAC have been determined by the Board and
advised to the BAC for compliance.
17. The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of six members, of whom three members
are independent directors and two are non-executive directors and the chairman of the Committee is an independent
director.
18. The Company has an effective internal audit function.
19. The Statutory Auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality
control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any partner of the firm, their
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (“IFAC”) guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan.
20. The Statutory Auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard.
21. We confirm that all material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

-sd-

-sd-

Director

Chief Executive Officer

Karachi, dated: Friday, August 25, 2017
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Review Report To The memBeRs On the
Statement of Compliancewith the Code
of Corporate Governance
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance (the Statement) prepared by the Board of Directors (the Board) of Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2017 to comply with the requirements of Code of Corporate Governance
(the Code) as mandated under the Central Depositories (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2017.
The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to
review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with
the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.
As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether
the Board’s statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.
The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,
place before the Board for their review and approval of its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions
carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at
arm’s length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and
have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the statement does not appropriately
reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as applicable to the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2017.

-sdGrant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Karachi, dated: Friday, August 25, 2017
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AudiToRs’ RePoRT To The memBeRs
We have audited the annexed unconsolidated balance sheet of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company)
as at June 30, 2017 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive
income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes
forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare
and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above
said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management,
as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:
a.

in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b.

in our opinion:
i.

the unconsolidated balance sheet and unconsolidated profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account
and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

ii.

the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

iii. the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the
objects of the Company;
c.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated balance
sheet, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs
as at June 30, 2017 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then
ended; and

d.

in our opinion, no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

-sdGrant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Karachi, dated: Friday, August 25, 2017

Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
Engagement Partner
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unconsolidATed BAlAnce sheeT
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2017

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital 150,000,000 (2016: 150,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 100,000,000 (2016: 65,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

5

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,000,000,000

650,000,000

Reserve fund
Unappropriated profit

100,000,000

100,000,000

1,851,972,791

1,613,024,405

10,031

4,934,808

1,951,982,822

1,717,959,213

2,951,982,822

2,367,959,213

6

719,539,436

465,862,802

Long term deposits

7

118,575,500

116,225,000

Deferred taxation - net

8

110,004,839

66,710,364

228,580,339

182,935,364

357,038,351

Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net
Total shareholders' equity
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net
Non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

9

475,006,181

Short term deposits

10

460,500

660,498

Unearned fee

11

44,365,622

39,767,248

Taxation - net

12

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Contingencies and commitments

13

Total equity and liabilities

38,247,031

30,075,712

558,079,334

427,541,809

786,659,673

610,477,173

-

-

4,458,181,931

3,444,299,188

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Property and equipment

14.1

1,198,298,550

887,706,254

Intangibles

14.2

123,439,648

100,306,953

1,321,738,198

988,013,207

Long term investments

15

100,000,000

100,000,000

Long term loans

16

42,511,600

37,207,757

Long term deposits and prepayments

17

11,200,385

11,820,837

1,475,450,183

1,137,041,801
241,224,441

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Trade debts - net

18

343,504,382

Loans and advances

19

13,350,518

8,826,458

Prepayments

20

18,322,964

25,457,385
40,635,772

Mark-up accrued

21

5,331,570

Other receivables

22

17,587,282

7,047,071

Short term investments

23

2,517,418,533

1,917,633,419

Cash and bank balances

24

Total current assets
Total assets

67,216,499

66,432,841

2,982,731,748

2,307,257,387

4,458,181,931

3,444,299,188

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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unconsolidATed PRofiT And loss AccounT
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Operating income - net

25

1,842,513,700

1,492,076,193

Operating and administrative expenses

26

(1,045,744,754)

(935,252,690)

796,768,946

556,823,503

Operating profit
Other income

27

145,109,937

166,867,823

Other operating expenses

28

(23,543,440)

(18,088,643)

Financial charges

29

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

30

Profit for the year
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Restated)

31

(141,275)

(145,622)

121,425,222

148,633,558

918,194,168

705,457,061

(309,479,517)

(246,000,000)

608,714,651

459,457,061

6.09

4.59

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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unconsolidATed sTATemenT of
comPRehensive income
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017
Rupees
Profit for the year

June 30, 2016
Rupees

608,714,651

459,457,061

(7,261,063)

(29,001,383)

Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Items that may be reclassified to unconsolidated profit and loss account subsequently
Unrealised loss on remeasurement of available for sale investments
Impact of deferred tax
Loss realised on disposal of investments

2,336,286

9,995,279

-

(1,104,774)

(4,924,777)

(20,110,878)

(15,795,000)

(3,334,000)

Items that will never be reclassified to unconsolidated profit and loss account
Loss on remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation

4,896,450

1,066,880

(10,898,550)

(2,267,120)

Total other comprehensive loss

(15,823,327)

(22,377,998)

Total comprehensive income for the year

592,891,324

437,079,063

Impact of current tax

Surplus arising on revaluation of property & equipment has been reported in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance 1984, in a seperate account below equity.
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax

918,194,168

705,457,061

Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds
Depreciation on property and equipment

14.1.1

100,668,594

93,316,555

Amortization of intangibles

14.2.1

33,845,601

29,168,513

Gain on disposal of property and equipment

27

(415,387)

(1,654,396)

Profit on bank deposits

27

(4,465,925)

(3,447,609)

Financial charges

29

141,275

145,622

27,533,000

29,000,000

Provision for retirement benefit plans

33.3

Operating profit before working capital changes

157,307,158

146,528,685

1,075,501,326

851,985,746

(102,279,941)

(72,801,868)

(4,524,060)

(3,643,832)

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Other receivables

7,134,421

1,637,798

(10,540,211)

(5,668,198)

(110,209,791)

(80,476,100)

102,835,882

44,568,595

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits

(199,998)

(74,500)

Unearned fees

4,598,374

(7,051,759)

107,234,258

37,442,336

(5,303,843)

(26,246,617)

620,452

(5,113,037)

Increase in loans (assets)
Decrease / (increase) in deposits and prepayments (assets)
Increase in long term deposits (liabilities)
Cash generated from operations
Contribution paid to retirement benefit plans

33.2

Financial charges paid
Income tax paid
Net cash from operating activities

2,350,500

2,412,500

(2,332,891)

(28,947,154)

1,070,192,902

780,004,827

(28,196,000)

(27,382,000)

(141,275)

(145,622)

(307,791,155)

(246,055,691)

(336,128,430)

(273,583,313)

734,064,471

506,421,514

(148,110,716)

(142,648,505)

2,105,952

4,788,670

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred - net
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Mark-up received

39,770,127

4,699,633

Investments - net

(7,261,063)

(30,106,157)

(113,495,700)

(163,266,359)

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(20,000,000)

(211,250,000)

Net cash used in financing activities

(20,000,000)

(211,250,000)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

600,568,771

131,905,155

1,984,066,260

1,852,161,105

2,584,635,032

1,984,066,260

Dividend paid

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
Cash and cash equivalents at the end

32

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Unconsolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017
Issued,
subscribed and
paid-up share
capital
Note
Balance as at July 1, 2015

* Reserve
fund

Unappropriated
profit

Surplus on
revaluation of
Available for sale
investments - net

Total
shareholders’
equity

--------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------------------650,000,000

100,000,000

1,356,270,256

2,131,315,942

25,045,686

Comprehensive income for the year
- Profit after income tax

-

-

459,457,061

-

459,457,061

- Other comprehensive loss

-

-

(2,267,132)

(20,110,878)

(22,378,010)

-

-

457,189,929

(20,110,878)

437,079,051

-

-

(211,250,000)

-

(211,250,000)

-

-

10,814,220

-

10,814,220

Balance as at June 30, 2016

650,000,000

100,000,000

1,613,024,405

4,934,808

2,367,959,213

Balance as at July 1, 2016

650,000,000

100,000,000

1,613,024,405

4,934,808

2,367,959,213

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity
Final dividend paid @ 32.5%
( i.e. Rs. 3.25 per share )

Transferred from surplus on revaluation
of fixed assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net off deferred tax

6

Comprehensive income for the year
- Profit after income tax

-

-

608,714,651

-

608,714,651

- Other comprehensive loss

-

-

(10,898,550)

(4,924,777)

(15,823,327)

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

597,816,101

(4,924,777)

592,891,324

Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity

-

Final dividend @ 3.077%
(i.e. Re. 0.3077 per share)

-

-

(20,000,000)

-

(20,000,000)

Bonus shares @ 53.846%
(i.e. 35 million shares)

350,000,000

-

(350,000,000)

-

-

Total transactions with owners

350,000,000

-

(370,000,000)

-

(20,000,000)

-

-

11,132,285

-

11,132,285

1,000,000,000

100,000,000

1,851,972,791

10,031

2,951,982,822

Transferred from surplus on revaluation
of fixed assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net off deferred tax

Balance as at June 30, 2017

6

* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Company.
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017
1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public Company with its liability limited by shares on January
21, 1993 and received certificate of commencement of business on August 10, 1994. The principal business activities of the Company are to act as a
depository for securities, open securities account and acts as a registrar to the issuer of securities. The registered office of the Company is situated at
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan.
The Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodial-ship to closed-end funds formed under the said regulations.
The Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and is also managing Centralized Information
Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII).
The Company has three wholly owned subsidiaries with names and styles of ITMinds Limited (ITML), CDC Trustee Company Limited (CTCL) and eClear
Services Limited (ECL).

2

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1

Statement of compliance
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. Wherever the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) differ with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.
These unconsolidated financial statements comprise unconsolidated balance sheet, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement
of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming
part thereof.

2.2

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

2.2.1

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Company and adopted in the current year
The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective
during the current year.

Standard or Interpretation

Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements)

January 1, 2016

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 - Investment Entities : Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28)

January 1, 2016

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

January 1, 2016

IAS 16 and IAS 41 - Agriculture: Bearer Plants (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41)

January 1, 2016

IAS 27 - Equity method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27)

January 1, 2016

IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

January 1, 2016

IFRS 11 - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (Amendments to IFRS 11)

January 1, 2016

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended June
30, 2016 and 2017.
2.2.2

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant
The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on June 01,
2016 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company’s financial reporting and operations and are therefore not
presented here.

2.2.3

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by the
Company
The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates mentioned below against
the respective standard or interpretation.
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Standard or Interpretation
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)
Postponed

IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)

January 1, 2017

IAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to IAS 12)

January 1, 2017

IFRS 12 - Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016

January 1, 2017

IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction (Amendments to IFRS 2)

January 1, 2018

IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016

January 1, 2018

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

January 1, 2018

IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

January 1, 2018

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

January 1, 2019

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on the
financial statements of the Company.
2.2.4

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP)
Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standard or Interpretation

IASB Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

January 1, 2016

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

January 1, 2018

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (2014) and consequent amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

January 1, 2018

IFRS 16 - Leases

January 1, 2019

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

January 1, 2021

2.3

Basis of measurement

2.3.1

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition of staff retirement benefits
at present value based on actuarial valuation, land- lease hold and building at revalued amount and measurement of certain investments at fair value
and amortised cost.

2.3.2

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow statement.

2.3.3

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or
area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:
Note
a) Staff retirement benefits

4.1

b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets

4.2

c) Impairment of doubtful trade debts

4.6

d) Provision for taxation and deferred taxation

4.10

e) Revaluation of land and building
f) Investments

98

4.2 & 14
4.5

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited | Annual Report 2017

20
years

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that changes in outcome of estimates will not have material effect
on the unconsolidated financial statements.
2.4

General
The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

3

PRESENTATION AND FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY
The unconsolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies and methods
of computation have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.1

Staff retirement benefits

4.1.1

Defined benefit plan
The Company operates a defined benefit plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees who have completed minimum qualifying
period of service as per the laid down rules and joined before January 01, 2014. Contributions are made monthly to this fund on the basis of actuarial
recommendations. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the balance sheet immediately, with a charge or credit to other
comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. The significant actuarial assumptions are stated in note 33.

4.1.2

Defined contribution plan
The Company also operates two defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a defined contribution gratuity fund.
Provident fund
The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of basic salary are
made to the fund both by the Company and the employees.
Defined Contribution (DC) Gratuity fund
The Company has established a defined contribution plan - DC Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined on or after January 1, 2014.
Contributions are made by the Company to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary.

4.1.3

Other benefits
Compensated absences
The Company has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective entitlement on
cessation of services. Related expected cost thereof has been recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements on the basis of best management
estimates.

4.2

Property and equipment
Owned
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any: except for land and building which are stated
at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Revaluation has been
accounted for as per section 235 of Companies Ordinance, 1984. Individual items costing Rs. 5,000 or less are not capitalized and treated as a period
cost. Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.3.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 14.1 and is charged to income. Depreciation on additions during the year
is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of retirement/disposal.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.
Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss in the period of their occurrence, while major renovations and improvements are
capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to income currently.
Revaluation of assets
Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account. Incremental depreciation arising on such
revaluation will be charged from subsequent month of revaluation.
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Leased
The Company accounts for assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These amounts are determined at the
inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are allocated to the
accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged to income applying the
same basis as for owned assets.
Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital work in progress account.
All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital workin-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.
4.2.1

Intangibles
Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Company and have probable economic benefit beyond one year
are recognized as intangible assets.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using the straight line method
reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed by the Company.
Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal, and the amortization period for
software is five years.

4.2.2

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the unconsolidated profit and
loss account, for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels at which there are generating separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

4.3

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost that is directly
attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to unconsolidated profit and loss
account in the period in which they are incurred.

4.4

Investment in subsidiary companies
Investment in subsidiary companies is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. In arriving at the impairment in respect of any
diminution in the value of these investments, consideration is given only if there is a permanent impairment in the value of these investments.

4.5

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
Initial recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given for it, including associated
transaction costs except that are incurred on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in which case transaction costs are
recorded in the unconsolidated profit and loss account.
Subsequent measurement
The financial assets are measured subsequently as described below:

4.5.1

Financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories upon initial recognition; namely loans and receivables,
held to maturity, available for sale and held for trading investments.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
recognition these are carried at amortized cost.
Held to maturity
Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and the Company has a positive intent and
ability to hold these investments till maturity. After Initial recognition, these are carried at amortized cost.
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Available for sale investment
Investments intended to be held for indefinite period of time, which may be sold on response to needs for liquidity or changes in equity prices, are
classified as ‘available for sale investment’. Financial assets at ‘available for sale’ are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available
for sale financial asset, or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables (b) held to maturity investments (c) held for trading investment. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these investments are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried on the unconsolidated balance sheet
at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to surplus on revaluation of ‘available for sale’
investment through other comprehensive income until the investments are derecognized and then the surplus on remeasurement on available for
sale investment is transferred to unconsolidated profit and loss account.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term fluctuations in prices are classified as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss’ or held for trading.
Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in unconsolidated profit and loss account. These investments
are marked to market and are carried on the unconsolidated balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these
investments are taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss account for the year.
Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.
4.5.2

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method except for those which are designated at fair
value through unconsolidated profit and loss account, which are carried subsequently at fair value with remeasurement gains or losses recognised in
unconsolidated profit and loss.
All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value are reported in unconsolidated profit or loss account are included
within finance costs or finance income.

4.5.3

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. Financial
liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled,
or expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss account
immediately.

4.5.4

Off setting
Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet if the Company has a legal right to set-off
the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.6

Trade debts and other receivables
Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

4.7

Provisions, contingencies and commitments
A provision is recognized in the unconsidated balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of obligation.
No liability is recognised if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the outflow of resources is remote.
Commitments for outstanding capital expenditure contracts are disclosed in these unconsolidated financial statements at committed amounts.

4.8

Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for services.
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4.9

Foreign currency translations
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the unconsolidated
balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date.
Exchange gains or losses are taken to income currently.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

4.10

Taxation

4.10.1

Current
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credit and rebates, if
any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of tax laws.

4.10.2

Deferred
Deferred tax is provided for, using the balance sheet liability method, providing the temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset
is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available and credits can be utilized.
Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted.
The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the unconsolidated profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive
income/equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income/equity.

4.11

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the balance sheet at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the purpose of unconsolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and only those short term investments which are highly liquid and maturing
within 90 days from the date of acquisition, that readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

4.12

Revenue recognition
Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full upon settlement in CDS on
the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and recognized on per trade basis.
Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading session of every trading day of
the month at Pakistan Stock Exchange. Custody fee on government securities is recognized daily on cost.
Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation.
Other fees are recognized when the Company renders the related services.
Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds.
Income form IT services are recognized as revenue with reference to the stage of completion of the transaction, unless they are incidental to the sale
of software licenses, in which case they are recognized upon transfer of licensing rights.
Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the year which they arise.
Return on fixed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis.

4.13

Interest and dividend income
Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividends, other than those from investments in
associates and joint ventures are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established.

4.14

Dividend and appropriation
Dividend distribution to the shareholders’ of the Company is recognized as a liability in the unconsolidated financial statements in the period in which
such dividends are approved.
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4.15

Related party transactions
All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm’s length prices using the comparable uncontrolled valuation method.

4.16

Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4.17

Segment reporting
Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Management, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a
single reportable segment, however certain information about Company’s revenue streams as required by the approved accounting standards, are
presented in note 25 of these unconsolidated financial statements.

5

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Number of shares

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Rupees

Rupees

100,000,000

100,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash

55,000,000

55,000,000

- Beginning of the year

550,000,000

550,000,000

35,000,000

-

- During the year

350,000,000

-

90,000,000

55,000,000

Total bonus shares

900,000,000

550,000,000

100,000,000

65,000,000

1,000,000,000

650,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares

5.1

6

Associated companies held 67,557,997 (2016: 40,662,700) shares in the Company as at year end.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Note

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year
Revaluation surplus on property and equipment

6.1

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

511,765,889

527,669,153

321,819,035

-

(11,132,285)

(10,814,220)

Transferred to accumulated profit:
- surplus relating to incremental depreciation transferred to unappropriated profit during the year
- net off deferred tax

(4,770,979)

(5,089,044)

(15,903,264)

(15,903,264)

817,681,712

511,765,889

- surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year

(45,903,087)

(52,585,635)

- surplus on revaluation of property and equipment during the year

(59.879,111)

-

2,868,943

1,593,504

- related deferred tax liability
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year
Less: related deferred tax liability on:

- remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate
- incremental depreciation charged during the year transferred to unconsolidated profit and loss account
Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net

6.1

8

4,770,979

5,089,044

(98,142,276)

(45,903,087)

719,539,436

465,862,802

Land and building has been revalued on June 30, 2017, which resulted in further revaluation surplus of Rs. 321,819,035.
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7

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Due to:
- Participants

41,251,500

43,050,000

- Institutions

29,824,000

28,125,000

- Pledgees
- Issuers
7.1

7.1

1,600,000

1,500,000

45,900,000

43,550,000

118,575,500

116,225,000

These represent security deposits received from different categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their admission in the CDS.
According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, such deposits may be utilized by the Company for any
purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of termination of admission to the CDS.

8

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary differences on
- Provision for doubtful debts

(347,741)

(370,924)

12,205,984

18,837,595

98,142,276

45,903,087

Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary differences on
- Excess of accounting written down value under cost model
over tax written down value of property and equipment
- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment

6

- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments

9

Payable to suppliers
Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations

9.1

33,227,911

3,682,891

238,593,257

186,335,759

82,190,514

69,395,324

78,535,433

59,204,020

Workers' welfare fund

13,745,902

13,745,902

Sales tax payable

19,420,856

16,137,629

9,292,309

8,536,826

475,006,181

357,038,351

Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations
Net defined benefit liability

33.2

51,791,535

36,659,549

Accumulated compensated absences

9.2

30,398,979

32,735,775

82,190,514

69,395,324

32,735,775

29,579,108

Accumulated compensated absences
Opening balance
Provision for the year

10

66,710,364

Investor account services - current account

Others

9.2

2,340,606

110,004,839

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accrued expenses

9.1

4,320

26.1

4,709,802

5,921,910

Payments / transfers made during the year

(7,046,598)

(2,765,243)

Closing balance

30,398,979

32,735,775

- Participants

161,639

361,637

- Institutions

298,861

298,861

460,500

660,498

SHORT TERM DEPOSITS
Due to:
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11

UNEARNED FEE

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Annual fee
- Issuers
- Investor Account Services (IAS)
- Centralised Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII) Partcipants
Investment Portfolio Services (IPS) annual fee
Sub account maintenance fee

12

2,173,096
12,485,889

4,760,004

4,560,004

23,096

22,750

26,487,466

20,525,509

44,365,622

39,767,248

38,247,031

30,075,712

TAXATION - NET
Provision for taxation - net

12.1

2,920,012
10,175,044

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed the order under section 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2008
creating a tax demand of Rs. 10.071 million. The Company had paid the tax demand and filed appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals
[CIR(A)] which was decided vide order dated August 28, 2014 against the Company. Presently, the appeal is pending before the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue, for adjudication. The Management, on the basis of opinion from tax advisor, is of the view that the appeal would eventually be decided
in the Company’s favour.

13

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1

Contingencies
Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an order in relation to tax periods commencing from July 2011 upto June 2013 with regards to chargeability of Sindh
Sales Tax amounting to Rs. 297 million including penalty. SRB was of the opinion that services rendered by the Company were falling under the ambit
of Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFC).
Currently the Company has taken stay order from High Court of Sindh against the said order and the case is pending in Appellate Tribunal. The
management on the basis of clarification from Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and opinions from advisors believes that the services
rendered by the Company does not fall under the ambit of NBFC and the case will have favorable outcome and thus no provision has been recorded
in the financial statements.

13.2

Commitments
Commitment for capital expenditure for acquisition of software, hardware and office equipments
Investment in eClear Services Limited

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

15,560,301

10,987,909

250,000,000

-
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14

FIXED ASSETS

14.1

Property and equipment

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Operating assets

14.1.1

1,170,854,713

Capital work-in-progress

14.1.4

27,443,837

2,931,704

1,198,298,550

887,706,254

14.1.1

June 30, 2016
Rupees
884,774,550

Operating assets
OWNED
Year ended
June 30, 2017

Land
leasehold

Furniture,
fixtures and
electrical
equipment

Building

Office
equipment

Vehicles

Computer
equipment

Total
operating
assets

---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------Net book value at the
beginning of the year

427,777,000

Additions

269,182,466

27,218,197

40,476,008

32,392,719

87,728,160

884,774,550

-

3,326,919

5,489,372

14,549,162

13,314,704

29,940,131

66,620,288

122,222,000

199,597,035

-

-

-

-

321,819,035

Cost

-

(207,000)

(2,546,474)

(20,395,296)

(3,889,742)

(42,082,322)

(69,120,834)

Depreciation

-

106,957

2,291,334

19,374,821

3,658,676

41,998,481

67,430,269

-

(100,043)

(255,140)

(1,020,475)

(231,066)

(83,841)

(1,690,565)

-

(26,683,715)

(7,908,762)

(15,574,307)

(11,414,335)

(39,087,475)

(100,668,594)

549,999,000

445,322,662

24,543,667

38,430,388

34,062,022

78,496,975

1,170,854,714

549,999,000

445,322,662

169,597,431

76,581,823

196,952,406

403,095,862

1,841,549,184

-

-

(145,053,764)

(38,151,435)

(162,890,384)

(324,598,888)

(670,694,471)

549,999,000

445,322,662

24,543,667

38,430,388

34,062,022

78,496,975

1,170,854,713

-

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Revaluation
Disposals

Depreciation charge
for the year
Net book value at the
end of the year
As at June 30, 2017
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the
end of the year
Depreciation rate

OWNED
Year ended
June 30, 2016

Land
leasehold

Furniture,
fixtures and
electrical
equipment

Building

Vehicles

Total
operating
assets

---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------Net book value at the
beginning of the year

427,777,000

292,686,971

19,368,349

35,568,902

22,489,080

72,863,145

870,753,447

Additions

-

3,029,128

13,354,098

23,766,620

18,751,904

51,570,183

110,471,933

Revaluation

-

-

-

-

-

-

(36,740,628)

Disposals
Cost

-

-

(2,024,823)

(10,199,608)

(4,124,256)

(20,391,941)

Depreciation

-

-

2,024,064

7,373,219

3,890,804

20,374,266

33,662,353

-

-

(759)

(2,826,389)

(233,452)

(17,675)

(3,078,275)

Cost

-

-

-

-

(28,000)

-

(28,000)

Depreciation

-

-

-

-

(27,999)

-

(27,999)

-

-

(55,999)

-

(55,999)

Transfers

Depreciation charge
for the year
Net book value at the
end of the year

-

(26,533,633)

(5,503,491)

(16,033,125)

(8,558,814)

(36,687,494)

(93,316,555)

427,777,000

269,182,466

27,218,197

40,476,008

32,392,719

87,728,160

884,774,550

As at June 30, 2016
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the
end of the year
Depreciation rate

106

427,777,000

422,144,687

166,654,533

82,427,957

187,527,444

415,238,053

1,701,769,674

-

(152,962,221)

(139,436,336)

(41,951,949)

(155,134,725)

(327,509,894)

(816,995,125)

427,777,000

269,182,466

27,218,197

40,476,008

32,392,719

87,728,160

884,774,550

-

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%
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14.1.2

Land - lease hold and building had previously been revalued on June 30, 2012.
The Company as on June 30, 2017 again revalued its land - lease hold and building. The revaluation exercise was carried out by independent valuer MYK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, (Approved valuers of Pakistan Banks’ Association and Leasing Association of Pakistan) I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The
valuer has estimated the remaining life of the buildings to be 20 years. Land- lease hold was revalued on the basis of current market price whereas
buildings was revalued on the basis of depreciated market value (Level 1).
The difference levels have been defined in IFRS 13 as follows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);
- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,
derived from prices) (level 2); and
- Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable inputs e.g. estimated future) (level 3).
The appraisal surplus arisen on latest revaluation exercise aggregating Rs. 261.939 million has been incorporated in the books of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

14.1.3

Had there been no revaluation of lease hold land and building, the cost and net book values would have been as follows:
Cost

Land - lease hold
Building

14.1.4

Capital work in progress

Net Book value under cost model

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

59,458,250
218,204,411

59,458,250
215,084,492

59,458,250
118,181,752

59,458,250
125,735,327

Note

Balance at the beginning of the year

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

2,931,704

7,058,988

- Furniture, fixtures and electrical equipment

5,521,766

9,977,652

- Building

3,128,912

7,370,460

- Computers and office equipment

69,720,081

64,724,417

- Vehicles

12,761,662

24,272,120

91,132,421

106,344,649

Additions

Transferred to operating assets

14.1.1

Balance at the end of the year

14.2

14.2.1

94,064,125

113,403,637

(66,620,288)

(110,471,933)

27,443,837

2,931,704

94,175,563

Intangibles
Softwares

14.2.1

107,631,201

Softwares under implementation

14.2.2

15,808,447

6,131,390

123,439,648

100,306,953

Net book value at the beginning of the year

94,175,563

86,858,561

Additions

48,259,067

36,485,515

Deletions

(957,828)

-

(33,845,601)

(29,168,513)

107,631,201

94,175,563

Softwares

Amortization charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

26

As at June 30,
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value at the end of the year
Amortization rate

376,474,690

329,173,451

(268,843,489)

(234,997,888)

107,631,201

94,175,563

20%

20%
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14.2.2

Softwares under implementation

Note

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Transferred to softwares

14.2.1

Balance at the end of the year

14.3

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

6,131,390

6,313,047

57,936,124

36,303,858

64,067,514

42,616,905

(48,259,067)

(36,485,515)

15,808,447

6,131,390

Details of disposal of fixed assets through bid / negotiation having net book value of Rs. 50,000 or above:

Particular of Assets

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net book
value

Sale
proceeds

Gain / (loss)
on disposal

Particulars of buyer

---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------Auto sliding glass door with system
at CDC House

207,000

106,957

100,043

1,461

(98,582)

Sold to scrap dealer
(Malik Abdullah)

Suzuki Cultus EFI Euro VXR 1000cc

970,000

776,000

194,000

761,111

567,111

Sold to employee
(Jibran)

1,177,000

882,957

294,043

762,572

468,529

Total

15

Long Term Investments

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Investment in related parties
Investment in subsidiaries - at cost
- ITMinds Limited

50,000,000

- CDC Trustee Company Limited

50,000,000

50,000,000

100,000,000

100,000,000

15.1

15.1

50,000,000

This represents investment in wholly owned subsidiaries for IT services and Business process outsourcing (BPO) office under the name of ITMinds
Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (2016: 5,000,000) of Rs.10 each and for trustee and custodial services under the name of CDC Trustee Company
Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (2016: 5,000,000) of Rs.10 each.

16

LONG TERM LOANS

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Considered good - secured
- House loans

16.1

38,235,243

30,199,678

- Car loans

16.2

12,251,047

13,592,507

50,486,290

43,792,185

19

(7,974,690)

(6,584,428)

42,511,600

37,207,757

- Transferred to current maturity

Loan outstanding for period
-

More than one year but less than three years

11,962,911

11,847,023

-

More than three years

30,548,689

25,360,734

42,511,600

37,207,757

Movement of loan to executives
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Disbursement during the year

16.1

33,598,698

8,684,977

9,395,000

30,271,844

42,993,698

38,956,821

less: Recovered during the year

(8,323,324)

(5,358,123)

Balance at the end of the year

34,670,374

33,598,698

Interest ranging from 3% to 5% per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on house loans and taken to unconsolidated profit and loss
account. Maximum repayment period for house loan is fifteen years.

16.2

Interest at 3% per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on car loans and taken to unconsolidated profit and loss account. However, no
interest is recovered from employees who have surrendered interest on their provident fund. Maximum repayment period for car loan is five years.

16.3

The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 52.59 million (2016: Rs. 41.91 million). The loans are secured

against the underlying assets. 		
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17

LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Deposits
- Utilities

5,586,969

4,884,018

- Rented premises

1,872,000

1,872,000

7,458,969

6,756,018

3,741,416

5,064,819

11,200,385

11,820,837

- secured

221,132,345

166,437,078

- unsecured

122,372,037

74,787,363

343,504,382

241,224,441

Prepayments

18

TRADE DEBTS - NET
Considered good:

Considered doubtful, unsecured

18.1

Provision for impairment

18.1

18.2

1,159,136

1,159,136

344,663,518

242,383,577

(1,159,136)

(1,159,136)

343,504,382

241,224,441

The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows:
June 30, 2017
Gross

Impaired

June 30, 2016
Net

Gross

Impaired

Net

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Within 45 days

299,833,081

-

299,833,081

212,078,873

-

212,078,873

46 to 90 days

43,671,301

-

43,671,301

29,145,568

-

29,145,568

Over 91 days

1,159,136

1,159,136

-

1,159,136

1,159,136

-

344,663,518

1,159,136

343,504,382

242,383,577

1,159,136

241,224,441

Total

18.2

The Company reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. As during the year no further provision has been made consequently opening
balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and investor account holders amounting to Rs. 0.4 million
(2016: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (2016: Rs. 0.7 million) respectively and are valid till year end.

18.3

Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 31.7 million (2016: Rs. 14.6 million).

18.3.1

The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows:
June 30, 2017
Gross

Impaired

June 30, 2016
Net

Gross

Impaired

Net

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Within 45 days

21,387,095

-

21,387,095

9,400,965

-

9,400,965

46 to 90 days

10,309,621

-

10,309,621

5,223,018

-

5,223,018

Over 91 days

-

-

-

-

-

-

31,696,716

-

31,696,716

14,623,983

-

14,623,983

Total

18.4

The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any month during the year was
Rs. 49.4 million (2016: Rs. 17.1 million).

19

LOANS AND ADVANCES

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

7,974,690

6,584,428

- Advance to employees

3,685,201

1,583,543

- Advance for expenses

1,690,627

658,487

5,375,828

2,242,030

13,350,518

8,826,458

Current maturity of long term loans

19.1

Note
16

All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found to be impaired.
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PREPAYMENTS

Note

Insurance
Rent
Software maintenance

June 30, 2017
Rupees
4,963,952

4,931,166

79,428

3,726,800

11,659,393

10,583,848

-

1,200,000

WAN line rent
Servers & other hardware maintainance
Others

21

513,832

282,368

1,106,359

4,733,203

18,322,964

25,457,385

5,331,570

40,635,772

2,898,820

2,813,863

130,240

-

MARK-UP ACCRUED
Mark-up accrued on PIBs

22

June 30, 2016
Rupees

23.3

OTHER RECEIVABLES
From related parties
- ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary
- CDC Trustee Company Limited - Subsidiary
- eClear Services Limited - Subsidiary
- National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited - Associated Company
From other parties

8,872,527

-

903,815

910,689

4,781,880

3,322,519

17,587,282

7,047,071

22.1

All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found to be impaired.

23

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Available for sale investments

23.1

- Term Deposit Certificates

23.1 & 37.2

1,059,038,628

382,840,548

- Treasury Bills

23.2 & 37.2

1,309,881,578

685,881,550

- Pakistan Investment Bonds

23.3 & 37.2

148,498,327

848,911,321

2,517,418,533

1,917,633,419

This represents investment in fixed Term Deposit Certificates. The rate of profit on these certificates is 5.90% to 6.00% (2016: 6.40% to 7.50%) per

annum.		
23.2

This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of profit on these certificates is 5.84% to 5.99% (2016: 5.99% to 8.97%) per annum.

23.3

The Company has investments in Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs). These are measured at fair value using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate on these securities varies from 7.89% to 12.25% (2016: 7.89% to 12.25%) per annum.

24

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Bank balances
- in saving accounts

24.1

- in current accounts
Amount held on behalf of clients
Net bank balance
Cash in hand

24.3

60,311,800

61,199,437

161,207,919

11,585,885

(154,435,809)

(6,490,800)

67,083,910

66,294,522

132,589

138,319

67,216,499

66,432,841

24.1

The rate of profit varies from 4.75% to 6.00% (2016: 5.25% to 6.40%) per annum.

24.2

Bank balances include Rs. 12.30 million (2016: Rs. 7.17 million) held with related parties.

24.3

This amount is held by the Company in the current account maintained with State Bank of Pakistan on behalf of clients under trustee and custodialship
for settlement purpose.
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Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Depository services - net

25.1

1,204,329,111

995,516,167

Trusteeship and custodial services - net

25.2

580,748,891

462,115,721

Share registrar services - net

25.3

64,982,802

39,843,103

Miscellaneous income - net

25.4

5,186,369

5,001,487

1,855,247,173

1,502,476,478

OPERATING INCOME - NET

(12,733,473)

(10,400,285)

1,842,513,700

1,492,076,193

Depository services

1,362,285,848

1,137,328,269

Less: Sales tax

(157,956,737)

(141,812,102)

25.1.1

1,204,329,111

995,516,167

25.1.2

231,897,856

145,031,594

432,824,442

378,103,369

Sub account maintenance fee

66,629,195

58,505,450

CDS connection fee

46,322,000

28,025,500

Security induction fee

227,683,942

226,681,017

Annual fee

SECP supervision fee

25.1

25.1.1

25.5

Depository services - net

Depository services - net
Transaction fee
Custody fee

25.1.2

172,387,468

133,373,920

Cancellation fee

17,461,721

18,180,331

Withdrawal fee

6,698,487

5,090,186

Vasco service charges

2,424,000

2,524,800

1,204,329,111

995,516,167

Transaction fee - net
Transaction fee
Less: SECP levy

25.1.3

June 30, 2016
Rupees

25.1.3

278,963,170

175,390,453

(47,065,314)

(30,358,859)

231,897,856

145,031,594

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 (2016: 0.000405) paisa per share as transaction fee which is borne
by the Company.

25.2

Trusteeship and custodial services - net

Note

Trusteeship and custodial businesses
Less: SECP levy
Less: Sales tax

25.2.1

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

692,892,493

551,429,835

(28,916,101)

(23,068,345)

(83,227,501)

(66,245,769)

580,748,891

462,115,721

25.2.1

SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (2016: 0.005%) of average annual assets of open end scheme or closed end scheme under its trusteeship.

25.3

Share registrar services - net

25.4

25.5

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Share registrar services

72,129,393

46,258,011

Less: Sales tax

(7,146,591)

(6,414,908)

64,982,802

39,843,103

Miscellaneous income

5,917,107

5,695,029

Less: Sales tax

(730,738)

(693,542)

5,186,369

5,001,487

Miscellaneous income - net

SECP imposed a levy @ 1% (2016: 1%) of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee and certain depository service fee.
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OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Note

Salaries and other benefits

26.1 & 26.2

Travelling and conveyance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Training and development
Communication
Printing and stationery

567,580,333

526,357,157

7,730,675

8,299,406

14,006,884

12,663,319

6,621,747

13,861,672

11,874,546

10,432,866
9,368,498

Rent, rates and taxes

17,810,515

16,476,578

Insurance

23,737,574

23,413,690

Repairs and maintenance

75,932,734

67,302,453

Legal and professional charges

19,129,906

18,058,001

Advertisement and publicity
Office supplies

7,304,617

6,817,220

53,264,990

21,591,056

4,357,065

4,329,668

Meeting expenses

10,782,247

7,448,577

Wide-area-network line rent

10,025,364

9,775,331

4,551,695

2,693,579

Auditors' remuneration

26.3

Depreciation

14.1.1

100,668,594

93,316,555

Amortization

14.2.1

33,845,601

29,168,513

Fuel and electricity

31,383,484

31,445,079

Finance outsourcing

14,687,999

-

Security services

10,340,134

9,891,230

Cafeteria

5,563,411

7,512,561

Miscellaneous

4,765,773

5,029,681

1,045,744,754

935,252,690

Salaries and other benefits include
- Compensated absences

9.2

4,709,802

5,921,910

- Defined benefit gratuity fund

33.3

27,533,000

29,000,000

4,991,646

4,003,427

20,621,754

21,361,157

- Defined contribution gratuity fund
- Contribution to provident fund

26.2

June 30, 2016
Rupees

9,778,866

Fee and subscription

26.1

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Executives
June 30, 2017
CEO

June 30, 2016

Executives

CEO

Executives

---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------Managerial Remuneration

22,265,650

199,610,209

25,571,481

Bonus

15,265,000

67,275,000

20,367,000

55,589,000

Gratuity fund

1,759,559

15,475,954

2,212,916

14,015,102

Provident fund

1,173,038

11,254,872

1,475,278

9,984,597

-

1,406,342

-

961,794

40,463,247

295,022,377

49,626,675

257,885,427

2

101

1

88

Defined contribution gratuity fund
Number of Person

26.2.1

177,334,934

The CEO and executives are provided with the Company maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled for other benefits in
accordance with the terms of employment.		

26.2.2

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of directors’ fee paid during the year was Rs. 8.93 million (2016: Rs. 6.24 million).

26.3

Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees
Half year review
Others
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June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

1,706,731

1,580,306

469,309

434,545

2,375,655

678,728

4,551,695

2,693,579
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26.4

June 30, 2017

Employees provident fund
- Size of the fund - Net assets (Rupees)

54,569,206

- Number of members
- Cost of investments made (Rupees)

26.4.1

60,838,746

391

396

43,525,426

46,453,592

- Percentage of investments made to size of the fund
- Fair value of investments (Rupees)

June 30, 2016

80%

76%

46,194,743

48,512,183

These figures pertain to the year ended June 30, 2017. The audited account of the fund has not been finalized for the current year. Investments out of
Provident Fund has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance 1984 and the rules formulated for this
purpose.

27

OTHER INCOME

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Income from financial assets
- Return on bank deposits

4,465,925

- Interest on loans to employees

1,127,467

588,602

-

5,441,034

133,248,173

150,498,699

138,841,565

159,975,944

- Realized gain on held-for-trading investments
- Return / capital gain on investment - available for sale investment

3,447,609

Income from non-financial assets
- Gain on disposal of property and equipment - net

415,387

1,654,396

- Penalties and fines

860,200

2,614,100

4,992,785

2,623,383

- Others

28

6,891,879

145,109,937

166,867,823

23,543,440

18,088,643

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expense

28.1

6,268,372

28.1

CSR expense amounting to Rs. 6.30 million (2016: Rs. 11.25 million) have been made to an institution in which a director has common directorship. No
other director and their spouses had any interest in any institution to which this amount has been allocated during the year.

29

FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank charges

30

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

141,275

145,622

317,400,000

251,574,556

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current
Prior

(1,471,087)

-

Deferred

(6,449,396)

(5,574,556)

309,479,517

246,000,000

30.1

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including tax year 2016 except as disclosed in note 12.1.

30.2

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before income tax
Enacted tax rate
Tax charge at enacted rate
Tax effect of exempt income or income taxed at different rate
Super tax
Others

June 30, 2017
Rupees
918,194,168
31%

June 30, 2016
Rupees
705,457,061
32%

284,640,192

225,746,260

-

(380,872)

28,400,000

21,500,000

(3,560,675)

(865,388)

309,479,517

246,000,000
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

31.1

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees
608,714,651

Profit after income tax

June 30, 2016
Rupees
459,457,061

Number of Shares

(Restated)
100,000,000

Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic

31.1.1

31.1.1

100,000,000

Rupees

Rupees
(Restated)

6.09

4.59

These annual unconsolidated financial statements have been restated to account for the effect of bonus shares issued on EPS in order to fairly present
the result of year ended June 30, 2016.

31.2

Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted
Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2017 and
2016 which would have any effect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is exercisable.

32

33

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Cash and bank balances

24

67,216,499

66,432,841

Short term investments

23

2,517,418,533

1,917,633,419

2,584,635,032

1,984,066,260

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The gratuity fund is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in accordance with the rules of the gratuity
fund. The obligation under the fund is determined through an actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. Principal actuarial assumptions
used in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2017 are as follows:
June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Rate per annum

33.1

Discount rate per annum (compound rate)

9.25%

7.25%

Salary increase rate

8.00%

6.00%

Rupees

Rupees

Statement of financial position item

Note

The amounts recognized in balance sheet are as follows

33.2

Present value of defined benefit obligation

33.4

306,649,142

314,213,142

Fair value of plan assets

33.5

(254,857,607)

(277,553,607)

Movement in net defined benefit obligation

33.2

51,791,535

36,659,535

36,659,535

31,707,535

Movement in net defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Expense for the year

33.3

Payment to fund during the year
Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

33.3

9.1

27,533,000

29,000,000

(28,196,000)

(27,382,000)

15,795,000

3,334,000

51,791,535

36,659,535

Amounts recognized in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income (OCI)
The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income in respect of these benefits:

Note

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Current service cost

24,842,000

Interest cost

22,812,000

27,848,000

(20,121,000)

(24,635,000)

27,533,000

29,000,000

Expected return on plan assets
Net interest
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26.1

25,787,000
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June 30, 2017
Rupees

33.4

Remeasurement loss / (gain) on obligation

19,144,000

(1,526,000)

Remeasurement (gain) /loss on plan assets

(3,349,000)

4,860,000

Remeasurement losses recognised in OCI

15,795,000

3,334,000

Balance at the end of the year

43,328,000

32,334,000

314,213,142

279,662,142

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Transfer to Subsidiary - ITMinds Limited

(5,322,000)

1,475,000

Current service cost

24,842,000

25,787,000

Interest cost

22,812,000

27,848,000

Benefit paid

(69,040,000)

(19,033,000)

Actuarial gain on obligation
Balance at the end of the year

33.5

June 30, 2016
Rupees

19,144,000

(1,526,000)

306,649,142

314,213,142

277,553,607

247,954,607

Movement in fair value of plan assets
Balance at the beginning of the year
Transfer to subsidiary - ITMinds Limited

(5,322,000)

1,475,000

Expected return on plan assets

20,121,000

24,635,000

Contributions

28,196,000

27,382,000

Benefits paid

(69,040,000)

(19,033,000)

Actuarial loss on plan assets
Balance at the end of the year

3,349,000

(4,860,000)

254,857,607

277,553,607

306,649,000

314,214,142

Analysis of Present value of defined benefit obligation (PBO)
Split by Vested / Non-Vested
(i) Vested benefits

-

-

306,649,000

314,214,142

(i) Present value of guaranteed benefits

148,657,000

181,810,766

(ii) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase

157,992,000

132,403,376

306,649,000

314,214,142

(ii) Non-vested benefits

Split by Benefits earned to date

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration of the Present value of defined benefit obligation (time in years)

Distribution of timing of benefit payments
Time in years

9.61

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Within first year from the end of financial year

37,051,000

13,432,000

Within second years from the end of financial year

14,904,000

35,327,000

Within third years from the end of financial year

19,486,000

14,500,000

Within fourth years from the end of financial year

22,450,000

18,568,000

Within five years from the end of financial year

32,882,000

21,213,000

166,943,000

229,068,000

Within six to ten years from the end of financial year

33.6

9.95

Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows
Treasury bills

48,948,000

76,756,607

Special saving certificates

134,919,000

130,897,000

Defense saving certificate

68,512,000

63,342,000

Bank balance
Total fair value of plan assets

2,479,000

6,558,000

254,858,000

277,553,607
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Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on present value of defined benefit obligation

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Base

306,649,000

314,214,142

Discount Rate +1%

278,352,000

286,194,000

Discount Rate -1%

339,725,000

346,923,000

Expected rate of salary increase +1%

341,376,000

348,638,000

Expected rate of salary increase -1%

276,513,000

284,288,000

These figures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2017. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method.
33.7

The expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2018 works out to be Rs. 28.9 million.

34

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies with or without common directors, retirement benefit funds,
directors, key management personnel and their close family members.
Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective notes are as follows:
June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Rent of premises paid to:
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated company)
- LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)

6,566,676

5,527,080

924,124

262,472

7,490,800

5,789,552

6,566,676

5,527,080

Rent expense:
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated company)
- LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)

Mark-up earned - Associated companies

924,124

838,472

7,490,800

6,365,552

294,370

267,495

The shareholders and directors of the Company are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total revenue from transactions in CDS
relating to shareholders and directors are as follows:
June 30, 2017
Rupees
67,286,554

48,795,773

1,120,284

1,240,959

Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue of common directorship

47,348,741

55,069,625

Contributions to retirement plans

58,063,130

52,746,584

335,000

754,400

Transactions with The Citizens Foundation - Donation / Sponsorship

6,300,000

11,250,000

Transactions with Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) - Advertisement, parking & intercom

1,241,724

6,920,824

583,371

151,489

-

2,470,834

10,271,424

9,665,798

Shareholders
Directors

Transactions with Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) Annual subscription & Directors’ training program

Transactions with LSE Financial Services Limited - Directors travelling, Electricity & generator charges
Transactions with ISE REIT Management Limited - Utilities & directors travelling
Transactions with NCCPL - Electricity & generator charges
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June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Transaction / Balance with ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary
Opening balance

2,813,863

(558,068)

Transactions - net

12,677,049

22,871,931

Payment received

(12,500,000)

(19,500,000)

2,990,912

2,813,863

12,500

12,500

Closing balance
Security deposit held by the Company for subsidiary's CDS eligibility
Transaction / Balance with CDC Trustee Company Limited - Subsidiary
Opening balance

-

-

Transactions - net

1,622,367

1,215,551

Payment received

(1,492,127)

(1,215,551)

130,240

-

12,500

12,500

Closing balance
Security deposit held by the Company for subsidiary's CDS eligibility
Transaction / Balance with eClear Services Limited - Subsidiary
Opening balance

-

-

Transactions - net

8,872,527

-

Payment received

-

-

8,872,527

-

Closing balance

34.1

The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm’s length prices using the comparable
uncontrolled valuation method.

34.2

The Company has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Company’s policies and terms of
employment.

35

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

35.1

Financial risk management
The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Market risk
- Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
- Capital risk
- Liquidity risk

35.1.1

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price due
to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and
liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk and interest rate risk.
(a) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates. The Company is
not significantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Company are carried out in the local currency.
(b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing liabilities. However, the Company has fixed
interest based investments and loans to employees. These investments are classified as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity of the
interest rates and management’s intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not affected by volatility of market interest rate.
Other assets and liabilities of the Company does not expose the Company to interest rate risk substantially.
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The Company has investments in the following securities having fixed rate of return:

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Note

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

21 & 23

June 30, 2016
Rupees

153,829,897

889,547,093

Treasury Bills (T-Bills)

23

1,309,881,578

685,881,550

Term Deposit Certificates (TDCs)

23

1,059,038,628

382,840,548

2,522,750,103

1,958,269,191

Investments in PIBs & TBills are Government backed securities with guaranteed return. In addition, investment in TDCs and treasury bills are for a
period of 3 months and 3, 6 & 12 months respectively. Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not affect the cash flows of the Company.
(c) Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. It is the risk of losing money due to a fall in the market
price of a security that the entity owns. It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market financial instruments. Currently entity has no security
designated as held for trading therfore there is no implications of price risks.
35.2

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:
Mark-up bearing
Effective
yield / interest
rates (%)

June 30, 2017
Note

Over one
year to
five years

Less than
one year

Non
Markup
bearing

Over five
years

Total

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets
Investments
Loan and advances

15, 21 & 23

5.84 - 12.25

2,522,750,103

-

-

100,000,000

2,622,750,103

16 & 19

0.00 - 3.00

7,974,690

42,511,600

-

3,685,201

54,171,491

Deposits

17

-

-

-

7,458,969

7,458,969

Trade debts

18

-

-

-

343,504,382

343,504,382

Mark up accrued

21

-

-

-

5,331,570

5,331,570

Other receivables

22

-

-

-

17,587,282

17,587,282

Cash and bank balances

24

60,311,800

-

-

161,340,508

221,652,308

2,591,036,593

42,511,600

-

638,907,912

3,272,456,105

7 & 10

-

-

-

119,036,000

119,036,000

9

-

-

-

377,247,428

377,247,428

-

-

-

496,283,428

496,283,428

4.75 - 6.00

Financial liabilities
Deposits
Trade and other payables

Mark-up bearing
Effective
yield / interest
rates (%)

June 30, 2016
Note

Over one
year to
five years

Less than
one year

Non
Markup
bearing

Over five
years

Total

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets
Investments
Loan and advances

15, 21 & 23

5.99 - 12.25

1,958,269,191

-

-

100,000,000

2,058,269,191

16 & 19

0.00 - 3.00

6,584,428

37,207,757

-

1,583,543

45,375,728

Deposits

17

-

-

-

6,756,018

6,756,018

Trade debts

18

-

-

-

241,224,441

241,224,441

Mark up accrued

21

-

-

-

40,635,772

40,635,772

Other receivables

22

-

-

-

7,047,071

7,047,071

Cash and bank balances

24

61,199,437

-

-

11,724,204

72,923,641

2,026,053,056

37,207,757

-

408,971,049

2,472,231,862

-

-

-

116,885,498

116,885,498

-

-

-

273,897,125

273,897,125

-

-

-

390,782,623

390,782,623

5.25 - 6.40

Financial liabilities
Deposits
Trade and other payables

35.3

7 & 10
9

Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
The Company prepares its unconsolidated financial statements under the historical cost convention except for measurement of available for sale
investments at the fair value, held to maturity investments at amortised cost and recognition of staff retirement benefits on the actuarial valuation
basis. The estimated fair values of all financial instruments are not significantly different from their carrying values on June 30, 2017.
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35.4

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to incur a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk at very low level

Rating

Highest

Lowest

Short Term

A-1+

A-1+

Long Term

AAA

AA

The credit quality investments in mutual fund can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings having rating of AAA (f). The aging analysis of
trade debts is provided in note 18.1.
35.5

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Company’s liquidity and cash
flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and
avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers.
As at June 30, 2017 the Company’s liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:
Current
within 6 months

Deposits

Non-Current

within 6-12
months

1 to 5
years

later than
5 years

Total

Note

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

7 & 10

460,500

-

-

118,575,500

119,036,000

377,247,428

-

-

-

377,247,428

377,707,928

-

-

118,575,500

496,283,428

Trade & other payable

9

As at June 30, 2016 the Company’s liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:
Current
within 6 months
Note
Deposits

7 & 10

Trade & other payable

36

9

Non-Current

within 6-12
months

1 to 5
years

later than
5 years

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------660,498

-

-

116,225,000

116,885,498

273,897,125

-

-

-

273,897,125

274,557,623

-

-

116,225,000

390,782,623

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES
June 30, 2017
Loan and
receivables
Note

Held for
trading

Available for
sale

Held to
maturity

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets
Non current assets
Long term investments

15

100,000,000

-

-

-

100,000,000

Long term loans

16

42,511,600

-

-

-

42,511,600

Long term deposits

17

7,458,969

-

-

-

7,458,969

149,970,569

-

-

-

149,970,569

Current assets
Trade debts - net

18

343,504,382

-

-

-

343,504,382

Loans and advances

19

13,350,518

-

-

-

13,350,518

Mark-up accrued

21

5,331,570

-

-

-

5,331,570

Other receivables

22

17,587,282

-

-

-

17,587,282
2,517,418,533

Short term investments

23

-

-

2,517,418,533

-

Cash and bank balances

24

67,216,499

-

-

-

67,216,499

446,990,251

-

2,517,418,533

-

2,964,408,784

596,960,820

-

2,517,418,533

-

3,114,379,353
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June 30, 2017
Amortized Cost
Note

Held for trading

Total

-----------------------Rupees--------------------------

Financial liabilities
Non current liabilities
Long term deposits

7

118,575,500

-

118,575,500

Trade and other payables

9

377,247,428

-

377,247,428

Short term deposits

10

460,500

-

460,500

377,707,928

-

377,707,928

496,283,428

-

496,283,428

Current liabilities

June 30, 2016
Loan and
receivables
Note

Held for
trading

Available for
sale

Held to
maturity

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets
Non current assets
Long term investments

15

100,000,000

-

-

-

100,000,000

Long term loans

16

37,207,757

-

-

-

37,207,757

Long term deposits

17

6,756,018

-

-

-

6,756,018

143,963,775

-

-

-

143,963,775
241,224,441

Current assets
Trade debts - net

18

241,224,441

-

-

-

Loans and advances

19

8,167,971

-

-

-

8,167,971

Mark-up accrued

21

40,635,772

-

-

-

40,635,772

Other receivables

22

7,047,071

-

-

-

7,047,071

Short term investments

23

-

-

1,917,633,419

-

1,917,633,419

Cash and bank balances

24

66,432,841

-

-

-

66,432,841

363,508,096

-

1,917,633,419

-

2,281,141,515

507,471,871

-

1,917,633,419

-

2,425,105,290

June 30, 2016
Amortized Cost
Note

Held for trading

Total

-----------------------Rupees--------------------------

Financial liabilities
Non current liabilities
Long term deposits

7

116,225,000

-

116,225,000

Trade and other payables

9

Short term deposits

10

273,897,125

-

273,897,125

660,498

-

660,498

274,557,623

-

274,557,623

390,782,623

-

390,782,623

Current liabilities

37

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or the most
advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

37.1

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

120

Level 1

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
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37.2

Financial assets and liabilities
The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016.
June 30, 2017
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale securities
- Term deposit certificates

1,059,038,628

-

1,059,038,628

-

1,059,038,628

- Treasury bills

1,309,881,578

-

1,309,881,578

-

1,309,881,578

153,829,897

-

153,829,897

-

153,829,897

55,862,118

-

-

-

55,862,118

7,458,969

-

-

-

7,458,969

343,504,382

-

-

-

343,504,382

- Pakistan investment bonds
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark-up accrued

5,331,570

-

-

-

5,331,570

Other receivables

17,587,282

-

-

-

17,587,282

3,019,710,923

-

2,522,750,103

-

3,019,710,923

Deposits

119,036,000

-

-

-

119,036,000

Trade and other payables

377,247,428

-

-

-

377,247,428

496,283,428

-

-

-

496,283,428

67,216,499

Cash and bank balances

67,216,499

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

June 30, 2016
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale securities
- Term deposit certificates

382,840,548

-

382,840,548

-

382,840,548

- Treasury bills

685,881,550

-

685,881,550

-

685,881,550

- Pakistan investment bonds

889,547,093

-

889,547,093

-

889,547,093

45,375,728

-

-

-

45,375,728

6,756,018

-

-

-

6,756,018

241,224,441

-

-

-

241,224,441

Mark-up accrued

40,635,772

-

-

-

40,635,772

Other receivables

7,047,071

-

-

-

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts

66,432,841

Cash and bank balances

-

7,047,071
66,432,841

2,365,741,062

-

1,958,269,191

-

2,365,741,062

Deposits

116,885,498

-

-

-

116,885,498

Trade and other payables

273,897,125

-

-

-

273,897,125

390,782,623

-

-

-

390,782,623

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

37.3

Information about valuation technique and inputs used
Item

Valuation technique and inputs used

Term Deposit
Certificates

A deposit at a bank or other financial institution that has a fixed return (usually via an interest rate) and a set maturity. That is, the depositor does not have access to the funds until maturity; in exchange, he/she is usually entitled to a higher interest rate. One of the most
common examples of a term deposit is a certificate of deposit. It is also called a time deposit.

Pakistan Investment
Bonds and Market
Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV rates (Reuters page)
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37.4

Non-financial assets and liabilities
The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at June 30, 2017 and June
30, 2016.
June 30, 2017
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------Land-lease hold

549,999,000

-

-

549,999,000

549,999,000

Building

445,322,662

-

-

445,322,662

445,322,662

995,321,662

-

-

995,321,662

995,321,662

June 30, 2016
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

38

Land-lease hold

427,777,000

-

-

427,777,000

427,777,000

Building

269,182,466

-

-

269,182,466

269,182,466

696,959,466

-

-

696,959,466

696,959,466

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
It is the responsibiltiy of the Board of Directors to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the business, safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as profit after income tax divided by
total shareholders’ equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders.
The Company finances its operations through equity and management of working capital. The equity for the purpose of capital risk management comprises share capital,
reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments and unappropriated profit.

39

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
The directors in their meeting held on August 25, 2017 have proposed bonus shares @ 6.09% i.e. 6.09 million shares (2016: 53.846% i.e. 35 million shares) and cash dividend of
Rs. 1.83 per share (2016: Re.0.3077 per share) of Rs.10 each i.e. 18.3% of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended June 30, 2017. The unconsolidated financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2017 do not include the effect of these appropriations which will be accounted for in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.

40

41

EMPLOYEES

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Number of employees at the end of the year

402

415

Average number of employees during the year

394

406

DATE OF AUTHORISATION
These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their 191st meeting held on August 25, 2017.
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Directors’ Report on Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements
The Directors of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDCPL) are pleased to present their report together with
audited consolidated financial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited and its Subsidiary Companies
for the year ended June 30, 2017.
The consolidated results comprise of financial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (The Holding
Company) and its subsidiaries ITMinds Limited, CDC Trustee Company Limited and eClear Services Limited. The Holding
Company has annexed its consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial statements, in accordance with
the requirement of International Accounting Standard 27 (Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements). The Directors’
Report, giving a commentary on the performance of Central Depository Company for the year ended June 30, 2017 has been
presented separately.
Rupees in million
June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Profit for the year before tax

919

702

Taxation

311

247

Profit after tax

608

455

Earnings per share (Rs.)

6.08

4.55

Risk and uncertainties relating to the Holding Company has been disclosed in the standalone Directors’ Report whereas no
major risk and uncertainty has been identified relating to Subsidiary Companies. Internal control structure of the group is the
same as that of Holding Company which is also covered in standalone Director’s Report.
Details relating to Directors of Holding Company has been mentioned in the standalone Directors’ Report. The name of the
Directors in office at any time during the year of Subsidiary Companies are as follows:

Directors of ITMinds Limited

Directors of CDC Trustee Company Limited

Directors of eClear Services Limited

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura (D)

Mr. Shariq Naseem

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem (R)

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Syed Veqar-ul-Islam

Syed Majid Ali (R)

Mr. Shariq Jafrani (R)

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

Mr. Muhammad Junaid Shekha

Mr. Abdul Samad

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura (D)

Mr. Atiqur Rehman

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Rafi (R)

Mr. Shariq Jafrani
Mr. Naveed Amin

D = Deceased
R = Resigned
All Subsidiary Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of CDCPL and pattern of shareholding relating to Holding Company
has been disclosed in the standalone Directors’ Report.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-sdChief Executive Officer
Karachi, dated: Friday, August 25, 2017
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising of consolidated balance sheet of Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group) as at June 30, 2017 and the
related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then
ended. We have also audited financial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited and its subsidiary
companies namely ITMinds Limited, CDC Trustee Company Limited and eClear Services Limited.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Holding Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included such tests of
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited and its subsidiary companies as at June 30, 2017 and the results of their operations for the year then ended.

-sdGrant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
Karachi, dated: Friday, August 25, 2017

Engagement Partner
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consolidATed BAlAnce sheeT
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2017

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital 150,000,000 (2016: 150,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 100,000,000 (2016: 65,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

5

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,000,000,000

650,000,000

Reserves
Reserve fund
Unappropriated profit

100,000,000

100,000,000

1,829,034,790

1,591,301,368

10,031

4,934,808

1,929,044,821

1,696,236,176

2,929,044,821

2,346,236,176

6

719,539,436

465,862,802

Long term deposits

7

118,550,500

116,200,000

Deferred taxation - net

8

107,868,097

66,710,364

226,418,597

182,910,364

359,418,116

Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net
Total shareholders' equity
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net
Non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

9

485,635,471

Short term deposits

10

460,500

660,498

Unearned fee

11

47,561,822

42,601,748

Taxation - net

12

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Contingencies and commitments

13

Total equity and liabilities

30,394,533

22,882,421

564,052,326

425,562,783

790,470,923

608,473,147

-

-

4,439,055,180

3,420,572,125

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Property and equipment

14.1

1,203,381,743

891,704,038

Intangibles

14.2

128,764,648

100,306,953

1,332,146,391

992,010,991
37,207,757

Long term loans

15

43,988,976

Long term deposits and prepayments

16

15,292,938

13,020,838

1,391,428,305

1,042,239,586

246,010,424

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Trade debts - net

17

346,730,379

Loans and advances

18

14,069,011

8,826,458

Prepayments

19

18,417,375

25,562,728
40,635,772

Mark-up accrued

20

5,331,570

Other receivables

21

6,681,733

5,141,511

Short term investments

22

2,579,311,193

1,976,992,615

Cash and bank balances

23

Total current assets
Total assets

77,085,614

75,163,031

3,047,626,875

2,378,332,539

4,439,055,180

3,420,572,125

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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consolidATed PRofiT And loss AccounT
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Operating income - net

24

1,869,367,659

1,512,492,898

Operating and administrative expenses

25

(1,071,599,054)

(962,285,578)

797,768,605

550,207,320

Operating profit
Other income

26

144,904,489

170,239,061

Other operating expenses

27

(23,543,440)

(18,088,643)

Financial charges

28

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

29

Profit for the year
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Restated)

30

(195,919)

(234,932)

121,165,130

151,915,486

918,933,735

702,122,806

(310,755,996)

(246,834,374)

608,177,739

455,288,432

6.08

4.55

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017
Rupees
Profit for the year

June 30, 2016
Rupees

608,177,739

455,288,432

(7,261,063)

(29,001,383)

Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Items that may be reclassified to consolidated profit and loss account subsequently
Unrealised loss on remeasurement of available for sale investments
Impact of deferred tax
Loss realised on disposal of investments

2,336,286

9,995,279

-

(1,104,774)

(4,924,777)

(20,110,878)

(16,473,000)

(3,027,999)

Items that will never be reclassified to consolidated profit and loss account
Loss on remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation

4,896,450

1,066,880

(11,576,550)

(1,961,119)

Total other comprehensive loss

(16,501,327)

(22,071,997)

Total comprehensive income for the year

591,676,412

433,216,435

Impact of current tax

Surplus arising on revaluation of property & equipment has been reported in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance 1984, in a seperate account below equity.
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax

918,933,735

702,122,806

Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds
Depreciation on property and equipment

14.1.1

101,973,231

94,701,067

Amortization on intangibles

14.2.1

33,845,601

29,168,513

Loss / (gain) on disposal of property and equipment

26

597,613

(3,217,760)

Return on bank deposits

26

(4,787,274)

(4,015,374)

Gain on sale of available for sale investments

26

(133,248,173)

(150,498,699)

-

(5,445,922)

(4,723,482)

(3,332,610)

Gain on sale of held for trading investments
Dividend income
Financial charges
Provision for retirement benefit plans

28
32.3

Operating profit before working capital changes

195,919

234,932

29,152,000

30,432,000

23,005,435

(11,973,853)

941,939,170

690,148,953

(100,719,955)

(73,166,194)

(5,242,553)

(3,643,832)

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Other receivables

7,145,353

1,685,446

(1,540,222)

(2,227,628)

(100,357,377)

(77,352,208)

110,607,355

39,411,054

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits

(199,998)

(74,500)

Unearned fees

4,960,074

(4,217,259)

115,367,431

35,119,295

Increase in loans (assets)

(6,781,219)

(26,246,617)

Increase in deposits and prepayments (assets)

(2,272,100)

(6,313,038)

Increase in long term deposits (liabilities)
Cash generated from operations
Contribution paid to retirement benefit plans
Financial charges paid

32.2
28

Income tax paid
Net cash from operating activities

2,350,500

2,412,500

(6,702,819)

(30,147,155)

950,246,405

617,768,885

(30,015,000)

(29,061,277)

(195,919)

(234,932)

(311,863,583)

(248,857,981)

(342,074,502)

(278,154,190)

608,171,903

339,614,695

(157,198,262)

(146,695,579)

2,465,452

8,693,956

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Mark-up received

40,091,476

5,267,398

Investments - net

125,987,110

125,838,464

Dividend received
Net cash generated / (used) in investing activities

4,723,482

3,332,610

16,069,258

(3,563,151)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(20,000,000)

(211,250,000)

Net cash used in financing activities

(20,000,000)

(211,250,000)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

604,241,161

124,801,544

2,052,155,646

1,927,354,102

2,656,396,807

2,052,155,646

Dividend paid

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
Cash and cash equivalents at the end

31

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017
Issued,
subscribed and
paid-up share
capital
Note
Balance as at July 1, 2015

* Reserve
fund

Unappropriated
profit

Surplus on
revaluation of
Available for sale
investments - net

Total
shareholders’
equity

--------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------------------650,000,000

100,000,000

1,338,409,847

25,045,686

2,113,455,533

- Profit after income tax

-

-

455,288,432

-

455,288,432

- Other comprehensive loss

-

-

(1,961,131)

(20,110,878)

(22,072,009)

-

-

453,327,301

(20,110,878)

433,216,423

-

-

(211,250,000)

-

(211,250,000)

-

-

10,814,220

-

10,814,220

Balance as at June 30, 2016

650,000,000

100,000,000

1,591,301,368

4,934,808

2,346,236,176

Balance as at July 1, 2016

650,000,000

100,000,000

1,591,301,368

4,934,808

2,346,236,176

- Profit after income tax

-

-

608,177,739

-

608,177,739

- Other comprehensive loss

-

-

(11,576,550)

(4,924,777)

(16,501,327)

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

596,601,189

(4,924,777)

591,676,412

Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity

-

Final dividend @ 3.077%
(i.e. Re. 0.3077 per share)

-

-

(20,000,000)

-

(20,000,000)

Bonus shares @ 53.846%
(i.e. 35 million shares)

350,000,000

-

(350,000,000)

-

-

Total transactions with owners

350,000,000

-

(370,000,000)

-

(20,000,000)

-

-

11,132,233

-

11,132,233

1,000,000,000

100,000,000

1,829,034,790

10,031

2,929,044,821

Comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity
Final dividend paid @ 32.5%
( i.e. Rs. 3.25 per share )

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net off deferred tax

6

Comprehensive income for the year

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net off deferred tax

Balance as at June 30, 2017

6

* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Holding Company.
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017
1

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1

The ‘Group’ consists of :		
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (The Holding Company), and its subsidiaries namely ITMinds Limited (ITML), CDC Trustee Company
Limited (CTCL) and eClear Services Limited (ECL).
Holding Company
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
Holding Company was incorporated, as a public company with its liability limited by shares, on January 21, 1993 and received certificate of
commencement of business on August 10, 1994. The principal business activity of the Holding Company is to act as a depository for securities and to
open securities account. The Holding Company also acts as a registrar to the issuer of securities.
Holding Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodial-ship to closed-end funds formed under the said regulations.
Holding Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and Centralized Information Sharing
Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII).
The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan.
Subsidiary Companies
ITMinds Limited
ITMinds Limited (ITML) was incorporated as public limited company on December 8, 2011 and received certificate of commencement of business on
January 30, 2012. The registered office of the Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan. The principal activities of
the Company is to provide Information Technology and Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) services. The Holding Company’s controlling interest is
100% (2016: 100%).
ITML has been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017.
CDC Trustee Company Limited
CDC Trustee Company Limited (CTCL) was incorporated as public limited unlisted Company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Ordinance,
1984 on September 07, 2012 and received certificate of commencement of business on December 17, 2012. The registered office of the Company is
situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S Karachi, Pakistan. The company was formed with an objective to act as trustee for open-end funds &
closed-end schemes, voluntary pension schemes and to provide custodial services to closed end funds, discretionary/non-discretionary portfolios. The
Holding Company’s controlling interest is 100% (2016: 100%).
CTCL has been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017.
eClear Services Limited
eClear Services Limited (ECL) is incorporated during the year as public limited unlisted Company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 on January 20, 2017. The registered office of the Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S Karachi, Pakistan. The
company was formed with an objective to act as Professional Clearing Member as per Professional Clearing Member Regulations.
ECL has been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of audited financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2017.

2

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1

Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance,
1984. Wherever the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) differ
with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.
Subsidiaries are following approved accounting standard comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities
(IFRS for SMEs) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance,
1984 or directives issued by the SECP shall prevail.
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2.2

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together “the Group”. The assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the carrying value of the investment held by the
Holding Company has been eliminated against corresponding Holding in subsidiaries’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses have been eliminated.
The consolidated financial statements of the group are prepared for the same reporting year as the unconsolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and the subsidiaries, using same accounting policies being consistently applied.

2.3

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

2.3.1

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Group and adopted in the current year
The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during
the current year.
Standard or Interpretation

Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements)

January 1, 2016

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 - Investment Entities : Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28)

January 1, 2016

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

January 1, 2016

IAS 16 and IAS 41 - Agriculture: Bearer Plants (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41)

January 1, 2016

IAS 27 - Equity method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27)

January 1, 2016

IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

January 1, 2016

IFRS 11 - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (Amendments to IFRS 11)

January 1, 2016

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended June
30, 2016 and 2017.
2.3.2

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant
The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on June
01, 2016 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group’s financial reporting and operations and are therefore not
presented here.

2.3.3

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by the
Group
The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates mentioned below against
the respective standard or interpretation.
Standard or Interpretation

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)
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Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)
Postponed

IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)

January 1, 2017

IAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to IAS 12)

January 1, 2017

IFRS 12 - Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016

January 1, 2017

IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction (Amendments to IFRS 2)

January 1, 2018

IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016

January 1, 2018

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

January 1, 2018

IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

January 1, 2018

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

January 1, 2019
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The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on the financial
statements of the Group.
2.3.4

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP)
Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
Standard or Interpretation

IASB Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

January 1, 2016

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

January 1, 2018

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (2014) and consequent amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

January 1, 2018

IFRS 16 - Leases

January 1, 2019

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

January 1, 2021

2.4

Basis of measurement

2.4.1

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition of staff retirement benefits
at present value based on actuarial valuation, land- lease hold and building at revalued amount and measurement of certain investments at fair value
and amortised cost.

2.4.2

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow statement.

2.4.3

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Holding
Company operates.

2.5

Presentation and functional currency
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

2.6

General
The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

3

CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS, JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or
area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are as follows:
Note
a) Staff retirement benefits

4.2

b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets

4.3

c) Impairment of doubtful trade debts

4.7

d) Provision for taxation and deferred taxation

4.10

e) Revaluation of land and building
f) Investments

4.3 & 14
4.5.1

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that changes in outcome of estimates will not have material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

133

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017
4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies and methods
of computation have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.1

Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration transferred by the Group to obtain control of
a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement, if any. Acquisition costs are expensed
as incurred.
The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless of whether they have been previously
recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

4.2

Staff retirement benefits

4.2.1

Defined benefit plan
The Group operates a defined benefit plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees who have completed minimum qualifying period
of service as per the laid down rules and joined before January 01, 2014. Contributions are made monthly to this fund on the basis of actuarial
recommendations. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the balance sheet immediately, with a charge or credit to other
comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. The significant actuarial assumptions are stated in note 32.

4.2.2

Defined contribution plan
The Group also operates two defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a defined contribution gratuity fund.
Provident fund
The Group operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of basic salary are
made to the fund both by the Group and the employees.
Defined Contribution (DC) Gratuity fund
The Group has established a defined contribution plan - DC Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined on or after January 1, 2014.
Contributions are made by the Group to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary.

4.2.3

Other benefits
Compensated absences
The Group has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective entitlement on cessation
of services. Related expected cost thereof has been recognised in the consolidated financial statements on the basis of best management estimates.

4.3

Property and equipment
Owned
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any: except for land and building which are stated
at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Revaluation has been
accounted for as per section 235 of Companies Ordinance, 1984. Individual items costing Rs. 5,000 or less are not capitalized and treated as a period
cost. Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.4.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 14 and is charged to income. Depreciation on additions during the year
is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of retirement/disposal.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.
Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss in the period of their occurrence, while major renovations and improvements are
capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to income currently.
Revaluation of assets
Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account. Incremental depreciation arising on such
revaluation will be charged from subsequent month of revaluation.
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Leased
The Group accounts for assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These amounts are determined at the
inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are allocated to the
accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged to income applying the
same basis as for owned assets.
Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital work in progress account.
All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital workin-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.
4.3.1

Intangibles
Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Group and have probable economic benefit beyond one year
are recognized as intangible assets.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using the straight line method
reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed by the Group.
Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal. The amortization period for software
is five years.

4.3.2

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the profit and loss account,
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels at which these are generating separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

4.4

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Group in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost that is directly attributable
to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to profit and loss account in the period in which
they are incurred.

4.5

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
Initial recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given for it, including associated
transaction costs except that are incurred on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through consolidated profit or loss in which case transaction
costs are recorded in the consolidated profit and loss account.
Subsequent measurement
The financial assets are measured subsequently as described below:

4.5.1

Financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories upon initial recognition; namely loans and receivables,
held to maturity, available for sale and held for trading investments.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
recognition these are carried at amortized cost.
Held to maturity
Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and the Group has a positive intent and
ability to hold these investments till maturity. After Initial recognition, these are carried at amortized cost.
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Available for sale investment
Investments intended to be held for indefinite period of time, which may be sold on response to needs for liquidity or changes in equity prices, are
classified as ‘available for sale investment’. Financial assets at ‘available for sale’ are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available for sale financial asset, or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables (b) held to maturity investments (c) held for trading investment.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried on the consolidated balance
sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to surplus on revaluation of ‘available for sale’
investment through other consolidated comprehensive income until the investments are derecognized and then the surplus on remeasurement on
available for sale investment is transferred to consolidated profit and loss account.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term fluctuations in prices are classified as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss’ or held for trading.
Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated profit and loss account. These investments
are marked to market and are carried on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these
investments are taken to the consolidated profit and loss account for the year.
Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.
4.5.2

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method except for those which are designated at fair
value through consolidated profit and loss account, which are carried subsequently at fair value with remeasurement gains or losses recognised in
consolidated profit and loss.
All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value are reported in consolidated profit or loss account are included
within finance costs or finance income.

4.5.3

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Group loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. Financial
liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled,
or expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the consolidated profit and loss account
immediately.

4.5.4

Off setting
Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Group has a legal right to set-off the transactions
and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.6

Trade debts and other receivables
Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

4.7

Provisions, contingencies and commitments
A provision is recognized in the consolidated balance sheet when as a result of past events, the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of obligation.
No liability is recognised if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the outflow of resources is remote.
Commitments for outstanding capital expenditure contracts are disclosed in these consolidated financial statements at committed amounts.
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4.8

Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for services.

4.9

Foreign currency translations
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or
losses are taken to income currently.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

4.10

Taxation

4.10.1

Current
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credit and rebates, if
any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of tax laws.

4.10.2

Deferred
Deferred tax is provided for, using the balance sheet liability method, providing the temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset
is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available and credits can be utilized.
Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted.
The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated profit or loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive
income/equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income/equity.

4.11

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the balance sheet at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and only those short term investments which are highly liquid and maturing
within three months from the date of acquisition, that is readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.

4.12

Revenue recognition
Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full upon settlement in CDS on
the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and recognized on per trade basis.
Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading session of every trading day of
the month at the Pakistan Stock Exchange. Custody fee on government securities is recognized daily on cost.
Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation.
Other fees are recognized when the Group renders the related services.
Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds.
Income form IT services are recognized as revenue with reference to the stage of completion of the transaction, unless they are incidental to the sale
of software licenses, in which case they are recognized upon transfer of licensing rights.
Revenue from Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) services are recognised as the related services performed, in accordance with specific terms of the
contract with customers.
Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the year in which they arise.
Return on fixed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis.
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4.13

Interest and dividends income
Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividends, other than those from investments in
associates and joint ventures are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established.

4.14

Dividend and appropriation
Dividend distribution to the Group shareholders’ of the Holding Company is recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which such dividends are approved.

4.15

Related party transactions
All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Holding Company at arm’s length prices using the comparable uncontrolled valuation
method.

4.16

Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4.17

Segment reporting
Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Management, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of internal reporting structure, the Holding Company considers itself
to be a single reportable segment whereas subsidiaries are separate segments. Infoirmation about assets, liabilities, operating income and profit of
segments are presented in note 35 of these consolidated financial statements. The Holding Company and subsidiaries report separate results in their
unconsolidated financial statements.

5

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Number of shares

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Rupees

Rupees

100,000,000

100,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash

55,000,000

55,000,000

- Beginning of the year

550,000,000

550,000,000

35,000,000

-

- During the year

350,000,000

-

90,000,000

55,000,000

Total bonus shares

900,000,000

550,000,000

100,000,000

65,000,000

1,000,000,000

650,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares

5.1

Associated companies held 67,557,997 (2016: 40,662,700) shares in the Holding Company as at year end.

6

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Note

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year
Revaluation surplus on property and equipment

6.1

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

511,765,889

527,669,153

321,819,035

-

(11,132,233)

(10,814,220)

Transferred to accumulated profit:
- surplus relating to incremental depreciation transferred to unappropriated profit during the year
- net off deferred tax

(4,770,979)

(5,089,044)

(15,903,212)

(15,903,264)

817,681,712

511,765,889

- surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year

(45,903,087)

(52,585,635)

- surplus on revaluation of property and equipment during the year

(59.879,111)

-

2,868,943

1,593,504

- related deferred tax liability
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year
Less: related deferred tax liability on:

- remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate
- incremental depreciation charged during the year transferred to consolidated profit and loss account
Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net
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4,770,979

5,089,044

(98,142,276)

(45,903,087)

719,539,436

465,862,802
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6.1

Land and building has been revalued on June 30, 2017, which resulted in further revaluation surplus of Rs. 321,819,035.

7

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Due to:
- Participants

41,251,500

43,050,000

- Institutions

29,824,000

28,125,000

- Pledgees
- Issuers

7.1

1,600,000

1,500,000

45,875,000

43,525,000

118,550,500

116,200,000

These represent security deposits received from different categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their admission in the CDS.
According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, such deposits may be utilized by the Holding Company
for any purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of termination of admission to the CDS.

8

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary differences on
- Provision for doubtful debts
- Deferred tax arising in respect of minimum tax

(347,741)

(370,924)

(2,217,987)

-

12,287,229

18,837,595

98,142,276

45,903,087

Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary differences on
- Excess of accounting written down value under cost model
over tax written down value of property and equipment
- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment

6

- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments

9

Accrued expenses
Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations

9.1

3,880,615
186,335,759

83,333,632

67,746,325

78,535,433

59,204,020

Workers' Welfare Fund

13,745,902

13,745,902

Sales tax payable

20,688,923

16,137,629

9,436,304

12,367,866

485,635,471

359,418,116

Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations
Net defined benefit liability

32.2

50,620,550

35,010,550

Accumulated compensated absences

9.2

32,713,082

32,735,775

83,333,632

67,746,325

32,735,775

29,579,108

Accumulated compensated absences
Opening balance
Provision for the year

10

34,457,739
245,437,538

Investor account services - current account

Others

9.2

2,340,606
66,710,364

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Payable to suppliers

9.1

4,320
107,868,097

25.1

4,932,699

6,596,910

Payments during the year

(4,955,392)

(3,440,243)

Closing balance

32,713,082

32,735,775

- Participants

161,639

361,637

- Institutions

298,861

298,861

460,500

660,498

SHORT TERM DEPOSITS
Due to:
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11

UNEARNED FEE

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Annual fee
- Issuers
- Investor Account Services (IAS)
- Centralised Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII) Partcipants
Investment Portfolio Services (IPS) annual fee
Sub account maintenance fee
Others

12

2,173,096
12,485,889

4,760,004

4,560,004

23,096

22,750

26,487,466

20,525,509

3,196,200

2,834,500

47,561,822

42,601,748

30,394,533

22,882,421

TAXATION - NET
Provision for taxation - net

12.1

2,920,012
10,175,044

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed the order under section 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2008
creating a tax demand of Rs. 10.071 million. The Holding Company had paid the tax demand and filed appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
Appeals [CIR(A)] which was decided vide order dated August 28, 2014 against the Holding Company. Presently, the appeal is pending before the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, for adjudication. The Management, on the basis of opinion from tax advisor, is of the view that the appeal would
eventually be decided in the Holding Company’s favour.

13

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1

Contingencies

13.1.1

Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an order in relation to tax periods commencing from July 2011 upto June 2013 with regards to chargeability of Sindh
Sales Tax amounting to Rs. 297 million including penalty. SRB was of the opinion that services rendered by the Holding Company were falling under the
ambit of Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFC).
Currently the Company has taken stay order from High Court of Sindh against the said order and the case is pending in Appellate Tribunal. The
management on the basis of clarification from Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and opinions from advisors believes that the services
rendered by the Holding Company does not fall under the ambit of NBFC and the case will have favorable outcome and thus no provision has been
recorded in the financial statements.

13.2

Commitments
Commitment for capital expenditure for acquisition of software, hardware and office equipments
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June 30, 2017
Rupees
15,560,301

June 30, 2016
Rupees
10,987,909
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14

FIXED ASSETS

14.1

Property and equipment

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Operating assets

14.1.1

1,175,937,906

Capital work-in-progress

14.1.4

27,443,837

2,931,704

1,203,381,743

891,704,038

14.1.1

June 30, 2016
Rupees
888,772,334

Operating assets
OWNED
Year ended
June 30, 2017

Land
leasehold

Furniture,
fixtures and
electrical
equipment

Building

Office
equipment

Vehicles

Computer
equipment

Total
operating
assets

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Net book value at the
beginning of the year

427,777,000

269,182,466

27,218,197

44,117,834

32,421,795

88,055,042

888,772,334

Additions
Revaluation

122,222,000

3,326,919
199,597,035

5,489,372
-

18,165,862
-

13,314,704
-

30,085,976
-

70,382,833
321,819,035

-

(207,000)
106,957

(2,546,474)
2,291,334

(23,430,296)
21,037,321

(3,889,742)
3,658,676

(42,082,322)
41,998,481

(72,155,834)
69,092,769

-

(100,043)

(255,140)

(2,392,975)

(231,066)

(83,841)

(3,063,065)

Disposals
Cost
Depreciation

Depreciation charge
for the year

-

(26,683,715)

(7,908,762)

(16,695,114)

(11,429,335)

(39,256,305)

(101,973,231)

Net book value at the
end of the year

549,999,000

445,322,662

24,543,667

43,195,607

34,076,098

78,800,872

1,175,937,906

As at June 30, 2017
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation

549,999,000
-

445,322,662
-

169,597,431
(145,053,764)

82,808,976
(39,613,369)

196,963,158
(162,887,060)

404,374,529
(325,573,657)

1,849,065,756
(673,127,850)

Net book value at the
end of the year

549,999,000

445,322,662

24,543,667

43,195,607

34,076,098

78,800,872

1,175,937,906

-

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Depreciation rate

OWNED
Year ended
June 30, 2016

Land
leasehold

Furniture,
fixtures and
electrical
equipment

Building

Vehicles

Total
operating
assets

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Net book value at the
beginning of the year

427,777,000

292,686,971

19,368,349

38,520,098

22,489,080

73,589,094

874,430,592

Additions

-

3,029,128

13,354,098

27,855,620

18,826,905

51,453,256

114,519,007

Disposals
Cost
Depreciation

-

-

(2,024,823)
2,024,064

(14,670,648)
9,530,588

(4,188,505)
3,926,802

(20,391,941)
20,374,266

(41,275,917)
35,855,720

-

-

(759)

(5,140,060)

(261,703)

(17,675)

(5,420,197)

-

-

-

-

(28,000)
(27,999)

-

(28,000)
(27,999)

-

-

(55,999)

-

(55,999)

Transfers
Cost
Depreciation

Depreciation charge
for the year
Net book value at the
end of the year
As at June 30, 2016
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the
end of the year
Depreciation rate

-

(26,533,633)

(5,503,491)

(17,117,824)

(8,576,488)

(36,969,633)

(94,701,069)

427,777,000

269,182,466

27,218,197

44,117,834

32,421,795

88,055,042

888,772,334

427,777,000
-

422,144,687
(152,962,221)

166,654,533
(139,436,336)

88,073,410
(43,955,576)

187,538,196
(155,116,401)

416,370,875
(328,315,833)

1,708,558,701
(819,786,367)

427,777,000

269,182,466

27,218,197

44,117,834

32,421,795

88,055,042

888,772,334

-

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%
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14.1.2

Land - lease hold and building had previously been revalued on June 30, 2012.
The Holding Company as on June 30, 2017 again revalued its land - lease hold and building. The revaluation exercise was carried out by independent
valuer - MYK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, (Approved valuers of Pakistan Banks’ Association and Leasing Association of Pakistan) I. I. Chundrigar Road,
Karachi. The valuer has estimated the remaining life of the buildings to be 20 years. Land- lease hold was revalued on the basis of current market price
whereas buildings were revalued on the basis of depreciated market value (Level 1).
The different levels have been defined in IFRS 13 as follows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);
- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,
derived from prices) (level 2); and
- Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable inputs e.g. estimated future) (level 3).
The appraisal surplus arisen on latest revaluation exercise aggregating Rs. 261.939 million has been incorporated in the books of the Holding Company
in accordance with the provisions of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

14.1.3

Had there been no revaluation of lease hold land and building, the cost and net book values would have been as follows:
Cost

Land- lease hold
Building

14.1.4

Capital work in progress

Net Book value under cost model

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

59,458,250
218,204,411

59,458,250
215,084,492

59,458,250
118,181,752

59,458,250
125,735,327

Note

Balance at the beginning of the year

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

2,931,704

7,058,988

- Furniture, fixtures and electrical equipment

5,521,766

9,977,652

- Building

3,128,912

7,370,460

- Computers and office equipment

69,865,926

64,724,417

- Vehicles

16,378,362

24,272,120

94,894,966

106,344,649

Additions

Transferred to operating assets

14.1.1

Balance at the end of the year

14.2

14.2.1

27,443,837

2,931,704

94,175,563

Softwares

14.2.1

107,631,201

Softwares under implementation

14.2.2

21,133,447

6,131,390

128,764,648

100,306,953

94,175,563

86,858,561

48,259,067

36,485,515

Softwares

Additions

14.2.2

Deletions
Amortization charge for the year

25

Net book value at the end of the year
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value at the end of the year
Amortization rate

(957,828)

-

(33,845,601)

(29,168,513)

107,631,201

94,175,563

376,474,690

329,173,451

(268,843,489)

(234,997,888)

107,631,201

94,175,563

20%

20%

Softwares under implementation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Transferred to softwares
Balance at the end of the year

142

113,403,637
(110,471,933)

Intangibles

Net book value at the beginning of the year

14.2.2

97,826,670
(70,382,833)

14.2.1

6,131,390

6,313,047

63,261,124

36,303,858

69,392,514

42,616,905

(48,259,067)

(36,485,515)

21,133,447

6,131,390
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14.3

Details of disposal of fixed assets through bid / negotiation having net book value of Rs. 50,000 or above

Particular of Assets

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net book
value

Sale
proceeds

Gain / (loss)
on disposal

Particulars of buyer

---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------

15

Auto sliding glass door with system
at CDC House

207,000

106,957

100,043

1,461

(98,582)

Sold to scrap dealer
(Malik Abdullah)

Suzuki Cultus EFI Euro VXR 1000cc

970,000

776,000

194,000

761,111

567,111

Sold to employee
(Jibran)

Honda City

1,525,000

152,500

1,372,500

196,500

(1,176,000)

Sold to employee
(M. Junaid Shekha)

Total

2,702,000

1,035,457

1,666,543

959,072

(707,471)

long Term Loans

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Considered good - secured
- House loans

15.1

38,235,243

30,199,678

- Car loans

15.2

14,357,916

13,592,507

52,593,159

43,792,185

18

(8,604,183)

(6,584,428)

43,988,976

37,207,757

- Transferred to current maturity
Loan outstanding for period
-

More than one year but less than three years

12,911,179

11,847,023

-

More than three years

31,077,797

25,360,734

43,988,976

37,207,757

Reconciliation of loan to executives
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Disbursement / addition during the year

15.1

33,598,698

8,684,977

9,395,000

30,271,844

42,993,698

38,956,821

less: Recovered during the year

(8,323,324)

(5,358,123)

Balance at the end of the year

34,670,374

33,598,698

Interest ranging from 3% to 5% (2016: 3% to 5%) per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on house loans and taken to consolidated
profit and loss account. Maximum repayment period for house loan is fifteen years.

15.2

Interest at 3% (2016: 3%) per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on car loans and taken to consolidated profit and loss account.
However, no interest is recovered from employees who have surrendered interest on their provident fund. Maximum repayment period for car loan
is five years.

15.3

The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 52.59 million (2016: Rs. 41.91 million). The loans are secured
against the underlying assets.

16

LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Deposits
- Utilities

5,586,969

4,909,018

- Rented premises

1,872,000

1,872,000

7,458,969

6,781,018

7,833,969

6,239,820

15,292,938

13,020,838

- secured

224,358,342

166,437,078

- unsecured

122,372,037

79,573,346

346,730,379

246,010,424

Prepayments

17

TRADE DEBTS - NET
Considered good:

Considered doubtful, unsecured
Provision for impairment

17.1
17.2

1,159,136

1,159,136

347,889,515

247,169,560

(1,159,136)

(1,159,136)

346,730,379

246,010,424
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17.1

The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows:
June 30, 2017
Gross

Impaired

June 30, 2016
Net

Gross

Impaired

Net

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Within 45 days

303,059,078

-

303,059,078

216,036,896

-

216,036,896

46 to 90 days

43,671,301

-

43,671,301

29,973,528

-

29,973,528

Over 91 days

1,159,136

1,159,136

-

1,159,136

1,159,136

-

347,889,515

1,159,136

346,730,379

247,169,560

1,159,136

246,010,424

Total

17.2

The Group reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. As during the year no further provision has been made consequently opening
balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and investor account holders amounting to Rs. 0.4 million
(2016: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (2016: Rs. 0.7 million) respectively and are valid till year end.

17.3

Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 31.7 million (2016: Rs. 14.6 million).

17.3.1

The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows:
June 30, 2017
Gross

Impaired

June 30, 2016
Net

Gross

Impaired

Net

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Within 45 days

21,387,095

-

21,387,095

9,400,965

-

9,400,965

46 to 90 days

10,309,621

-

10,309,621

5,223,018

-

5,223,018

Over 91 days

-

-

-

-

-

-

31,696,716

-

31,696,716

14,623,983

-

14,623,983

Total

17.4

The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any month during the year was
Rs. 49.4 million (2016: Rs. 17.1 million).

18

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Current maturity of long term loans

Note
15

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

8,604,183

6,584,428

- Advance to employees

3,774,201

1,583,543

- Advance for expenses

1,690,627

658,487

5,464,828

2,242,030

14,069,011

8,826,458

Considered doubtful, unsecured

18.1

All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found to be impaired.

19

PREPAYMENTS

Note

Insurance
Rent
Software maintenance

June 30, 2017
Rupees
4,963,952

4,931,166

79,428

3,726,800

11,659,393

10,583,848

-

1,200,000

WAN line rent
Servers & other hardware maintainance
Others

20

Others

144

282,368

1,200,770

4,838,546

18,417,375

25,562,728

23.3

5,331,570

40,635,772

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax refundable

21.1

513,832

MARK-UP ACCRUED
Mark-up accrued on PIBs

21

June 30, 2016
Rupees

996,038

908,303

5,685,695

4,233,208

6,681,733

5,141,511

All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found to be impaired.
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22

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Held for trading investments

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

22.4 & 31

61,892,660

59,359,196

- Term deposit certificates

22.1 & 31

1,059,038,628

382,840,548

- Treasury bills

22.2 & 31

1,309,881,578

685,881,550

- Pakistan investment bonds

22.3 & 31

148,498,327

848,911,321

2,579,311,193

1,976,992,615

Available for sale investments

22.1

This represents investment in fixed Term Deposit Certificates. The rate of profit on these certificates is 5.90% to 6.00% (2016: 6.40% to 7.50%) per
annum.

22.2

This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of profit on these certificates is 5.84% to 5.99% (2016: 5.99% to 8.97%) per annum.

22.3

The Holding Company has investments in Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs). These are measured at fair value using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate on these securities varies from 7.89% to 12.25% (2016: 7.89% to 12.25%) per annum.

22.4

This represents investment in open ended mutual fund.

23

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Bank balances
- in saving accounts

23.1

- in current accounts
Amount held on behalf of clients

23.3

Net bank balance
Cash in hand

70,170,915

69,919,627

161,207,919

11,585,885

(154,435,809)

(6,490,800)

76,943,025

75,014,712

142,589

148,319

77,085,614

75,163,031

23.1

The rate of profit varies from 3.75% to 6.00% (2016: 3.75% to 6.40%) per annum.

23.2

Bank balances include Rs. 12.30 million (2016: Rs. 7.17 million) held with related parties.

23.3

This amount is held by the Holding Company in the current account maintained with State Bank of Pakistan on behalf of clients under trustee and
custodianship for settlement purpose.

24

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Depository services - net

24.1

1,204,272,361

995,516.167

Trusteeship and custodial services - net

24.2

580,748,891

462,115,721

Share registrar services - net

24.3

64,982,802

39,843,103

26,910,709

20,416,705

OPERATING INCOME - NET

Business process outsourcing services / IT services - net
Miscellaneous income - net

5,186,369

5,001,487

1,882,101,132

1,522.893,183

(12,733,473)

(10,400,285)

1,869,367,659

1,512,492,898

Depository services

1,362,229,098

1,137,328,269

Less: Sales tax

(157,956,737)

(141,812,102)

1,204,272,361

995,516,167

SECP supervision fee

24.1

24.4

June 30, 2016
Rupees

24.5

Depository services - net

24.1.1
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24.1.1

Depository services - net

Note

Transaction fee

24.1.2

231,897,856

145,031,594
378,103,369

Sub account maintenance fee

66,629,195

58,505,450

CDS connection fee

46,322,000

28,025,500

Securities induction fee

227,655,442

226,681,017

Annual fee

172,359,218

133,373,920

Cancellation fee

17,461,721

18,180,331

Withdrawal fee

6,698,487

5,090,186

Vasco service charges

2,424,000

2,524,800

1,204,272,361

995,516,167

Transaction fee - net
Transaction fee
Less: SECP levy

24.1.3

June 30, 2016
Rupees

432,824,442

Custody fee

24.1.2

June 30, 2017
Rupees

24.1.3

278,963,170

175,390,453

(47,065,314)

(30,358,859)

231,897,856

145,031,594

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 (2016: 0.000405) paisa per share as transaction fee which is borne
by the Holding Company.

24.2

Trusteeship and custodial services - net

Note

Trusteeship and custodial businesses
Less: SECP levy

24.2.1

Less: Sales tax

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

692,892,493

551,429,835

(28,916,101)

(23,068,345)

(83,227,501)

(66,245,769)

580,748,891

462,115,721

24.2.1

SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (2016: 0.005%) of average annual assets of open end scheme or closed end scheme under its trusteeship.

24.3

Share Registrar Services - net

24.4

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Share registrar services

72,129,393

46,258,011

Less: Sales tax

(7,146,591)

(6,414,908)

64,982,802

39,843,103

Miscellaneous income

5,917,107

5,695,029

Less: Sales tax

(730,738)

(693,542)

5,186,369

5,001,487

Miscellaneous Income - net

24.5

SECP imposed a levy @ 1% (2016: 1%) of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee and certain depository service fee.

25

OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and other benefits

Note
25.1 & 25.2

Travelling and conveyance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Training and development

598,159,861

June 30, 2016
Rupees
545,549,309

8,116,040

8,863,699

15,033,921

14,018,842

6,934,230

14,632,422

Communication

11,968,493

10,495,634

Printing and stationery

10,158,738

10,011,968

Rent, rates and taxes

17,861,312

16,527,328

Insurance

24,960,733

24,266,411

Repairs and maintenance

74,893,340

65,076,061

Legal and professional charges

20,825,116

18,816,991

Fee and subscription
Advertisement and publicity
Office supplies

8,218,589

8,519,734

53,493,384

21,705,632

4,357,065

4,329,668

Meeting expenses

11,337,247

7,793,577

Wide-area-network line rent

10,025,364

9,775,331

4,754,415

2,849,199

101,973,231

94,701,067

Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation
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Note
Amortization

25.1

14.2.1

June 30, 2017
Rupees
33,845,601

29,168,513

Fuel and electricity

31,383,484

31,445,079

Security services

10,340,134

9,891,230

Cafeteria

6,086,412

8,449,136

Miscellaneous

6,872,344

5,398,747

1,071,599,054

962,285,578

Salaries and other benefits include:
- Compensated absences

9.2

4,932,699

6,596,910

- Gratuity

32.3

29,152,000

30,432,000

5,662,437

4,371,424

22,717,292

22,552,957

- Defined contribution gratuity fund
- Contribution to provident fund

25.2

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Amount charged in consolidated financial statements in respect of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Executives are:
June 30, 2017
Rupees
CEO

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Executives

CEO

Executives

---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------Managerial Remuneration

26,892,651

205,173,546

29,606,987

179,509,996

Bonus

16,980,000

68,750,950

21,854,500

56,180,500

Gratuity

2,145,438

15,808,592

2,547,604

14,197,094

Provident fund

1,430,288

11,589,665

1,698,403

10,105,925

-

1,406,342

-

961,794

47,448,337

302,729,095

55,707,949

260,955,309

3

108

2

93

Defined contribution gratuity fund
Number of Person

25.2.1

The CEO and executives are provided with the Group maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled for other benefits in
accordance with the terms of employment.

25.2.2

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of directors’ fee paid during the year was Rs. 8.96 million (2016: Rs. 6.24 million).

25.3

Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees
Half year review
Others

25.4

June 30, 2016
Rupees

1,846,731

1,711,306

469,309

434,545

2,438,375

703,348

4,754,415

2,849,199

56,433,200

60,838,746

Employees Provident Fund
- Size of the fund - Net assets (Rupees)
- Number of members
- Cost of investments made (Rupees)
- Percentage of investments made to size of the fund
- Fair value of investments (Rupees)

25.4.1

June 30, 2017
Rupees

426

419

45,012,183

46,453,592

80%

76%

47,772,679

48,512,183

These figures pertain to the year ended June 30, 2017. The audited account of the fund has not been finalized for the current year. Investments out of
Provident Fund has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance 1984 and the rules formulated for this
purpose.
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26

OTHER INCOME

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Income from financial assets:
- Return on bank deposits

4,787,274

- Interest on loans to employees

1,127,467

588,602

- Dividend Income

4,723,482

3,332,610

- Unrealized gain on held-for-trading investments

89,698

54,850

-

5,445,922

133,248,173

150,498,699

- Realized gain on held-for-trading investments
- Return / capital gain on investment - available for sale investment
- Others

4,015,374

13,830

-

143,989,924

163,936,057

Income from non-financial assets:
- (Loss) / gain on disposal of property and equipment
- Penalties and fines
- Others

27

3,217,760

860,200

2,614,100

651,978

471,144

914,565

6,303,004

144,904,489

170,239,061

23,543,440

18,088,643

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expense

27.1

(597,613)

27.1

CSR expense amounting to Rs. 6.30 million (2016: Rs. 11.25 million) have been made to an institution in which a director has common directorship. No
other director and their spouses had any interest in any institution to which this amount has been allocated during the year.

28

FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank charges

29

June 30, 2016
Rupees

195,919

234,932

320,813,221

252,408,930

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current

29.1

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Prior

(1,471,087)

-

Deferred

(8,586,138)

(5,574,556)

310,755,996

246,834,374

The income tax assessments of the Holding Company have been finalised up to and including tax year 2016, except as disclosed in note 12.1
The income tax assessments of the ITMinds Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been finalised up to and including tax year 2016.
The income tax assessments of the CDC Trustee Company Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been finalised up to and including tax year
2016.

29.2

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before income tax
Enacted tax rate

Tax charge at enacted rate
Tax effect of exempt income or income taxed at different rate
Super tax
Others

30

EARNINGS PER SHARE

30.1

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic
Profit after income tax

June 30, 2017
Rupees
918,933,735

June 30, 2016
Rupees
702,122,806

31%

32%

284,869,458

224,679,298

-

(380,872)

28,400,000

21,500,000

(2,513,462)

1,035,948

310,755,996

246,834,374

608,177,739

455,288,432

Number of Shares

(Restated)
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares
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Note
Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic

30.1.1

30.1.1

Rupees

Rupees
(Restated)

6.08

4.55

These consolidated financial statements have been restated to account for the effect of bonus shares issued on EPS in order to fairly present the result
of year ended June 30, 2016.

30.2

Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted
Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2017 and
2016 which would have any effect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is exercisable.

31

32

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Cash and bank balances

23

77,085,614

75,163,031

Short term investments

22

2,579,311,193

1,976,992,615

2,656,396,807

2,052,155,646

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The gratuity fund is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in accordance with the rules of the gratuity
fund.
The obligation under the fund is determined through an actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. Principal actuarial assumptions used
in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2017 are as follows:
June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Rate per annum

32.1

Discount rate per annum (compound rate)

9.25%

7.25%

Salary increase rate

8.00%

6.00%

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Statement of financial position item

Note

The amounts recognized in consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

32.2

Present value of defined benefit obligation

32.4

325,416,815

324,451,815

Fair value of plan assets

32.5

(274,796,265)

(289,441,265)

Movement in net defined benefit obligation

32.2

50,620,550

35,010,550

35,010,550

30,611,828

Movement in net defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Expense for the year

32.3

Payment to fund during the year
Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

32.3

9.1

29,152,000

30,432,000

(30,015,000)

(29,061,277)

16,473,000

3,027,999

50,620,550

35,010,550

Amounts recognized in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income (OCI)
The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income in respect of these benefits:
Note

June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Current service cost

26,528,000

27,321,000

Net interest cost

23,971,000

28,884,000

(21,347,000)

(25,773,000)

29,152,000

30,432,000

Remeasurement loss / (gain) on obligation

20,590,000

(2,013,000)

Remeasurement (gain) / loss on plan assets

(4,117,000)

5,041,000

Remeasurement losses recognised in OCI

16,473,000

3,028,000

Expected return on plan assets
Expense for the year

25.1
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32.4

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year

June 30, 2016
Rupees

324,451,815

289,800,093

Current service cost

26,528,000

27,321,000

Interest cost

23,971,000

28,883,722

Benefit paid

(70,124,000)

(19,540,000)

Actuarial gain on obligation
Balance at the end of the year

32.5

June 30, 2017
Rupees

20,590,000

(2,013,000)

325,416,815

324,451,815

Movement in fair value of plan assets
Balance at the beginning of the year

289,441,265

259,188,265

Expected return on plan assets

21,347,000

25,773,000

Contributions

30,015,000

29,061,000

Benefits paid

(70,124,000)

(19,540,000)

Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets
Balance at the end of the year

4,117,000

(5,041,000)

274,796,265

289,441,265

325,417,000

324,451,815

Analysis of Present value of defined benefit obligation (PBO)
Split by Vested / Non-Vested
(i) Vested benefits

-

-

325,417,000

324,451,815

(i) Present value of guaranteed benefits

156,661,000

186,971,439

(ii) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase

168,756,000

137,480,376

325,417,000

324,451,815

(ii) Non-vested benefits

Split by Benefits earned to date

Maturity profile of present value of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration of the present value of defined benefit obligation (time in years)

10.04

9.61

Distribution of timing of benefit payments
Time in years
Within first year from the end of financial year

38,050,000

13,939,000

Within second years from the end of financial year

15,977,000

35,898,000

Within third years from the end of financial year

20,642,000

15,112,000

Within fourth years from the end of financial year

23,705,000

19,226,000

Within five years from the end of financial year

34,237,000

21,918,000

176,283,000

233,230,000

52,778,000

80,044,607

Within six to ten years from the end of financial year

32.6

Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows:
Treasury bills
Term finance certificates

-

5,607,000

Special saving certificates

145,475,000

130,897,000

Defense saving certificate

73,872,000

66,055,000

2,672,000

6,839,000

274,797,000

289,442,607

Base

325,417,000

324,451,815

Discount Rate +1%

295,127,000

295,320,000

Discount Rate -1%

360,840,000

358,469,000

Expected rate of salary increase +1%

362,595,000

360,242,000

Expected rate of salary increase -1%

293,172,000

293,349,000

Bank balance
Total fair value of plan assets
Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on present value of defined benefit obligation:

These figures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2017. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. The Group recognises
expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits.
The expected gratuity expense of the Group for the year ending June 30, 2018 works out to be Rs. 30.7 million.
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33

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies with or without common directors, retirement benefit funds,
directors, key management personnel and their close family members.
Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective notes are as follows:
June 30, 2017
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

Rent of premises paid to:
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated Company)
- LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)

6,566,676

5,527,080

924,124

262,472

7,490,800

5,789,552

6,566,676

5,527,080

Rent expense:
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated Company)
- LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchang Limited- Associated Company)

Mark-up earned - Associated companies

924,124

838,472

7,490,800

6,365,552

294,370

267,495

The shareholders and directors of the Group are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total revenue from transactions in CDS
relating to shareholders and directors are as follows:
June 30, 2017
Rupees
67,286,554

48,795,773

1,120,284

1,240,959

Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue of common directorship

47,348,741

55,069,625

Contributions to retirement plans

57,531,729

55,985,381

335,000

754,400

Transactions with The Citizens Foundation - Donation / Sponsorship

6,300,000

11,250,000

Transactions with Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) - Advertisement, parking & intercom

1,241,724

6,920,824

583,371

151,489

-

2,470,834

10,271,424

9,665,798

Shareholders
Directors

Transactions with Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) Annual subscription & Director's training program

Transactions with LSE Financial Services Limited - Directors travelling
Transactions with ISE REIT Management Limited - Utilities & directors travelling
Transactions with NCCPL - Electricity & generator charges

33.1

June 30, 2016
Rupees

The Group continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm length prices using the comparable
uncontrolled valuation method.

33.2

The Group has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Group’s policies and terms of employment.

34

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

34.1

Financial risk management
The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Market risk
- Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
- Liquidity risk
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34.1.1

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price due
to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and
liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk and interest rate risk.
(a) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates.
The Group is not significantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Group are carried out in the local currency.
(b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing liabilities. However, the Group has fixed interest
based investments and loans to employees. These investments are classified as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity of the interest
rates and management’s intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not affected by volatility of market interest rate. Other
assets and liabilities of the Group does not expose the Group to interest rate risk substantially.
The Group has investments in the following securities having fixed rate of return:
June 30, 2017
Rupees

Note
Pakistan investment bonds (PIBs)

20 & 22

June 30, 2016
Rupees

153,829,897

889,547,093

Treasury bills (T-Bills)

22

1,309,881,578

685,881,550

Term deposit certificates (TDCs)

22

1,059,038,628

382,840,548

2,522,750,103

1,958,269,191

Investments in PIBs & T-bills are Government backed securities with guaranteed return. In addition, investment in TDCs and treasury bills are for a
period of 3 months and 3, 6 & 12 months respectively. Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not affect the cash flows of the Group.
(c) Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. It is the risk of losing money due to a fall in the market
price of a security that the entity owns. It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market financial instruments. Currently entity has no security
designated as held for trading therefore there is no implications of price risks.
34.2

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:
Mark-up bearing
Effective
yield / interest
rates (%)

June 30, 2017
Note

Over one
year to
five years

Less than
one year

Non
Markup
bearing

Over five
years

Total

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets
Investments

20 & 22

5.84 - 12.25

2,584,642,763

-

-

-

2,584,642,763

Loan and advances

15 & 18

0.00 - 3.00

8,604,183

43,988,976

-

3,774,201

56,367,360

Deposits

16

-

-

-

7,458,969

7,458,969

Trade debts

17

-

-

-

346,730,379

346,730,379

Mark up accrued

20

-

-

-

5,331,570

5,331,570

Other receivables

21

-

-

-

6,681,733

6,681,733

Cash and bank balances

23

70,170,915

-

-

6,914,699

77,085,614

2,663,417,860

43,988,976

-

376,891,551

3,084,298,388

7 & 10

-

-

-

119,011,000

119,011,000

9

-

-

-

388,555,937

388,555,937

-

-

-

507,566,937

507,566,937

3.75 - 6.00

Financial liabilities
Deposits
Trade and other payables
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Mark-up bearing
Effective
yield / interest
rates (%)

June 30, 2016
Note

Over one
year to
five years

Less than
one year

Non
Markup
bearing

Over five
years

Total

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets
Investments

20 & 22

5.99 - 12.25

1,958,269,191

-

-

-

1,958,269,191

Loan and advances

15 & 18

0.00 - 3.00

6,584,428

37,207,757

-

1,583,543

45,375,728

Deposits

16

-

-

-

6,781,018

6,781,018

Trade debts

17

-

-

-

246,010,424

246,010,424

Mark up accrued

20

-

-

-

40,635,772

40,635,772

Other receivables

21

-

-

-

5,141,511

5,141,511

Cash and bank balances

23

69,919,627

-

-

5,243,404

75,163,031

2,034,773,246

37,207,757

-

305,395,672

2,377,376,675

-

-

-

116,860,498

116,860,498

-

-

-

277,925,889

277,925,889

-

-

-

394,786,387

394,786,387

3.75 - 6.40

Financial liabilities
Deposits
Trade and other payables

34.3

7 & 10
9

Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
The Group prepares its consolidated financial statements under the historical cost convention except for measurement of available for sale investments
at the fair value, held to maturity investments at amortised cost and recognition of staff retirement benefits on the actuarial valuation basis. The
estimated fair values of all financial instruments are not significantly different from their carrying values on June 30, 2017.

34.4

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to incur a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk at very low level.
Highest

Lowest

Short Term

Rating

A-1+

A-1+

Long Term

AAA

AA

The credit quality investments in mutual fund can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings having rating of AAA (f).
34.5

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk reflects the Group’s inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Group’s liquidity and cash flow
position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and
avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers.
As at June 30, 2017 the Group’s liabilities have contractual / expected maturities as summarised below:
Current
within 6
months
Note
Deposits
Trade & other payable

7 & 10
9

Non-Current

within 6-12
months

1 to 5
years

later than
5 years

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------460,500

-

-

118,550,500

119,011,000

388,555,937

-

-

-

388,555,937

389,016,437

-

-

118,550,500

507,566,937

As at June 30, 2016 the Group’s liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:
Current
within 6
months
Note
Deposits
Trade & other payable

7 & 10
9

Non-Current

within 6-12
months

1 to 5
years

later than
5 years

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------660,498

-

-

116,200,000

116,860,498

277,925,889

-

-

-

277,925,889

278,586,387

-

-

116,200,000

394,786,387
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35

OPERATING SEGMENT
For management purposes the Group is organized into following major business segments.

35.1

CDCPL

To act as a depository for securities, open securities account and acts as a registrar to the issuer of securitities.

ITML

To provide information technology and business process outsourcing (BPO) services.

CTCL

To act as a trustee for open-end funds and closed-end schemes, voluntary pension schemes and to provide custodial services to closed-end funds,
discretionary/ non-discretionary portfolios.

ECL

To act as a professional clearing member as per professional clearing memberr regulations.

Reconciliation of reportable segment operating income, assets, liabilities & profit and loss.
June 30, 2017

CDCPL

ITML

CTCL

ECL

Adjustment

Net

----------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Operating income - net

1,842,513,700

41,550,103

-

-

(14,696,144)

1,869,367,659

Assets

4,458,181,931

33,182,378

61,921,312

8,717,557

(122,947,998)

4,439,055,180

Liabilities

786,659,673

17,808,893

245,140

-

(14,242,783)

790,470,923

Profit

608,714,651

(2,822,346)

2,273,041

(16,143)

28,536

608,177,739

CDCPL

ITML

CTCL

ECL

Adjustment

Net

June 30, 2016

----------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

36

Operating income - net

1,492,076,193

22,643,097

-

-

(2,226,392)

1,512,492,898

Assets

3,444,299,188

30,126,203

59,558,131

-

(113,411,397)

3,420,572,125

Liabilities

610,477,173

11,252,372

155,000

-

(13,411,398)

608,473,147

Profit

459,457,061

(5,427,573)

1,258,944

-

-

455,288,432

Loan and
receivables

Held for
trading

Held to
maturity

Total

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES
June 30, 2017

Note

Available for
sale

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets
Non current assets
Long term loans

15

43,988,976

-

-

-

Long term deposits

16

7,458,969

-

-

-

43,988,976
7,458,969

51,447,945

-

-

-

51,447,945

Current assets
Trade debts - net

17

346,730,379

-

-

-

346,730,379

Loans and advances

18

12,378,384

-

-

-

12,378,384

Mark-up accrued

20

5,331,570

-

-

-

5,331,570

Other receivables

21

6,681,733

-

-

-

6,681,733

Short term investments

22

-

61,892,660

2,517,418,533

-

2,579,311,193

Cash and bank balances

23

77,085,614

-

-

-

77,085,614

448,207,680

61,892,660

2,517,418,533

-

3,027,518,872

499,655,625

61,892,660

2,517,418,533

-

3,078,966,818

June 30, 2017
Amortized Cost

Held for trading

Total

-----------------------Rupees-------------------------Financial liabilities
Non current liabilities
Long term deposits

7

118,550,500

-

118,550,500

Trade and other payables

9

388,555,937

-

388,555,937

Short term deposits

10

460,500

-

460,500

389,016,437

-

389,016,437

507,566,937

-

507,566,937

Current liabilities
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June 30, 2016
Loan and
receivables
Note

Held for
trading

Available for
sale

Held to
maturity

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets
Non current assets
Long term loans

15

37,207,757

-

-

-

Long term deposits

16

6,781,018

-

-

-

37,207,757
6,781,018

43,988,775

-

-

-

43,988,775

246,010,424

Current assets
Trade debts - net

17

246,010,424

-

-

-

Loans and advances

18

8,167,971

-

-

-

8,167,971

Mark-up accrued

20

40,635,772

-

-

-

40,635,772

Other receivables

21

5,141,511

-

-

-

5,141,511

Short term investments

22

-

59,359,196

1,917,633,419

-

1,976,992,615

Cash and bank balances

23

75,163,031

-

-

-

75,163,031

375,118,709

59,359,196

1,917,633,419

-

2,352,111,324

419,107,484

59,359,196

1,917,633,419

-

2,396,100,099

June 30, 2016
Amortized Cost
Note

Held for trading

Total

-----------------------Rupees--------------------------

Financial liabilities
Non current liabilities
Long term deposits

7

116,200,000

-

116,200,000

Trade and other payables

9

277,925,889

-

277,925,889

Short term deposits

10

660,498

-

660,498

278,586,387

-

278,586,387

Current liabilities

394,786,387

37

394,786,387

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or the most
advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

37.1

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:
Level 1

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derivedprices).

Level 3

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

155

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2017
37.2

Financial assets and liabilities
The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30,
2017 and June 30, 2016.
June 30, 2017
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale securities
- Term deposit certificates

1,059,038,628

-

1,059,038,628

-

1,059,038,628

- Treasury bills

1,309,881,578

-

1,309,881,578

-

1,309,881,578

153,829,897

-

153,829,897

-

153,829,897

61,892,660

-

61,892,660

-

61,892,660

56,367,360

-

-

-

56,367,360

7,458,969

-

-

-

7,458,969

346,730,379

-

-

-

346,730,379

Mark up Accrued

5,331,570

-

-

-

5,331,570

Other receivables

6,681,733

-

-

-

- Pakistan investment bonds
Held for trading investments
- Open end mutual funds
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts

Cash and bank balances

77,085,614

6,681,733
77,085,614

3,084,298,388

-

2,584,642,763

-

3,084,298,388

Deposits

119,011,000

Trade and other payables

388,555,937

-

-

-

119,011,000

-

-

-

507,566,937

388,555,937

-

-

-

507,566,937

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

June 30, 2016
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale securities
- Term deposit certificates

382,840,548

-

382,840,548

-

382,840,548

- Treasury bills

685,881,550

-

685,881,550

-

685,881,550

- Pakistan investment bonds

889,547,093

-

848,911,321

-

848,911,321

59,359,196

-

59,359,196

-

59,359,196

45,375,728

-

-

-

45,375,728

6,781,018

-

-

-

6,781,018

246,010,424

-

-

-

246,010,424

Mark up Accrued

40,635,772

-

-

-

40,635,772

Other receivables

5,141,511

-

-

-

Held for trading investments
- Open end mutual funds
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts

Cash and bank balances

75,163,031
2,436,735,871

5,141,511
75,163,031

-

1,976,992,615

-

2,396,100,099

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
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Deposits

116,860,498

-

-

-

116,860,498

Trade and other payables

277,925,889

-

-

-

277,925,889

394,786,387

-

-

-

394,786,387
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37.3

37.4

Information about valuation technique and inputs used
Item

Valuation technique and inputs used

Term Deposit Certificates

A deposit at a bank or other financial institution that has a fixed return (usually via an interest rate) and a set maturity.
That is, the depositor does not have access to the funds until maturity; in exchange, he/she is usually entitled to a higher
interest rate. One of the most common examples of a term deposit is a certificate of deposit. It is also called a time
deposit.

Units of Open-end Mutual Funds

Fair value is based on redemption prices as at the close of the business day.

Pakistan Investment Bonds and
Market Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV rates (Reuters page)

Non-financial assets and liabilities
The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at
June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016.
June 30, 2017
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------Land-lease hold

549,999,000

-

-

549,999,000

549,999,000

Building

445,322,662

-

-

445,322,662

445,322,662

995,321,662

-

-

995,321,662

995,321,662

June 30, 2016
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

38

Land-lease hold

427,777,000

-

-

427,777,000

427,777,000

Building

269,182,466

-

-

269,182,466

269,182,466

696,959,466

-

-

696,959,466

696,959,466

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of Directors monitor the return
on capital, which the Group defines as profit after income tax divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of
dividend to ordinary shareholders.
The Group finances its operations through equity and management of working capital. The equity for the purpose of capital risk management comprises
share capital, reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments and unappropriated profit.

39

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
The directors in their meeting held on August 25, 2017 have proposed bonus shares @ 6.09% i.e. 6.09 million shares (2016: 53.846% i.e. 35 million
shares) and cash dividend of Rs. 1.83 per share (2016: Re. 0.3077 per share) of Rs. 10 each i.e. 18.3% of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended
June 30, 2017. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 do not include the effect of these appropriations which will be
accounted for in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.

40

41

EMPLOYEES

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Number of employees at the end of the year

438

438

Average number of employees during the year

438

431

DATE OF AUTHORISATION
These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their 191st meeting held on August 25, 2017.

-sd-

-sd-

Director

Chief Executive Officer
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No. of Shareholders

Shareholding

11

shareholding from 1 to 1000 shares *

01

shareholding from 1,001 to 100,000 shares

100,000

01

shareholding from 100,001 to 500,000 shares

500,000

01

shareholding from 500,001 to 650,000 shares

649,998

01

shareholding from 650,001 to 1,000,000 shares

1,000,000

01

shareholding from 1,000,001 to 2,500,000 shares

2,500,000

01

shareholding from 2,500,001 to 2,750,000 shares

2,749,499

03

shareholding from 2,750,001 to 5,000,000 shares

14,999,500

01

shareholding from 5,000,001 to 6,350,000 shares

6,346,000

02

shareholding from 6,350,001 to 10,000,000 shares

19,998,499

01

Shareholding from 10,000,001 to 11,500,000 shares

11,345,501

01

shareholding from 11,500,001 to 39,807,999 shares

39,804,923

25

Total

100,000,000

* These are qualification shares given to directors pursuant to Article 95 of Company’s Articles of Association.
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Categories of Shareholders

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, their spouse and minor children(Note)

20
years

Shares held

Percentage

6,080

-

39,807,999

39.80%

Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
LSE Financial Services Limited

9,999,999

10.00%

10,000,000

10.00%

Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited

2,749,999

2.75%

Pak China Investment Company Limited

5,000,000

5.00%

National Investment Trust Limited

6,346,000

6.35%

Industrial Development Bank Limited

5,000,000

5.00%

10,000,000

10.00%

MCB Bank Limited

NIT and IDBL

Banks/DFIs/NBFIs
MCB Bank Limited
LSE Financial Services Limited

9,999,999

10.00%

11,346,001

11.35%

National Investment Trust Limited

6,346,000

6.35%

Industrial Development Bank Limited

5,000,000

5.00%

NIB Bank Limited

5,000,000

5.00%

Pak China Investment Company Limited

5,000,000

5.00%

Allied Bank Limited

1,000,000

1.00%

500,000

0.50%

2,500,000

2.5%

649,998

0.65%

Habib Bank Limited

Innovative Investment Bank Limited
ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited

Insurance Companies
IGI Insurance Limited

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

-

Shareholders holding 5% (or more)
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

39,807,999

Habib Bank Limited

11,346,001

11.35%

9,999,999

10.00%

10,000,000

10.00%

National Investment Trust Limited

6,346,000

6.35%

NIB Bank Limited

5,000,000

5.00%

Pak China Investment Company Limited

5,000,000

5.00%

Industrial Development Bank Limited

5,000,000

5.00%

a. Local

-

-

b. Foreign

-

-

100,000

0.10%

LSE Financial Services Limited
MCB Bank Limited

39.80%

General Public

Others
Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Ltd.

Note: These are qualification shares given to directors pursuant to Article 95 of Company’s Articles of Association.
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Proxy Form

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

We, ____________________________________________________________________ of ___________________________________, being a
member of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited holding __________________________________________
ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No. _________________ and / or CDC Account no. ______________________________
do hereby appoint Mr. ________________________________________________________________________________or failing him
Mr.____________________________________________________________ as our Proxy in our absence to attend and vote for
us, and on our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on September 28, 2017 or at any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this ____________________________ day of _________________________ 2017 signed by the said.

Signature of Appointer

(Revenue stamp of Rs. 5/-)

(Name of Designation)

Specimen signature of Proxy

WITNESS 1:

Specimen signature of Proxy

WITNESS 2:

Signature:

___________________________

Signature:

___________________________

Name:		

___________________________

Name:		

___________________________

Designation:

___________________________

Designation:

___________________________

Address:

___________________________

Address:

___________________________

CNIC No.:		

___________________________

CNIC No.:		

___________________________
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Office Addresses
Registered Office:
CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400.
Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500 I Fax: (92-21) 34326031

Pakistan Stock Exchange Branch:
Mezzanine Floor, Pakistan Stock Exchange Building,
I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
Tel: (92-21) 32416774 I Fax: (92-21) 32444491

Lahore Branch:
307, 2nd Floor, Upper Mall, Lahore – 54000.
Tel: (92-42) 35789378 I Fax: (92-42) 35789340

Islamabad Branch:
Room # 410, 4th Floor, ISE Towers REIT Management Ltd,
55-B, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad.
Tel: (92-51) 2895456-9 I Fax: (92-51) 2895454

Abbottabad Office:
1st Floor, Al-Fateh Shopping Centre,
Opp. Radio Station, Mansehra Road, Abbottabad.
Tel: (92-992) 331529-31, (92-992) 408190

Email:
info@cdcpak.com

URL:
www.cdcpakistan.com

Customer Support Services:
0800 – 23275 (CDCPL)

For Overseas Callers:
+92 (21) 34326038

